AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
6425 MAIN STREET, GEORGETOWN, CA 95634

TUESDAY, JANUARY 9, 2018
2:00 P.M.

MISSION STATEMENT

It is the purpose of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District to:
e Provide reliable water supplies
¢ Ensure high quality drinking water
e Promote stewardship to protect community resources, public health, and quality of life
¢ Provide excellent and responsive customer services through dedicated and valued staff
¢ Ensure fiscal responsibility and accountability are observed by balancing immediate and long-term needs.

1. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
3. BOARD REORGANIZATION
A. Oath of Office of Appointed Director David Souza, Administered by Legal Counsel

B. Adopt Resolution 2018-07 Establishing the Policy for the Election of Board Officers and
Confirming the Election of Officers for Calendar Year 2018

Possible Board Action: Receive nominations and elect officers. Adopt Resolution 2018-07 establishing
a policy of electing officers and confirming officers for calendar year 2018.

4. PUBLIC FORUM - Any member of the public may address the Board on any matter within the jurisdictional
authority of the District. Public members desiring to provide comments, must be recognized by the Board
President, and speak from the podium. Comments must be directed only to the Board. The public should
address the Board members during the public meetings as President, Vice President, or Director, followed by
the Board member’s individual last name. The Board will hear communications on matters not on the agenda,
but no action will be taken. No disruptive conduct shall be permitted at any Board meeting. Persistence in
disruptive conduct shall be grounds for summary termination, by the President, of that person's privilege of
address.

5. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes
1. Regular Meeting of December 12, 2017
2. Special Meeting of December 13, 2017

B. Financial Reports
1. Month End Cash Disbursements Report
2. Statement of Cash and Investment Balances

C. Adopt Resolution 2018-01 Authorizing the Change of Bank Signatory Authority

Possible Board Action: Adopt Resolution 2018-01 authorizing change of bank signatory authority.

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, January 9, 2018 Page 10f 3



D.

Adopt Resolution 2018-02 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an Amendment to the
Professional Services Agreement with EN2, Extending the Term of the Agreement.

Possible Board Action: Adopt Resolution 2018-02 authorizing the Amendment to the Agreement with
EN2.

6. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

A.

mo o

n

President’s

Board Reports

General Manager’s Report
Operation Manager’s Report
ALT Treatment Plant Update

Presentation on the Operation of ALTWTP

7. NEW BUSINESS

A.

Review and Accept the 2016 Audit Report

Possible Board Action: Receive and file.

Adopt Resolution 2018-03 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an Amendment to the
Professional Services Agreement with VTD, Adding Services and increasing the Amount by $53,760.

Possible Board Action: Adopt Resolution 2018-03 authorizing the amendment to the Agreement with
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP.

Consider Funding for Automated Meter Replacement Funding
Possible Board Action: Provide direction on whether to proceed with the SRF loan application.
Adopt Resolution 2018-04 Low-Income Assistance Program Policy

Possible Board Action: Determine dollar amount for discount being offered by the program and adopt
Resolution 2018-03 approving the Low-Income Rate Assistance Program Policy.

Adopt Resolution 2018-06 Policy Guidelines for Developing Board Position on Legislation

Possible Board Action: Adopt Resolution 2018-06 approving the policy guidelines and by motion action
designate a Director as the legislative liaison.

8. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION -

A

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - LABOR NEGOTIATION. Pursuant to Government Code Section
54954 .5(f) and Government Code 54957.6)

District Representatives: General Manager Steven Palmer; District General Counsel
Employee Organization: International Union of Operating Engineers Stationary Engineers, Local No. 39

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION. Significant exposure to litigation
pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of Government Code section 54956.9 (one potential
case).

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, January 9, 2018 Page 2 of 3



C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - POTENTIAL LITIGATION. Significant exposure to litigation
pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of Government Code section 54956.9 (one case).

9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS, REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONS TO FUTURE MEETING AGENDAS AND
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION OR RESEARCH TO BE COMPLETED BY STAFF —Opportunity for Board
members to discuss matters of interest to them and provide input for future meetings as well as report on their
District-related meeting attendance.

10. NEXT MEETING DATE AND ADJOURNMENT - Next regular meeting is February 13, 2018, at 2:00 PM, at
the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District, 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, CA 95634.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a disability-related
modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact Steve Palmer by telephone at 530-333-
4356 or by fax at 530-333-9442. Requests must be made as early as possible and at least one-full business day
before the start of the meeting. In accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a), this agenda was posted
on the District’s bulletin board at the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District office, at 6425 Main Street,
Georgetown, California,~on January 5, 2017.

4 - n/»,f;’//g

Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager Date

0
Q

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, January 9, 2018 ge3o0f3



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

District

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT AND OATH OF OFFICE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

ss.
COUNTY OF EL DORADO }

I, WILLIAM E. SCHULTZ, Recorder-Clerk-Registrar of Voters of the County of El
Dorado, State of California, do hereby certify that the Board of Directors of the
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District at a regular meeting held on December 13,
2017 did appoint Dave Souza to serve as Director of the Georgetown Divide Public

Utility District for the term commencing December 13, 2017.

) ¢
Dated.\\ //;, /X /(7//// 20/ ). | ,

/
{ \:nu

<1// ) by fL/

{Deputy Clerk)

eI A — B ——ameWRSIN T -

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

SS.
COUNTY OF EL DORADO }

I, Dave Souza do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the
Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California
against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to
the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California;

that I take this obligation freely; without any mental reservation purpose of
evasion; and that I will well and faithfully discharge the duties w ch I am about
to enter.

Signed /
Subscribed and sworn to before me, -

_j_dayof (:j-aﬂ(/aft;l .2o/f.
4&—_‘—_’,,

Oi 7 [ {District Secretary)

Term: 12/05/2014 to 12/07/2018
{Carl Hoelscher resigned 10/17/2017)
(This is an unexpired short term)



REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS I

BOARD MEETING OF JANUARY 9, 2018 _

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3B .

AGENDA SECTION: BOARD REORGANIZATION
SUBJECT: ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2018
PREPARED BY: Gloria Omania, Board SecretarW/

APPROVED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager%

BACKGROUND
The Board of Directors has historically conducted an annual election of officers in December
or January for the upcoming calendar year, according to a review of past Board minutes.

Nominations will be taken from the floor and officers duly elected to serve as President, Vice-
President, and Treasurer.

DISCUSSION
This process of electing new officers annually is not formalized in the District's Policy Manual.

FISCAL IMPACT
None.

CEQA ASSESSMENT
Not a CEQA Project

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
adopt Resolution 2018-07 adopting a policy for the election of officers and confirming the
election of officers for the 2018 calendar year.

ALTERNATIVES
(a) Request substantive changes to the Resolution for staff to implement; (b) Reject the
Resolution.

ATTACHMENTS
Resolution

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District 4 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, CA 95634 4 (530) 333-4356 4 gd-pud.org



RESOLUTION 2018-07

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR THE ELECTION OF OFFICERS
AND THE ELECTION OF OFFICERS OF THE 2018 CALENDAR YEAR

WHEREAS, the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District has historically conducted an election
of officers in December or January for the upcoming calendar year; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to formalize a policy for electing Officers of the Board of
Directors on an annual basis; and

WHEREAS, since District Board elections are held during even years in November requiring a
reorganization of the Board in December, the election of officers during even years shall be conducted
in December to coincide with the installation of newly elected Directors;

WHEREAS, the election of officers during odd years shall be conducted during the January
regular meeting of the Board;

WHEREAS, the nominations were received from the floor during the Board’s regular Board
meeting of January 9, 2018, and the following Directors elected to serve for the 2018 calendar year:

President; LOIML" o 50
Vice President: Je,sS< H anschi / fﬂ
Treasurer: Dawj Hﬂ I lm\fl

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Board of Directors of
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT, El Dorado County, California, that the election
of officers shall be conducted annually and the slate of officers elected are confirmed to serve for the
2018 calendar year.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regularly held meeting of the Board of Directors of the
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT on the 9" day of January 2017, by the following
vote:

AYES: /7/&,/4»4, //oz,zf&é//{ Souse, S5 Wadl

NAYS:

Londres Uso, Rresident
Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

GDPUD Resolution 2018-01 Page 1 of 2



ATTEST.

Steven Paifner, Clérk and ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

CERTIFICATION

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution 2018-07 duly and
regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District, County of
El Dorado, State of California, on the 9™ day of January 2017.

1T—

StevenPalmer, {Clerk and ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

GDPUD Resolution 2018-01 Page 2 of 2



CONFORMED AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
6425 MAIN STREET, GEORGETOWN, CA 95634

TUESDAY, JANUARY 9, 2018
2:00 P.M.

MISSION STATEMENT

It is the purpose of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District to:
¢ Provide reliable water supplies
e Ensure high quality drinking water
» Promote stewardship to protect community resources, public health, and quality of life
« Provide excellent and responsive customer services through dedicated and valued staff
e Ensure fiscal responsibility and accountability are observed by balancing immediate and long-term needs.

1.

2.

3

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The meeting was called to order at 2:00 PM. Director Hanschild led in the Pledge of Allegiance.
Directors Present: David Halpin, Jesse Hanschild, Lon Uso, and Dane Wadle

Staff Present: General Manager Steven Palmer, Engineering Consultant George Sanders, and
Board Assistant Gloria Omania. Legal Counsel: Barbara Brenner, Churchwell White, LLP

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Legal Counsel Barbara Brenner stated the case of Mecklenberg vs. Georgetown Divide PUD
should be added to the closed session agenda.

Motion by Director Wadle to adopt the Agenda with the addition of Mecklenberg vs. GDPUD
to the closed session agenda. Second by Director Hanschild.

Public Comment: None.

The motion passed unanimously.

BOARD REORGANIZATION

A. Oath of Office of Appointed Director David Souza, Administered by Legal Counsel

Legal Counsel Barbara Brenner administered the Oath of Office to David Souza. Director
Souza signed the Certificate of Appointment and took his seat at the dais.

B. Adopt Resolution 2018-07 Establishing the Policy for the Election of Board Officers and
Confirming the Election of Officers for Calendar Year 2018

Possible Board Action: Receive nominations and elect officers. Adopt Resolution 2018-07
establishing a policy of electing officers and confirming officers for calendar year 2018.

CDPUD Regular Meeting Minutes, January 9, 2018 Fage 1 of 7



Motion by Director Wadle to adopt the Resolution 2018-07 establishing the annual
election of Board officers, and electing the current officers to continue for the 2018
calendar year. Second by Director Hanschild.

Public Comment: None

The motion passed unanimously.

4. PUBLIC FORUM - Any member of the public may address the Board on any matter within the
jurisdictional authority of the District. Public members desiring to provide comments, must be
recognized by the Board President, and speak from the podium. Comments must be directed only
to the Board. The public should address the Board members during the public meetings as President,
Vice President, or Director, followed by the Board member’s individual last name. The Board will hear
communications on matters not on the agenda, but no action will be taken. No disruptive conduct
shall be permitted at any Board meeting. Persistence in disruptive conduct shall be grounds for
summary termination, by the President, of that person's privilege of address.

Steven Dowd read a statement regarding the Prop 218 process citing issues he had with the process
and the Board'’s action to increase the rates. Mr. Dowd served Directors Hanschild, Halpin, Uso and
Wadle with a Notice of Intention to Circulate a Recall Petition.

5. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes

1. Regular Meeting of December 12, 2017
2. Special Meeting of December 13, 2017

B. Financial Reports
1. Month End Cash Disbursements Report
2. Statement of Cash and Investment Balances

C. Adopt Resolution 2018-01 Authorizing the Change of Bank Signatory Authority

Possible Board Action: Adopt Resolution 2018-01 authorizing change of bank signatory
authority.

D. Adopt Resolution 2018-02 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an Amendment to
the Professional Services Agreement with EN2, Extending the Term of the Agreement.

Possible Board Action: Adopt Resolution 2018-02 authorizing the Amendment to the
Agreement with EN2.

Motion by Director Hanschild to approve the Consent Calendar. Second by Director Halpin.
Public Comment: None
The motion passed unanimously.
6. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
A. President’s Report

No report.

GDPUD Regular Meeting Minutes, January ¢, 2018 Page 2 of 7



B. Board Reports
No reports.
C. General Manager’s Report

General Manager Steve Palmer provided an update on staffing, indicating the Water Resources
Manager position will soon be filled, and interviews are being scheduled to fill the vacant
Administrative Aide 2 position.

Mr. Palmer stated that his reports will now include information on matters that will be coming up
for the Board’s consideration. He provided brief information on the following upcoming agenda
items:

% Approving Board attendance at the ACWA Spring Conference.

®
°

Standardizing District Purchasing Policy with Government Practices.

0,
°

Approving Mid-year Budget Adjustments.
% Setting a Goal-setting Board Workshop.
< Approving Updates to the District’s Policy Manual.
% Approving an Agreement with the El Dorado Water Agency for a Cost-Sharing Program.
% Reviewing Wastewater Zone Fees.
% Conducting a Mid-Year Update to the 5-year Capital Improvement Plan.
% Approving a PGE Request for an Antenna Lease Agreement at the Hotchkiss Hill Tank.
% Approving Updates to the Personnel Manual.
< Approving Updates to the Capital Facilities Charge.
% Approving Plans and Specifications for the CABY Canal Lining Project.
Mr. Palmer stated that the Finance Committee is currently comprised of three members and is
scheduled to meet the following week. The District is advertising for new members with the

intention of leaving the application period open to make sure those interested will have an
opportunity to apply and be considered for a Board appointment.

Lastly, the General Manager announced that Monday is the Dr. Martin Luther King holiday so
the office will be closed.

D. Operation Manager’s Report
Mr. Palmer gave the Operation Manager’s Report on behalf of Darrell Creeks who was at training.

Things are operating normally, as of yesterday, the spilling that is great news for us. Crews
dealing with fewer leaks, normal during the winter. Cleaning 4,000 feet of ditches. Starting
hydrant flushing program to make sure the system works and the District can report his will affect
home owner’s insurance. Report that the district does this to give customers a benefit for a
reduced insurance rate. Director Souza offered to assist in this effort.

GDPUD Regular Meeting Minutes, January 9, 2018 Fage 3 of 7



E. ALT Treatment Plant Update

Engineering Consultant George Sanders indicated that because several members of the public
are present and with a new Board member, he would provide additional background on the ALT
to provide attendees a greater understanding of the work activities that occurred during the month
of December. He stated that much of the activities centered around the filter building.

Mr. Sanders explained that the loan with the State is on a draw as needed basis. Thus far, the
District has captured six payments for a total of approximately $3M from the SRF loan.

Mr. Sanders stated that Legal Counsel successfully negotiated the loan agreement with State
that minimized that amount of funds required of the District for the project. Both Mr. Sanders and
Director Uso explained the State’s requirement that the District collect funds to cover an extra
year’s loan payments.

Mr. Sanders reported that the project continues fo be on time and on budget.
F. Presentation on the Operation of ALTWTP

Mr. Sanders stated that this presentation was requested by the Board after discussions that have
progressed over a lengthy period relative to the operational needs of the new facility.

The purpose of this presentation is to help the community understand the existing system and
what we will have when the ALT Water Treatment Plant project is hopefully completed in
December. Additionally, questions have been raised as to whether the technology in the new
plant could result in a reduction or a decrease in operational needs. Mr. Sanders explained that
the District has two plants with a dedicated plant operator for each. Coverage less than that is
unrealistic and a conclusion as to operational needs will not likely be reached until the new plant
is complete.

Through a Power Point presentation, Mr. Sanders provided a comparison of the existing plant
and the new plant through schematic drawings and photos describing key elements of the water
treatment process.

7. NEW BUSINESS
A. Review and Accept the 2016-2017 Audit Report

Possible Board Action: Receive and file.

Craig Fechter of Fechter & Company reported there were no specific findings or
recommendations in the audit report. He stated that overall there was positive income in the
fiscal year so there have been improvements financially.

Director Wadle referenced the obligations listed in the report. He stated that people should
understand how the District is impacted by forces beyond our control, such as the pension liability.
The Board was receptive to Mr. Fechter’s offer to provide the Board with a presentation on PERS.

Director Wadle reiterated Mr. Fechter’s comments that it was a clean audit and internal controls
are good. Mr. Fechter further stated that the current arrangement of having outside independent
auditors was a positive thing for the District.

GDPUD Reguiar Meeting Minutes, January S, 2018 rage 4 of 7



B. Adopt Resolution 2018-03 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an Amendment to
the Professional Services Agreement with VID, Adding Services and Increasing the
Amount by $53,760.

Possible Board Action: Adopt Resolution 2018-03 authorizing the amendment to the
Agreement with Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP.

Mr. Palmer described the current staffing changes and indicated that VTD has provided a very
capable staff person skilled in accounting to take over Accounts Payable duties.

Motion by Director Wadle to adopt Resolution 2018-03 authorizing the General Manager to
execute an amendment to the agreement with VTD. Second by Director Halpin.

Public Comment: Steve Dowd commented on the high cost of consultants.

Cherie Carlyon asked how the job openings were advertised wanting to be sure that the District
reached out locally. Mr. Palmer indicated the job announcement was posted on the website and
a press release was issued.

Vote: The motion passed unanimously.
C. Consider Funding for Automated Meter Replacement Project
Possible Board Action: Provide direction on whether to proceed with the SRF loan application.

The General Manager provided a summary of the automated meter replacement project and
described the funding options that have been considered for the approximately $1.7M project.

Rick Gillespie stated that the previous Finance Committee reviewed and supported the
proposal to replace meters with the thought that the District could gain revenue by improving
the system for calculating usage.

The Board directed Staff to proceed with researching funding options and an application for a
10-year SRF loan. Mr. Palmer indicated that staff will keep the Board updated on the process.

D. Adopt Resolution 2018-04 Low-Income Assistance Program Policy

Possible Board Action: Determine dollar amount for discount being offered by the program and
adopt Resolution 2018-03 approving the Low-Income Rate Assistance Program Policy.

Mr. Palmer provided an overview of the proposed program policy.

Director Halpin commented that the if there was 100% participation in the program at a 25%
discount, it would total to $75,000. The General Manager stated that it is not realistic to expect
a 100% participation. In fact, a review of similar programs, showed the participation level to be
no more than 6%.

Director Halpin stated that the State is considering a LIRA Program and the District should wait

to see what the State does. Director Uso stated that if the State comes up with a LIRA plan; the
District’s program would stop. Director Wadle stated that he heard the State’s proposal is being

pushed back.

Director Uso stated that this is an opportunity to start a program that has never been done
before. We have a reasonable format with a 25% subsidy for some of these folks on a first-

GDPUD Regular Meeting Minutes, January S, 2018 Page 5 of 7



come, first-serve basis. He stated that he feels this was a commitment by the Board when
$35,000 was set aside for this program during the rate increase process.

Director Hanschild stated that ratepayers were told that the District would come up with an
assistance program for customers in need.

Director Wadle asked that the Board consider spending the next four to five months marketing
the program and begin accepting applications.

Director Uso questioned the amount the General Manager estimated for administrative costs.
Director Halpin agreed. Mr. Palmer stated it is for staff time and resources for outreach as
requested by the Board.

Director Halpin stated the Board’s Mission Statement doesn’t even vaguely suggest that this is
part of our mission. It’s not a good idea. We should be focused on our mission.

Director Souza stated that he thinks the Board should hold off implementing this program until
finances are back in order, get a greater understanding of participation levels and costs, and
then decide whether to move forward.

Director Hanschild stated that the LIRA could be implemented during the second billing cycle
and during those four months gather applications to get a better idea of participation level, and
how staff time will be impacted.

Director Hanschild asked if a volunteer could manage the program; Legal Counsel indicated
this was not possible because customer information is confidential.

Mr. Palmer stated that this is not yet budgeted and a budget adjustment will need to be done in
February. He agreed that it is better to wait to adopt the policy and to do it in conjunction with
the mid-year budget adjustment.

Director Uso emphasized that the District cannot use ratepayers’ money to fund this program.
The only reason we can do this is with ad valorem funds. We must wait for the ad valorem
funds to come in before we can initiate this program.

Director Wadle stated that he shares concern for the low-income community, but he wants to do
this right. This should be done during the budget planning process in the next 4-5 months.
Director Halpin agreed.

In response to Director Uso, the General Manager indicated that hopefully the mid-year budget
adjustment can be considered at next month’s meeting.

Motion by Director Souza to table the Low-Income Rate Assistance Program to next
month and direct Staff to bring this back for Board consideration in conjunction with the
mid-year budget adjustment. Second by Director Halpin.

Public Comment: Cherie Carlyon commented that this assistance is not a drop in the bucket
for those in need and added that she strongly disagrees with the high administrative costs.

Vote: The motion passed unanimously.
E. Adopt Resolution 2018-06 Policy Guidelines for Developing Board Position on Legislation

Possible Board Action: Adopt Resolution 2018-06 approving the policy guidelines and by
motion action designate a Director as the legislative liaison.

GDPUD Regular Meeting Minutes, January 9, 2018 Page 6 of 7



Mr. Palmer provided some background on the need for this policy.

Director Wadle was designated as the Legislative Liaison.

Motion by Director Halpin adopt Resolution 2018-06. Second by Director Wadle.
Public Comment: None.

The motion passed.

8. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION - at 5:15 PM.

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - LABOR NEGOTIATION. Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54954.5(f) and Government Code 54957.6)

District Representatives: General Manager Steven Palmer; District General Counsel
Employee Organization: International Union of Operating Engineers Stationary Engineers, Local
No. 39

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION. Significant exposure
to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of Government Code section
54956.9 (one potential case).

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - POTENTIAL LITIGATION. Significant exposure to
litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of Government Code section
54956.9 (one case).

The Board returned to open session at 6:24 with one reportable action relative to the Mecklenberg
case. Legal Counsel Barbara Brenner stated that Mecklenberg will dismiss the lawsuit with
prejudice and take no reward. Each party to bear their own costs.

9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS, REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONS TO FUTURE MEETING
AGENDAS AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION OR RESEARCH TO BE COMPLETED BY
STAFF —Opportunity for Board members to discuss matters of interest to them and provide input for
future meetings as well as report on their District-related meeting attendance.

10. NEXT MEETING DATE AND ADJOURNMENT — Next regular meeting is February 13, 2018, at
2:00 PM, at the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District, 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, CA
95634.

The Board adjourned to the next regular meeting at 6:26 PM.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a disability-
related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact Steve Palmer by telephone at
530-333-4356 or by fax at 530-333-9442. Requests must be made as early as possible and at least one-full
business day before the start of the meeting. In accordance with Government Code Section 54954. 2(a), this
agenda was posted on the District’s bulletin board at the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District office, at 6425

reet, Georgetown, California, on January 5, 2017.

Mot It S

Stéver Pal\v’ner, PE, General Manager Date

GDPUD Regular Meeting Minutes, January 9, 2018 Page 7 of 7



GDPUD Board Meeting of 1/9/2018
AGENDA ITEM NO. 5B.1

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
MONTH END CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORTS

December 2017



Date.,.: Jan 5, 2018 Georgetown Divide PUD Page: 1

Time...: 10:20 am BOARD CHECK REVIEW List: BOAR
Run by.: Christina Cross ID #: PYDMPH
Check# Check Date Vend# Vendor Name Description Check Amount
028443 12/20/17 AARO1 AARP MEDICARERX SAVER PLUS, PD AARP MEDICARE M DAVIS JANUARY 2018 44.20
Sub-Total: (1) 44.20
Sub-Count: 1

028444 12/20/17 ACWO0S ACWA/JPIA HEALTH HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUMS JANUARY 2018 3357.11
028444 12/20/17 ACW0S5 ACWA/JPIA HEALTH HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUMS JANUARY 2018 7090.16
028444 12/20/17 ACW05 ACWA/JPIA HEALTH HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUMS JANUARY 2018 4537.16
028444 12/20/17 ACWO05 ACWA/JPIA HEALTH HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUMS JANUARY 2018 10227.84
028444 12/20/17 ACWO5 ACWA/JPIA HEALTH HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUMS JANUARY 2018 2242.15
028444 12/20/17 ACW05 ACWA/JPIA HEALTH HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUMS JANUARY 2018 7537.87
028444 12/20/17 ACWO0S5 ACWA/JPIA HEALTH HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUMS JANUARY 2018 2232.79
028444 12/20/17 ACW05 ACWA/JPIA HEALTH HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUMS JANUARY 2018 4090.46
Sub-Total: (1) 41315.54
Sub-Count: 8

028445 12/20/17 ADT01 ADT SECURITY SERVICES SECURITY SERVICES 12/20/17-01/09/18 8180 BALDERSTO 42.08
028445 12/20/17 ADTO01 ADT SECURITY SERVICES SECURITY SERVICE 12/21/17-01/20/18 6425 MAIN ST 153.84
Sub-Total: (1) 195.92
Sub-Count: 2

028446 12/20/17 AMEOS8 AMERICAN MESSAGING PAGER SERVICE 12/1/17-2/28/18 15.86
028446 12/20/17 AMEO8 AMERICAN MESSAGING PAGER SERVICE 12/1/17-2/28/18 31.74
028446 12/20/17 AMEQO8 AMERICAN MESSAGING PAGER SERVICE 12/1/17-2/28/18 15.87
Sub-Total: (1) 63.47
Sub-Count: 3

028447 12/20/17 BLUO1 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS Prepaid HEALTH INSURANCE J. MANZER 1/1-1/31/18 265.19
028447 12/20/17 BLUO1 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS Prepaid HEALTH INSURANCE H. MANZER 1/1-1/31/18 265.19
028447 12/20/17 BLUQ1 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS Prepaid HEALTH INSURANCE R. PRINCE JR 1/1-1/31/18 227.97
028447 12/20/17 BLUO1 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS Prepaid HEALTH INSURANCE 1/1-1/31/18 292.50
Sub-Total: (1) 1050.85
Sub-Count: 4

028448 12/20/17 CAL16 CALTRONICS BUSINESS SYSTEMS CO COPIER CONTRACT 11/14-12/13/17 543.49
Sub-Total: (1) 543.49
Sub-Count: 1

028449 12/20/17 CHUO2 CHURCHWELL WHITE, LLP GENERAL COUNSEL 3815.69
028449 12/20/17 CHUO2 CHURCEWELL WHITE, LLP MECKLENBERG V. GDPUD 3587.94
028449 12/20/17 CHUQ2 CHURCHWELL WHITE, LLP PROP 218 - 2017 1444.00
028449 12/20/17 CHUO2 CHURCHWELL WHITE, LLP HR 6693.36
Sub-Total: (1) 15540.99
Sub-Count: 4

028450 12/20/17 CLS01 CLS LABS ANNUAL TITLE 22 MONITORING 735.98
028450 12/20/17 CLS01 CLS LABS ROUTINE DIST. SYST. BACTERIA 44.10
028450 12/20/17 CLS01 CLS LABS ROUTINE DIST. SYST. BACTERIA 44.10
028450 12/20/17 CLS01 CLS LABS ANNUAL TITLE 22 MONITORING 1283.60
028450 12/20/17 CLS01 CLS LABS MONTHLY TREATMENT - RAW 78.40
028450 12/20/17 CLS01 CLS LABS DIST. SPECIAL SAMPLES 29.40
Sub-Total: (1) 2225.58
Sub-Count: 6

028451 12/20/17 DELOS5 DELAGE LANDEN, INC COPIER CONTRACT 12/1-12/31/17 228.20
028451 12/20/17 DELO5 DELAGE LANDEN, INC FORMAX FOLDING MACHINE CONTRACT 12/1-12/31/17 185.65
Sub-Total: (1) 413.85

Sub-Count: 2

028452 12/20/17 FERO1 FERRELLGAS Utilities-PROPANE 616.19

Sub-Total: (1) 616.19



Date...: Jan 5, 2018 Georgetown Divide PUD Page: 2
Time. . 10:20 am BOARD CHECK REVIEW List: BOAR
Run by.: Christina Cross ID #: PYDMPH

Check# Check Date Vend# Vendor Name

Sub-Count: 1

028453 12/20/17 FIS01 MICHAEL FISHER

Sub-Total: (1)

Sub-Count: 1

028454 12/20/17 MEDO1 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES

028454 12/20/17 MEDO1 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES

028454 12/20/17 MEDO1 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES

028454 12/20/17 MEDO1 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES

028454 12/20/17 MED01 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES

028454 12/20/17 MEDO1 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES

028454 12/20/17 MEDO1 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES
Sub-Total: (1)

Sub-Count: 7

028455 12/20/17 PRO04 PAUL FUNK

Sub-Total: (1)

Sub-Count: 1

028456 12/20/17 SCHO6 DONALD SCHWAGEL

028456 12/20/17 SCHO6 DONALD SCHWAGEL

Sub-Total: (1)

Sub-Count: 2

028457 12/20/17 SWR01 SWRCB ACCOUNTING OFFICE

028457 12/20/17 SWR01 SWRCB ACCOUNTING OFFICE

028457 12/20/17 SWR01 SWRCB ACCOUNTING OFFICE
Sub-Total: (1)

Sub-Count: 3

028458 12/20/17 UNIO6 UNITEDHEALTHCARE INSURANCE CO
Sub-Total: (1)

Sub-Count: 1

028459 12/20/17 UNIO7 UNITEDHEALTHCARE CLAIM DIVISIO
Sub-Total: (1)

Sub-Count: 1

028460 12/20/17 USB0O5 U.S. BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SY
028460 12/20/17 USB05 U.S. BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SY
028460 12/20/17 USB05 U.S. BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SY
028460 12/20/17 USB05 U.S. BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SY
028460 12/20/17 USBO5 U.S. BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SY
028460 12/20/17 USB0S U.S. BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SY
028460 12/20/17 USB05 U.S. BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SY
028460 12/20/17 USBO5 U.S. BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SY
028460 12/20/17 USB05 U.S. BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SY
Sub-Total: (1)

Sub-Count: 9

028461 12/20/17 VAV0O1l VAVRINEK, TRINE, DAY & CO., LL
Sub-Total: (1)

Sub-Count: 1

028462 12/20/17 YOUO1 YOUNGDAHL CONSULTING GRP.

Sub-Total: (1)
Sub-Count: 1

Description Check Amount

WORK PANTS PER MOU REIMBURSEMENT 100.00
100.00

VISION INSURANCE JAN 2018 18.74
VISION INSURANCE JAN 2018 46.85
VISION INSURANCE JAN 2018 18.74
VISION INSURANCE JAN 2018 46.85
VISION INSURANCE JAN 2018 28.11
VISION INSURANCE JAN 2018 191.11
VISION INSURANCE JAN 2018 9.37
359.77

CLEANING SERVICES FOR DEC 2017 250.00
250.00

MEDICAL OVERPAYMENT REIMBURSEMENT 137.50
MEDICAL OVERPAYMENT REIMBURSEMENT -31.50
106.00

ANNUAL PERMIT FE TREATED WATER 7-01/17-6/30/18 500.00
ANNUAL PERMIT FEE 7/01/17-6/30/18 14929.00
ANNUAL PERMIT FEE 7/1/17-6/30/18 2088.00
17517.00

PREPAID HEALTH INSURANCE D SCHWAGEL 1/1-1/31/18 149.25
149.25

PREPAY HEALTH INSURANCE J ST DENNIS 1/1-1/31/18 153.85
153.85

COSTCO 34.31
ANSWERING SPECIALISTS INC 144.95
COSTCO 12.54
MICROSOFT 16.00
MICROSOFT 12.00
MICROSOFT 73.50
COSTCO 122.23
STAMPS . COM 400.00
STAMPS . COM 15.99
831.52

2017 PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 370.00
370.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES THROUGH 11/30/17 1411.00
1411.00



Date...: Jan 5, 2018 Georgetown Divide PUD Page: 3
Time...: 10:20 am BOARD CHECK REVIEW List: BOAR
Run by.: Christina Cross ID #: PYDMPH
Check# Check Date Vend# Vendor Name Description Check Amount
028463 12/20/17 CAL18 California State Disbursement PAYROLL CLEARING-N.TILMAN 366.92
Sub-Total: (1) 366.92
Sub-Count: 1

028464 12/20/17 ICM02 ICMA-R.T.-457 (ee) Payroll withholding-ICMA 1349.75
Sub-Total: (1) 1349.75
Sub-Count: 1

028465 12/20/17 IUO01 IUOE, LOCAL 39 Union Dues Payable-LOCAL 39 343.53
Sub-Total: (1) 343.53
Sub-Count: 1

028466 12/20/17 IU002 PEU LOCAL #1 UNION DUES-LOCAL 1 129.99
Sub-Total: (1) 129.99
Sub-Count: 1

028467 01/03/18 AFLO1 AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE INS AFLAC Premiums 1345.58
Sub-Total: (1) 1345.58
Sub-Count: 1

028468 01/03/18 CAL18 California State Disbursement PAYROLL CLEARING-N.TILMAN 366.92
Sub-Total: (1) 366.92
Sub-Count: 1

028469 01/03/18 ICM02 ICMA-R.T.-457 (ee) Payroll withholding-ICMA 1348.75
Sub-Total: (1) 1349.75
Sub-Count: 1

028470 01/03/18 IUC01 IUOE, LOCAL 39 Union Dues Payable-LOCAL 39 343.53
Sub-Total: (1) 343.53
Sub-Count: 1

028471 01/03/18 IUO02 PEU LOCAL #1 UNION DUES-LOCAL 1 143.33
Sub-Total: (1) 143.33
Sub-Count: 1

028472 01/03/18 SWR04 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL PRINCIPAL PAYMENT THROUGH JUNE 30, 2017 253.62
028472 01/03/18 SWR04 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL PRINCIPAL PAYMENT THROUGH NOV 22, 2017 15516.54
Sub-Total: (1) 15770.16
Sub-Count: 2

028473 01/09/18 ALLO1 ALLEN KRAUSE UNIT #10 FUEL REPLACEMENT 231.71
Sub-Total: (1) 231.71
Sub-Count: 1

028474 01/09/18 AMEO8 AMERICAN MESSAGING PAGECOPY USAG JAN 22 2017 10.33
Sub-Total: (1) 10.33
Sub-Count: 1

028475 01/09/18 ANDO1 ANDERSON'S SIERRA PIPE CO MATERIAL AND SUPPLIES 266.06
Sub-Total: (1) 266.06

Sub-Count: 1



Date...: Jan 5,
Time...: 10:20 am
Run by.:

2018

Georgetown Divide PUD
BOARD CHECK REVIEW

Christina Cross

Check# Check Date Vend# Vendor Name

028476 01/09/18

Sub-Total: (1)
Sub-Count: 1

028477 01/09/18

Sub-Total: (1)
Sub-Count: 1

028478
028478
028478
028478
028478
028478
028478
028478

01/09/18
01/09/18
01/09/18
01/09/18
01/09/18
01/09/18
01/09/18
01/09/18

Sub-Total: (1)
Sub-Count: 8

028479 01/09/18

Sub-Total: (1)
Sub-Count: 1

028480 01/09/18
028480 01/09/18

Sub-Total: (1)
Sub-Count: 2

028481 01/09/18

Sub-Total: (1)
Sub-Count: 1

028482 01/09/18

Sub-Total: (1)
Sub-Count: 1

028483 01/09/18

Sub-Total: (1)
Sub-Count: 1

028484 01/09/18
028484 01/09/18
028484 01/09/18

Sub-Total: (1)
Sub-Count: 3

028485 01/09/18

Sub-Total: (1)
Sub-Count: 1

028486 01/09/18

Sub-Total: (1)
Sub-Count: 1

028487 01/09/18
028487 01/09/18

AQUO1

ATTO2
ATTO02
ATTO2
ATTO2
ATTO2
ATTO2
ATTO2
ATTO02

BARO7

BEAO1
BEAO1

BENO4

CARO8

CCsSo1

CLSO01
CLS01
CLSO01

CONO1

CWS01

DIVO05
DIVO5

ANSWERING SPECIALISTS INC
AQUA SIERRA CONTROLS INC.
AT&T

AT&T

AT&T

AT&T

AT&T

AT&T

AT&T

AT&T

BARBOUR, CHRIS

BUTTE EQUIPMENT RENTALS
BUTTE EQUIPMENT RENTALS
BENNETT ENGINEERING SERVICES
CSI

CCSINTERACTIVE

CLS LABS

CLS LABS

CLS LABS

CONTINENTAL SUPPLY CO.
CORBIN WILLITS SYS. INC.
PLACERVILLE AUTO PARTS, INC
PLACERVILLE AUTO PARTS, INC

Description

ANSWERING SERVICE PACKAGE

FLOW METER INSTALLATION

UTILITIES - PHONE 530-333-9442 12/14/18-01/13/18
UTILITIES- PHONE 234-371-7957 12/14/17-1/13/18
UTILITIES- PHONE 530-333-4356 12/14/17-1/13/18
UTILITIES- PHONE 530-333-4356 12/14/17-1/13/18
UTILITIES- PHONE 530-333-4356 12/14/17-1/13/18
UTILITIES-PHONE 530-333-1119

UTILITIES- PHONE 530-885-6287

UTILITIES-PHONE 234-343-7252

WATER TREATMENT EXAMINATION

TRUCKING DITCH CAMP
ROCK FOR PIPE JCB

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES THROUGH 11/1-11/30/17

MONTHLY SERVICE FEE JANUARY 2018

JAN MONTHLY WEBSIT HOSTING

ROUTINE DIST. SYST. BACTERIA
ROUTINE DIST. SYST. BACTERIA
ROUTINE DIST SYST BACTERIA

CRUMBLES #8

MONTHLY CHARGE FOR JAN 2017

OIL
PARTS FOR CAT TRACTOR

Page: 4
List: BOAR
ID #: PYDMPH

Check Amount

54.67
10.45



Date...: Jan 5, 2018 Georgetown Divide PUD Page: 5

Time...: 10:20 am BOARD CHECK REVIEW List: BOAR
Run by.: Christina Cross ID #: PYDMPH
Check# Check Date Vend# Vendor Name Description Check Amount
028487 01/09/18 DIV0O5 PLACERVILLE AUTO PARTS, INC PARTS FOR CAT TRACTOR 10.45
028487 01/09/18 DIV05 PLACERVILLE AUTO PARTS, INC PARTS FOR CAT TRACTOR 10.45
028487 01/09/18 DIV05 PLACERVILLE AUTO PARTS, INC PARTS FOR CAT TRACTOR 10.44
028487 01/09/18 DIV0O5 PLACERVILLE AUTO PARTS, INC MATERIAL AND SUPPLIES 106.67
028487 01/09/18 DIV05 PLACERVILLE AUTO PARTS, INC AUTOMOTIVE V-BELT 12.86
Sub-Total: (1) 215.99
Sub-Count: 7

028488 01/09/18 ECO01 ECORP CONSULTING, INC. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR OCTOBER 2017 1909.86
028488 01/09/18 ECO01 ECORP CONSULTING, INC. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR NOVEMBER 2017 1909.86
028488 01/09/18 ECO01 ECORP CONSULTING, INC. JULY 11, 2017 PSA 597.50
028488 01/09/18 ECO01 ECORP CONSULTING, INC. JULY 11, 2017 PSA 10439.84
Sub-Total: (1) 14857.06
Sub-Count: 4

028489 01/09/18 EDLO1 ISAAC EDELMAN JEAN REIMBURSEMENT 100.00
Sub-Total: (1) 100.00
Sub-Count: 1

028490 01/09/18 ELD16 EL DORADO DISPOSAL UTILITIES-GARBAGE 6425 MAIN ST 12/1-12/31/17 103.58
028490 01/09/18 ELD16 EL DORADO DISPOSAL UTILITIES- GARBAGE 3650 SWEETWATER 12/1-12/31/17 105.17
028490 01/09/18 ELD16 EL DORADO DISPOSAL UTILITIES-GARBAGE 8180 BALDERSTON 12/1-12/31/17 105.17
Sub-Total: (1) 313.92
Sub-Count: 3

028491 01/09/18 FERO2 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC DRESSER 1026.13
Sub-Total: (1) 1026.13
Sub-Count: 1

028492 01/09/18 GAR02 GARDEN VALLEY FEED & HDW. MATERIAL AND SUPPLIES 1145.76
Sub-Total: (1) 1145.76
Sub-Count: 1

028493 01/09/18 GEIO2 GEI Consultants, Inc. 2017 PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 10293.52
Sub-Total: (1) 10293.52
Sub-Count: 1

028494 01/09/18 GEOO01 GEORGETOWN ACE HDW MATERIAL AND SUPPLIES - BATTERIES 30.53
028494 01/09/18 GEOO01 GEORGETOWN ACE HDW MATERIAL AND SUPPLIES FOR TRUCK #10 & #11 8.57
028494 01/09/18 GEOO1 GEORGETCWN ACE HDW PIPE JOB 92.18
028494 01/09/18 GEO01 GEORGETOWN ACE HDW PIPE JOB 20.37
028494 01/09/18 GEOO01 GEORGETOWN ACE HDW PIPE JOB 20.37
028494 01/09/18 GEO01 GEORGETOWN ACE HDW PIPE JOB 5.31
028494 01/09/18 GEO01l GEORGETOWN ACE HDW PIPE JOB 5.31
028494 01/09/18 GEO01 GEORGETOWN ACE HDW PARTS FOR SERVICE REPAIR 71.45
Sub-Total: (1) 254.09
Sub-Count: 8

028495 01/09/18 GEO03 STEPHANIE BECK NOTARY-TRANSFER OF TITLE DMV 15.00
028495 01/09/18  GEO03 STEPHANIE BECK DONUT FOR STAFF MEETING 25.90
028495 01/09/18 GEO03 STEPHANIE BECK POSTAGE FOR SAFETY VIDEO RETURN 3.96
028495 01/09/18 GEO03 STEPHANIE BECK DONUTS FOR STAFF MEETING 23.90
028495 01/09/18 GEOO03 STEPHANIE BECK POSTAGE FOR SAFETY VIDEOC RETURN 6.65
028495 01/09/18 GEO03 STEPHANIE BECK MATERIALS FOR OFFICE 9.20
028495 01/09/18 GEO03 STEPHANIE BECK DONUTS FOR STAFF MEETING 24.90
028495 01/09/18 GEO03 STEPHANIE BECK BATTERY FOR ANGEL CAMP TANK 35.55
028495 01/09/18 GEO03 STEPHANIE BECK POSTAGE FOR SAFETY VIDEO RETURN 6.65
Sub-Total: (1) 151.71

Sub-Count: 9



Date...: Jan 5, 2018 Georgetown Divide PUD Page: 6

Time...: 10:20 am BOARD CHECK REVIEW List: BOAR
Run by.: Christina Cross ID #: PYDMPH
Check# Check Date Vend# Vendor Name Description Check Amount
028496 01/09/18 GEO04 DIVIDE SUPPLY ACE HARDWARE MATERIAL AND SUPPLIES FOR CDS 13.70
028496 01/09/18 GEO04 DIVIDE SUPPLY ACE HARDWARE MATERIAL AND SUPPLIES FOR PUMP STATIONS 35.53
Sub-Total: (1) 49.23
Sub-Count: 2

028497 01/09/18 GEO12 GEORGE SANDERS CABY DECEMBER 2017 560.00
028497 01/09/18 GEO12 GEORGE SANDERS AUBURN LAKE TRAILS WATER TREATMENT PLANT PROJECT 5613.80
Sub-Total: (1) 6173.80
Sub-Count: 2

028498 01/09/18 GEO15 GEOCON CONSULTANTS INC RATE SCHEDULE LABO THROUGH 10/30-11/26/17 1300.00
Sub-Total: (1) 1300.00
Sub-Count: 1

028499 01/09/18 HACO01 HACH COMPANY QUUARTERLY REAGENTS FOR TREATMENT PLANTS 675.67
Sub-Total: (1) 675.67
Sub-Count: 1

028500 01/09/18 HARO3 HARRIS INDUSTRIAL GASES 6 MONTH LEASE 12/2017-6/2018 48.00
Sub-Total: (1) 48.00
Sub-Count: 1

028501 01/09/18 HOLO3 HOLT OF CALIFORNIA PARTS FOR TRACTOR 243.94
028501 01/09/18 HOL03 HOLT OF CALIFORNIA PARTS FOR TRACTOR 243.94
028501 01/09/18 HOLO3 HOLT OF CALIFORNIA PARTS FOR TRACTOR 243,95
028501 01/09/18 HOL03 HOLT OF CALIFORNIA PULLY FOR DOZER 125.31
028501 01/09/18 HOLO3 HOLT OF CALIFORNIA PULLY FOR DOZER 125.31
028501 01/09/18 HOLO03 HOLT OF CALIFORNIA PULLY FOR DOZER 125.30
Sub-Total: (1) 1107.75
Sub-Count: 6

028502 01/09/18 MJT01 MJT ENTERPRISES, INC. TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE WAGES G OMANIA 11/27-11/29/17 548.80
028502 01/09/18 MJT01 MJT ENTERPRISES, INC. TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE WAGES G OMANIA 11/27-11/29/17 19.60
028502 01/09/18 MJT01 MJT ENTERPRISES, INC. TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE WAGES G OMANIA 11/27-11/29/17 19.60
028502 01/09/18 MJT01 MJT ENTERPRISES, INC. TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE WAGES G OMANIA 12/4-12/7/17 588.00
028502 01/09/18 MJT01 MJT ENTERPRISES, INC. TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE WAGES G OMANIA 12/4-12/7/17 176.40
028502 01/09/18 MJT01 MJT ENTERPRISES, INC. TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE WAGES G OMANIA 12/11-12/15/17 568.40
028502 01/09/18 MJT01 MJT ENTERPRISES, INC. TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE WAGES G OMANIA 12/11-12/15/17 39.20
028502 01/09/18 MJT01 MJT ENTERPRISES, INC. TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE WAGES G OMANIA 12/18-12/24/17 470.40
028502 01/09/18 MJT01 MJT ENTERPRISES, INC. TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE WAGES G OMANIA 12/18-12/24/17 19.60
Sub-Total: (1) 2450.00
Sub-Count: 9

028503 01/09/18 MOBO1 MOBILE MINI, LLC-CA STORAGE RENTAL 12/27/17-1/23/18 184.39
Sub-Total: (1) 184.39
Sub-Count: 1

028504 01/09/18 NBS01 NBS QUARTERLY ADMIN FEES 1/1-3/31/18 678.6%
028504 01/09/18 NBSO01 NBS QUARTERLY ADMIN FEES 1/1-3/31/18 339.29
Sub-Total: (1) 1017.98
Sub-Count: 2

028505 01/09/18 PAC02 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Utilities-ELECTRI 7727208388-0 2307.03
028505 01/09/18 PAC02 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Utilities-ELECTRI 0967683154-9 5706.03
028505 01/09/18 PAC02 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Utilities-ELECTRI 9644745072-5 67.99
028505 01/09/18 PAC02 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Utilities-ELECTRI 1383483826-3 23.43
028505 01/09/18 PAC02 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Utilities-ELECTRI 8019291332-7 19.74
028505 01/09/18 PAC02 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Utilities-ELECTRI 9592050405-7 25.44
028505 01/09/18 PAC02 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Utilities-ELECTRI 7269328928-1 21.03
028505 01/09/18 PAC02 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Utilities-ELECTRI 9103062795-3 250.92



Date...: Jan 5, 2018 Georgetown Divide PUD Page: 7

Time...: 10:20 am BOARD CHECK REVIEW List: BOAR
Run by.: Christina Cross ID #: PYDMPH
Check# Check Date Vend# Vendor Name Description Check Amount
028505 01/09/18 PAC02 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Utilities-ELECTRI 0800178691-5 50.40
028505 01/09/18 PAC02 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Utilities-ELECTRIC 2102211877-8 134.47
028505 01/09/18 PAC02 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Utilities-ELECTRIC 7804325001-4 10.82
028505 01/09/18 PAC02 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Utilities-ELECTRIC 2060545213-3 380.83
028505 01/09/18 PAC02 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Utilities-ELECTRIC 2060545213-3 126.94
028505 01/09/18 PAC02 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Utilities-ELECTRIC 6228064022-8 452.84
Sub-Total: (1) 9577.91
Sub-Count: 14

028506 01/09/18 POW01l POWERNET GLOBAL COMM. Utilities- LONG DISTANCE 11/19-12/19/17 129.19
Sub-Total: (1) 129.19
Sub-Count: 1

028507 01/09/18 PREO1 PREMIER ACCESS INS CO DENTAL INSURANCE JANUARY 2018 167.34
028507 01/09/18 PREO1 PREMIER ACCESS INS CO DENTAL INSURANCE JANUARY 2018 223.12
028507 01/09/18 PREO1 PREMIER ACCESS INS CO DENTAL INSURANCE JANUARY 2018 55.78
028507 01/09/18 PREO1 PREMIER ACCESS INS CO DENTAL INSURANCE JANUARY 2018 278.90
028507 01/09/18 PREO1 PREMIER ACCESS INS CO DENTAL INSURANCE JANUARY 2018 167.34
028507 01/09/18 PRE0O1 PREMIER ACCESS INS CO DENTAL INSURANCE JANUARY 2018 1785.33
028507 01/09/18 PREO1 PREMIER ACCESS INS CO DENTAL INSURANCE JANUARY 2018 111.56
Sub-Total: (1) 2789.37
Sub-Count: 7

028508 01/09/18 PSO01 PSOMAS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 10/27-11/23/17 6305.00
Sub-Total: (1) 6305.00
Sub-Count: 1

028509 01/09/18 PULO1 PULFER, JEFF WATER TREATMENT CERT. EXAM FEE 70.00
Sub-Total: (1) 70.00
Sub-Count: 1

028510 01/09/18 ROBO1 DON ROBINSON HIGH PERFORMANCE MIX 2668.38
Sub-Total: (1) 2668.38
Sub-Count: 1

028511 01/09/18 ROB02 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES T & D RAW WATER FUEL USAGE ALLOCATION 589.65
028511 01/09/18 ROB02 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES WATER TREATMENT FUEL USAGE ALLOCATION 188.55
028511 01/09/18 ROB02 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES T & D TREATED WTR FUEL USAGE ALLOCATION 1209.02
028511 01/09/18 ROB02 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES ZONE FUEL USAGE ALLOCATION 90.27
028511 01/09/18 ROB0O2 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES UPCOUNTRY FUEL USAGE ALLOCATION 229.71
028511 01/09/18 ROB02 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES ADMIN. FUEL USAGE ALLOCATION .00
028511 01/09/18 ROB02 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES T & D RAW WATER FUEL USAGE ALLOCATION 334.73
028511 01/09/18 ROB02 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES WATER TREATMENT FUEL USAGE ALLOCATION 220.65
028511 01/09/18 ROB02 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES T & D TREATED WTR FUEL USAGE ALLOCATION 720.94
028511 01/09/18 ROB02 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES ZONE FUEL USAGE ALLOCATION 94.15
028511 01/09/18 ROB02 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES UPCOUNTRY FUEL USAGE ALLOCATION 164.20
028511 01/09/18 ROB02 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES ADMIN. FUEL USAGE ALLOCATION .00
Sub-Total: (1) 3841.87
Sub-Count: 12

028512 01/09/18 ROC02 KENNETH D. WELSH 9" SREEL TRIM BLADES SET & SHARPEN 150.00
028512 01/09/18 ROCO02 KENNETH D. WELSH 9" SREEL TRIM BLADES SET & SHARPEN 150.00
Sub-Total: (1) 300.00
Sub-Count: 2

028513 01/09/18 ROT03 ROTO-ROOQOTER USED HYDRO JETTER 355.00
Sub-Total: (1) 355.00

Sub-Count: 1

028514 01/09/18 ROY01l KENNETH ROYAL Utilities-PORTABLE RESTROOM SERV 460.00



Date...: Jan 5, 2018 Georgetown Divide PUD Page: 8

Time...: 10:20 am BOARD CHECK REVIEW List: BOAR
Run by.: Christina Cross ID #: PYDMPH
Check# Check Date Vend# Vendor Name Description Check Amount
Sub-Total: (1) 460.00
Sub-Count: 1

028515 01/09/18 SAN(02 Santander Leasing TRUCK LEASE PAYMENT 112.11
028515 01/09/18 SANO2 Santander Leasing TRUCK LEASE PAYMENT 1118.77
Sub-Total: (1) 1230.88
Sub-Count: 2

028516 01/09/18 SIE12 MICHAEL S. SALLAC #22 REPAIRS 70.00
028516 01/09/18  SIE12 MICHAEL S. SALLAC #22 REPAIRS 70.00
028516 01/09/18 SIE12 MICHAEL S. SALLAC #22 REPAIRS 70.00
028516 01/09/18 SIE12 MICHAEL S. SALLAC #22 REPAIRS 70.00
028516 01/09/18 SIE12 MICHAEL S. SALLAC #22 PARTS FOR DOZER 70.00
028516 01/09/18 SIE12 MICHAEL S. SALLAC #22 PARTS FOR DOZER 70.00
028516 01/09/18 SIE12 MICHAEL S. SALLAC #22 PARTS FOR DOZER 70.00
028516 01/09/18 SIE12 MICHAEL S. SALLAC #22 PARTS FOR DOZER 70.00
Sub-Total: (1) 560.00
Sub-Count: 8

028517 01/09/18 SIR01 REBECCA SIREN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 12/5/17-1/2/18 2625.00
028517 01/09/18 SIR01 REBECCA SIREN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 12/5/17-1/2/18 1050.00
Sub-Total: (1) 3675.00
Sub-Count: 2

028518 01/09/18 USB02 US BUREAU OF RECLAMATION OTTER CREEK LOAN PAYMENT #40 4538.51
Sub-Total: (1) 4538.51
Sub-Count: 1

028519 01/09/18 VAUO1 VAUGHN JOHNSON PROFESSIONAL SERVICES DEC 2017 1500.00
Sub-Total: (1) 1500.00
Sub-Count: 1

028520 01/09/18 WALO2 WALKER'S OFFICE SUPPLY OFFICE SUPPLIES 1531.53
Sub-Total: (1) 1531.53
Sub-Count: 1

028521 01/09/18 WELO2 WELLS FARGO BANK, NA WALTON LAKE ANNUAL RESERVE FEB 2018 2296.95
Sub-Total: (1) 2296.95
Sub-Count: 1

028522 01/09/18 \W001 WRIGHT, THOMAS MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR WRIOQ035 57.84
Sub-Total: (1) 57.84
Sub-Count: 1

Grn-Total: 211443.31

Ttl-Count: 212



810Z 0} /107 IWIS YSeDUUSWaIeIS UseOd

©
o
N 62'1¥9'822'8% lejol pueln
W %801 15'022'0L6'9 pun4 jusunsaau| Aouaby (2007
S %002 sysodeq awi | pasexoig ofiled sliom
o M 000 12°8S85'vy S)UN020Y 19aQ pund Bulajoasy alels ofiled siiem
..m 0 %10 £7°60€'6.9'L sbuireg yueg sbuires opelod 13
% ®) %€0°0 ZOE0P'vElL BupjoayD Yueg sbulreg opeloq |3
Z
W = :uoneuloju| a1ey JUN022Y jo adA) Aq siejol
m L
8 =
O ADn 6C°1L¥5'82.'8 000 (16'918'69v) ¥2'68.°1/9 95259258
o2z
W L
Q
O <

gigo69s9 | | [ | [ | |9/906999 |

000
21686} hb.ﬁ.Nm.N.mc

661549 £2'G9€ 289 i 3 "~ Buueer) yseg eresey [eydeD
(G3NS) pun oA/esey
EG'FL9°LS0'} £G'PLI'LSOL \G:mmcos.m maobme ;QEE%

¥2°288°909 197656 68°€rlC 9F°€EE0LS

##'€.8'026 (21°120'6.2) |1'829°86 0S°99€°20L'L pung je1eusgiol
(04°976'¢2) (66°0€9) (G2°GLEFT) ueio Agyal6
00'690°rZ¢€ 00'690°#2¢€ pund ans|e
IONYIVE {LnO) NI SINIW3SUNg [ YPEREDY JFINVIVE
ONIaN3 SHIAISNVAIL -S1a HSVYD HSVD ONINNID3g

2102 ‘1€ ¥3aWID3A STONVIVE LNIWLSIANI ANV HSVD 40 LNIWILVILS
LOI¥LSIA ALITILA 2118Nd 3AIAIQ NMOLIDNO03D



uoneioaidaq pajeinWNodY %05
000°G$ e 18 JUnowy

asuadxa suoiesado yjuow om|
Junowe |enjoy

junowe |enjoy

Sjunowe [enjoy

uonepaideq peleINWNIOY %05

saleg J8leM %01
asuadxa suolelado yuow omj

8102 0} /102 JWiS ysedyuswsiels ysed\-d

Jabeuep |e1suse | .. doan

_—

e :penoiddy
8.0°G6S L$ Z10Z ‘0S aunr jo se saAlasal |e)o} |enjoy
Lev'lzy'es €102 ‘0S @2unp JO SB S9AI9SAI |e}0) [ENJOY
z9g‘sel'es$ ¥10Z ‘0S duN( JO Se SaAIasal [e)0} [en)oy
818'291°6$ G10Z ‘0€ dun( JO Se SAAIDSAI [8)0) [enjoy
00'206°¢vZ 0L 00°€29°918°0L 68°602°2y9‘L
68L'10¢ 000°20€ SSZ'ThL‘lL auoZ/i8)emMalSeM\ - [B]JO ] NS
Lz‘osz 000°0S2 6.6'852 [eyded - wajsAg [esodsiq AyunwwoD
000's 000‘s jenden - suoz
8.6'Gh 000°2S 112'€06 suonesedQ - Jojemalsepn
61219 L6L‘V0S 69759 ouj0e(80.pAH
s9l'ley « G€T'129 £88°905 YjjeaH aaisy
16608V cwiley 8££'68¢ 8oIAleg 198
8€.'815'8 G£8°756°8 0v0‘60'S J9)ep\ - €]O1 gng
916'128°2 GE8'ehL'8 109'G89 saAIesal JBylo

G06'9G9 (vasn Aq paainbai) sansesay Juswaoeidey
6€0'82L°L sebieyn Ayjoe jended
GL9'LGO'L pun4 aniesay Aousbisw3 smopespyy Adwnig
‘lendeD - 1a)eppn
zeeilel 000'602 MO ysen - JSjep
000°01S 000'0SS £18'926 wco_umwmao - 191
paypNy 617102 196png /1-9102 ‘deday spung Aoljod eAIesay/spund pajeubisa( 10MsIa
woJ} pajejnoen pajewnsy

62'175'82.°8$

_6C6z0/S6E PSpeYS 8ie Spunj pjouisey
9G°'869%¥8°C solje)] ul ae spun- pajeubiseqg
y¥'€28'926$ spun4 pajeubisapun pajouisaiun

:desoy spund pejousay pue pajeubisaq ‘pajouisaiun siseg Buunosoy

2102 ‘1€ ¥39N303d STONVIVE LNIWLSIANI ANV HSYD 4O LNJWILVLS
LOI41S1a ALMILN 2179Nd FAIAIA NMOLIDAUO0ID




REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD MEETING OF January 9, 2018 _

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5C .

AGENDA SECTION: CONSENT CALENDAR

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZING CHANGE OF BANK SIGNATORY AUTHORITY
PREPARED BY:  Stephanie Beck “—t3
APPROVED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager#

BACKGROUND

The District has utilized the local services of El Dorado Savings Bank since
approximately 2002. The bank requires a resolution to be adopted by the Board of
Directors that specifies the authorized signers on an account.

DISCUSSION
With a newly appointed Director and Election of Board Officers for 2018, there is a need to
provide a Resolution (Attachment 1) authorizing the change of signatory authority.

FISCAL IMPACT
None.

CEQA ASSESSMENT
Not a CEQA project.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Staff recommends the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District adopt
the Resolution 2018-01 authorizing the change of bank signatory authority.

ALTERNATIVES
(a) Request substantive changes to the Resolution for staff to implement;
(b) Reject the Resolution.

ATTACHMENT
Resolution

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, CA 95634 @ (530) 333-4356 ¢ gd-pud.org



RESOLUTION 2018-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
AUTHORIZING THE CHANGE OF SIGNATORY AUTHORITY FOR
ACCOUNTS ESTABLISHED WITH EL DORADO SAVINGS BANK

WHEREAS, the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (“District”) utilizes the
banking services of El Dorado Savings Bank (“Bank”); and

WHEREAS, the Bank requires a Resolution of the Board of Directors to specify or
amend the signatory authority of the District’s accounts with the Bank; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to amend the signatory authority of the District’s
accounts at the Bank to reflect the addition of the new Board of Director and the change of
officers of the President, Vice President and Treasurer.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Board of Directors
of GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT, El Dorado County, California, as
follows:

1. That any of the following individuals may sign checks or other instruments
withdrawing funds from the accounts:

Londres Uso, /27 r29/dend

2

Jesse Hanschild, [/ ce— /7257771
David Halpin, 77#Z42 S.c/2s™

David Souza, __ LAy~

Dane Wadle, L e

Steven Palmer, General Manager

2. That the Bank may honor and pay all checks or other instruments signed in
accordance with this Resolution, including those payable checks or other instruments
payable to the District whether they are endorsed in writing or by stamp.

3. That this authorization remains in force until the Board of Directors gives written
notice to the Bank to the contrary.

4. That the General Manager is authorized to execute and the signers are authorized to
sign the required signature cards and any other documents required by the Bank for

maintenance of the existing accounts.

5. That the General Manager or Office Manager is authorized to enter into certificates
of deposit on behalf of the District.

GDPUD Resolution 2018-01 Page 1 of 2



6. That the General Manager or Office Manager is authorized to initiate wire transfers
as needed for District business.

7. That the District funds on deposit with El Dorado Savings Bank will be
collateralized pursuant to the Contract for Deposit of Moneys document dated
January 9, 2018.

8. That the District requires two signatures for all checks.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regularly held meeting of the Board of Directors of the
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT on the 9" day of January 2017, by the
following vote:

AYES: /7- '&@,,/ h/%fdr‘/{ Souge, W50 Wadle

Londres Uso, President

Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

ST:‘

Steven Palmer, Clerk and ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution 2018-01 duly and
regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District,
County of El State of California, on the 9" day of January 2017.

A —

Steven Palme?, Clerk and ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

GDPUD Resolution 2018-01 Page 2 of 2



REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS I

BOARD MEETING OF JANUARY 9, 2018 _

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5D .

AGENDA SECTION: CONSENT CALENDAR

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDED
PROFESIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH EN2
EXTENDING THE CONTRACT TERM

PREPARED BY: George Sanders, Engineering Consultant
/

APPROVED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager

BACKGROUND

The District has an existing matching grant through the Department of Water Resources
(DWR) under the Consumes, American, Bear, and Yuba (“CABY") Integrated Regional
Water Management Grant Project in the amount of $860,894. State funding under this
program is dedicated to projects that benefit water conservation, supply reliability, and
environmental protection.

The consulting firm of EN2 Resources Inc. (“Consultant) assisted the District, under a
separate contract with the El Dorado County Water Agency, in the development and
submittal of the original CABY grant application.

On March 21, 2016, the Board authorized the General Manager to enter into a contract
with the EN2 Resources, Inc., in the amount of $85,350 for consulting services associated
with the environmental permitting, project design, and preparation of bid documents for the
CABY Project.

DISCUSSION

Due to delays in obtaining environmental review by the resource agencies, the work under this
contract is not yet complete, and is anticipated to be completed by December 31, 2018. The
District and Consultant acknowledge and agree that the term of the current Agreement has
expired and have the desire to extend the term to December 31, 2018. The amended
Agreement is included in this report as Attachment 1.

FISCAL IMPACT

The contract amount is already budgeted. This amended agreement does not make any
changes to the contract amount and is only an extension of time.

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District 4 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, CA 95634 @ (530) 333-4356 4 gd-pud.org



Amendment to EN2 Professional Services Agreement Page 2

Board Meeting of January 9, 2018
Agenda ltem #5D

CEQA ASSESSMENT

A Notice of CEQA Categorical Exemption was filed on October 19, 2016, at the California State
Clearinghouse, and on October 24, 2016, with the County of El Dorado.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff recommends the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District adopt
Resolution 2018-02, Attachment 2, authorizing the General Manager to execute the Amended
Agreement extending the term to December 31, 2018.

ALTERNATIVES

(a) Request substantive changes to the Resolution for staff to implement; (b) Reject the
Resolution.

ATTACHMENTS

1.  Amended Professional Services Agreement
2. Resolution



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and
entered into this 9th day of January 2018, (the “Effective Date”) by and between the Georgetown
Divide Public Utilities District, a California Public Utilities District (“District”), and EN2
RESOURCES. INC. (“Consultant”). District and Consultant may herein be referred to
individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. There are no other parties to this
Agreement.

RECITALS

A. District has determined that consultant services are required for the Environmental
Permitting, Project Design and Preparation of Bid Documents in connection with the Cosumnes,
American, Bear, and Yuba (“CABY”’) Integrated Regional Water Management Grant Project (the
“Project”).

B. Consultant has submitted a proposal to District that includes a scope of proposed
consultant services, attached hereto and described more fully in Exhibit A (“Services”).

C. Consultant represents that it is qualified, willing and able to provide the Services to
District, and that it will perform Services related to the Project according to the rate schedule
included in the scope of proposed consultant services attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Rates”).

D. District and Consultant acknowledge and agree that portions of the work identified
in Exhibit A (“Services”) are complete and were performed under the terms and conditions of a
prior PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT, entered into the 21* day of March 2016,
between the District and the Consultant.

E. District and Consultant acknowledge and agree that the Term of the prior
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT, as identified in Recital D above, has expired.
District and Consultant have a desire to extend the Term through the execution of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants set forth below,
the Parties agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above (“Recitals”) are true and correct and are
hereby incorporated into and made part of this Agreement by this reference. In the event of any
inconsistency between the Recitals and Sections 1 through 19 of this Agreement, Section 1
through 19 shall prevail.

2. Consulting Services. Consultant agrees, during the term of this Agreement, to
perform the Services for District in connection with the Project. Any request for services in
addition to the Services described in Exhibit A will be considered a request for additional

CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and EN2 RESOURCES, Inc.
Page 1 of 9



addition to the Services described in Exhibit A will be considered a request for additional
consulting services and not compensated unless the Parties otherwise agree in writing. The District
acknowledges and approves Domenichelli and Associates as a subconsultant working under the
direction of EN2 RESOURCES, INC. No subcontract shall be awarded or other outside consultant
engaged by Consultant unless prior written approval is obtained from District.

3. Compensation. District shall pay Consultant according to the fee schedule set forth
in Exhibit B, for a time and materials cost not to exceed eighty-five thousand three hundred fifty
($85.350) as full remuneration for the performance of the Services. The total compensation
identified under this Agreement is that as set forth in the Original Agreement and is not in addition
to. Consultant agrees to maintain a log of time spent in connection with performing the Services.
On a monthly basis, Consultant shall provide District, in reasonable and understandable detail, a
description of the services rendered pursuant to the Services and in accordance with the Rates. If
the work is satisfactorily completed, District shall pay such invoice within thirty (30) days of its
receipt. If District disputes any portion of any invoice, District shall pay the undisputed portion
within the time stated above, and at the same time advise Consultant in writing of the disputed
portion.

4. Reimbursement. District shall pay Consultant for reimbursable expenses related
to travel, lodging, conference calls, reproduction and other costs incurred related to Consultant’s
performance of the Services. Such reimbursable costs shall be invoiced and billed to the District
on a monthly basis, provided that in no event shall reimbursable expenses exceed the total
compensation as identified in item 3 above, Compensation.

5. Term. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and will
continue in effect until December 31, 2018, unless terminated earlier as provided in Section 6 or
7 below (the “Term”).

6. Termination. District may terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration of the
Term (“Termination™), without cause or reason, by notifying Consultant in writing of District’s
desire to terminate this Agreement (the “Termination Notice”). Upon receipt of a Termination
Notice, Consultant shall immediately cease performing the Services. Consultant will be entitled to
compensation, as of the date Consultant receives the Termination Notice, only for Services actually
performed.

7. Termination for Cause. Notwithstanding Section 6 above, this Agreement may
be terminated by District for cause based on the loss or suspension of any licenses, permits or
registrations required for the continued provision of the Services, or Consultant’s malfeasance.
Termination of the Agreement for cause as set forth in this Section shall relieve District from
compensating Consultant.

8. Confidential Information. Consultant understands and agrees that, in the
performance of Services under this Agreement or in the contemplation thereof, Consultant may
have access to private or confidential information that may be owned or controlled by District and
that such information may contain proprietary or confidential details, the disclosure of which to
third parties may be damaging to District (“Confidential Information”).

CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and EN2 RESOURCES, Inc.
Page2 of 9



Consultant shall not, either during or after the Term, disclose to any third party any
Confidential Information without the prior written consent of District. If District gives Consultant
written authorization to make any such disclosure, Consultant shall do so only within the limits
and to the extent of that authorization. Such authorization does not guarantee that the District will
grant any further disclosure of Confidential Information. Consultant may be directed or advised
by the District’s General Counsel on various matters relating to the performance of the Services
on the Project or on other matters pertaining to the Project, and in such event, Consultant agrees
that it will treat all communications between itself, its employees and its subcontractors as being
communications which are within the attorney-client privilege.

9. Property of District. The following will be considered and will remain the
property of District:

A. Documents. All reports, drawings, graphics, working papers and
Confidential Information furnished by District in connection with the Services (“Documents™).
Nothing herein shall be interpreted as prohibiting or limiting District’s right to assign all or some
of District’s interests in the Documents.

B. Data. All data collected by Consultant and produced in connection with
the Services including, but not limited to, drawings, plans, specifications, models, flow diagrams,
visual aids, calculations, and other materials (“Data”). Nothing herein shall be interpreted as
prohibiting or limiting District’s right to assign all or some of District’s interests in the Data.

C. Delivery of Documents and Data. Consultant agrees, at its expense and
in a timely manner, to return to District all Documents and Data upon the conclusion of the Term
or in the event of Termination.

10.  Duties of District. In order to permit Consultant to render the services required
hereunder, District shall, at its expense and in a timely manner:

A. Provide such information as Consultant may reasonably require to
undertake or perform the Services;

B. Promptly review any and all documents and materials submitted to District
by Consultant in order to avoid unreasonable delays in Consultant’s performance of the Services;
and

C. Promptly notify Consultant of any fault or defect in the performance of
Consultant’s services hereunder.

11.  Representations of Consultant. District relies upon the following representations
by Consultant in entering into this Agreement:

CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and EN2 RESOURCES, Inc.
Page 3 of 9



A. Qualifications. Consultant represents that it is qualified to perform the
Services and that it possesses the necessary licenses, permits and registrations required to perform
the Services or will obtain such licenses or permits prior to the time such licenses or permits are
required. Consultant represents and warrants to District that Consultant shall, at Consultant’s sole
cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all times during the Term of this Agreement, any
licenses, permits, and registrations that are legally required for Consultant to practice Consultant's
profession at the time the Services are rendered.

B. Consultant Performance. Consultant represents and warrants that all
Services under this Agreement shall be performed in a professional manner and shall conform to
the customs and standards of practice observed on similar, successfully completed projects by
specialists in the Services to be provided. Consultant shall adhere to accepted professional
standards as set forth by relevant professional associations and shall perform all Services required
under this Agreement in a manner consistent with generally accepted professional customs,
procedures and standards for such Services. All work or products completed by Consultant shall
be completed using the best practices available for the profession and shall be free from any
defects. Consultant agrees that, if a Service is not so performed, in addition to all of its obligations
under this Agreement and at law, Consultant shall re-perform or replace unsatisfactory Service at
no additional expense to District.

12.  Compliance with Laws and Standards. Consultant shall insure compliance with
all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations and permits, including but not
limited to federal, state, and county safety and health regulations. Consultant shall perform all
work according to generally accepted standards within the industry. Consultant shall comply with
all ordinances, laws, orders, rules, and regulations, including the administrative policies and
guidelines of District pertaining to the work.

13.  Independent Contractor; Subcontracting. Consultant will employ, at its own
expense, all personnel reasonably necessary to perform the Services. All acts of Consultant, its
agents, officers, employees and all others acting on behalf of Consultant relating to this Agreement
will be performed as independent contractors. Consultant, its agents and employees will represent
and conduct themselves as independent contractors and not as employees of District. Consultant
has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of District. Except as District may
specify in writing, Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of
District in any capacity whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind District to any obligation whatsoever. Consultant is
prohibited from subcontracting this Agreement or any part of it unless such subcontracting is
expressly approved by District in writing.

14. Insurance. Consultant and all of Consultant’s contractors and subcontractors shall
obtain and maintain insurance of the types and in the amounts described in this paragraph and its
subparagraphs with carriers reasonably satisfactory to District.

A. General Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain occurrence
version commercial general liability insurance or an equivalent form with a limit of not less than
CW021899.1}

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and EN2 RESOURCES, Inc.
Page 4 of 9



Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per claim and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) for each
occurrence.

B. Workers’ Compensation Insurance. Consultant shall carry workers’
compensation insurance as required by the State of California under the Labor Code. Consultant
shall also carry employer’s liability insurance in the amount of One Million Dollars
(8$1,000,000.00) per accident, with a One Million Dollar ($1,000,000.00) policy limit for bodily
injury by disease, and a One Million Dollar ($1,000,000.00) limit for each employee’s bodily
injury by disease.

C. Errors and Omissions Liability. Consultant shall carry errors and
omissions liability insurance in the amount of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00)
per occurrence or greater if appropriate for the Consultant's profession. Architects and engineers
coverage is to be endorsed to include contractual liability. Any deductibles or self-insured
retentions must be declared to and approved by the District. At the option of the District, either
the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the
District, elected and appointed councils, commissions, directors, officers, employees, agents, and
representatives (“District’s Agents”); or the Consultant shall provide a financial guarantee
satisfactory to the District guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claims
administration and defense expenses.

D. Other Insurance Requirements. Within five (5) days of the Effective
Date, Consultant shall provide District with certificates of insurance for all of the policies required
under this Agreement (“Certificates”), excluding the required worker’s compensation insurance.
Such Certificates shall be kept current for the Term of the Agreement and Consultant shall be
responsible for providing updated copies and notifying District if a policy is cancelled, suspended,
reduced, or voided. With the exception of the worker’s compensation insurance, all of the
insurance policies required in this Agreement shall: (a) provide that the policy will not be
cancelled, allowed to expire, or materially reduced in coverage without at least thirty (30) days’
prior written notice to District of such cancellation, expiration, or reduction and each policy shall
be endorsed to state such; (b) name District, and District’s Agents as additional insureds with
respect to liability arising out of Services, work or operations performed by or on behalf of the
Consultant; products and completed operations of the Consultant; premises owned, occupied, or
used by the Consultant, or automobiles owned, leased, or hired or borrowed by the Consultant.
The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the District;
(c¢) be primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs covering District or
District’s Agents and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by District or District’s Agents
shall be in excess of Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute to it; (d) contain standard
separation of insured provisions; and (e) state that any failure to comply with reporting or other
provisions of the policy including breaches of warranties shall not affect the coverage provided to
the District.

15.  Indemnification. Consultant hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless
District, its agents, officers, employees and volunteers, against all liability, obligations, claims,
loss, and expense (a) caused or created by Consultant, its subcontractors, or the agents or
employees of either, whether negligent or not, pertaining to or related to acts or omissions of

CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and EN2 RESOURCES, Inc.
Page Sof 9



Consultant in connection with the Services, or (b) arising out of injuries suffered or allegedly
suffered by employees of Consultant or its subcontractors (i) in the course of their employment,
(ii) in the performance of work hereunder, or (iii) upon premises owned or controlled by District.
Consultant’s obligation to defend, indemnify and hold District and its agents, officers, employees
and volunteers harmless is not terminated by any requirement in this Agreement for Consultant to
procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

16.  Consequential Damages. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for
any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits
or revenue, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services performed in
connection with this Agreement.

17.  Litigation. In the event that either Party brings an action under this Agreement for
the breach or enforcement hereof, or must incur any collection expenses for any amounts due
hereunder the prevailing Party in such action shall be entitled to its costs including reasonable
attorney’s fees, whether or not such action is prosecuted to judgment.

18.  Notices. Any notice or communication required hereunder between District or
Consultant must be in writing, and may be given either personally, by registered or certified mail
(return receipt requested), or by Federal Express, UPS or other similar couriers providing overnight
delivery. If personally delivered, a notice shall be deemed to have been given when delivered to
the Party to whom it is addressed. Notices given by registered or certified mail shall be deemed
to have been given and received on the first to occur of (a) actual receipt by any of the addressees
designated below as the party to whom notices are to be sent, (b) on the date delivered as shown
on a receipt issued by the courier, or (c) five (5) days after a registered or certified letter containing
such notice, properly addressed, with postage prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail. If
given by Federal Express or similar courier, a notice or communication shall be deemed to have
been given and received on the date delivered as shown on a receipt issued by the courier. Any
Party hereto may at any time, by giving ten (10) days written notice to the other Party hereto,
designate any other address in substitution of the address to which such notice or communication
shall be given. Such notices or communications shall be given to the Parties at the addresses in
this paragraph set forth below:

If to District: Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
P.O. Box 4240
6425 Main Street
Georgetown, CA 95634
Attention: General Manager

With courtesy copies to: Churchwell White LLP
1414 K Street, 3rd Floor
Sacramento, California 95814
Attention: Barbara A. Brenner, Esq.

CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and EN2 RESOURCES, Inc.
Page 6 of 9



If to Consultant: EN2 RESOURCES, INC.
Attention: Rick Lind, President
P.O. Box 2260
Placerville, CA 95667

19. General Provisions.

A. Modification. No alteration, modification, or termination of this
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and executed by all Parties.

B. Waiver. The waiver by any Party of a breach of any provision hereof shall
be in writing and shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any other or subsequent breach
hereof unless specifically stated in writing.

C. Assignment. No Party shall assign, transfer, or otherwise dispose of this
Agreement in whole or in part to any individual, firm, or corporation without the prior written
consent of the other Party. Subject to the forgoing provisions, this Agreement shall be binding
upon, and inure to the benefit of, the respective successors and assigns of the Parties.

D. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the state of California.

E. Venue. Venue for all legal proceedings shall be in the Superior Court of
California for the County of El Dorado.

F. Partial Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall
nevertheless continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way.

G. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original and all of which shall be deemed a single
agreement.

H. Severability. If any term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement is held
by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in
effect.

L. Audit. District shall have access at all reasonable times to all reports,
contract records, contract documents, contract files, and personnel necessary to audit and verify
Consultant’s charges to District under this Agreement.

CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and EN2 RESOURCES, Inc.
Page 7 of 9



J. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding
between the Parties as to the subject matter of this Agreement and merges all prior discussions,
negotiations, proposal letters or other promises, whether oral or in writing.

K. Headings Not Controlling. Headings used in this Agreement are for
reference purposes only and shall not be considered in construing this Agreement.

L. Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement for each
covenant and term of a condition herein.

CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and EN2 RESOURCES, Inc.
Page 8 of 9



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the last day and date
below written.

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC EN2 RESOURCES, Inc.
UTILITIES DISTRICT, a California Public a California Corporation

Utilities Distri
/ By:

By: 7 .
Qgttyén V. Palmer, General Manager Rick Lind, President
/
Date: '{/ q’/ 23 Date: [/~ V“"‘)’L '79 20/ &

ara A. Brenner, General Counsel

CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and EN2 RESOURCES, Inc.
Page 9 of 9



Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
And

EN2 RESOURCES, INC.



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District Water Conservation, Supply Reliability,
and Environmental Protection Project

Tasks and Deliverables

EN2 and D&A propose to complete the following tasks, which are outlined under Task 3
(Planning/ Design/ Engineering/Environmental Documentation) of the Project Work Plan
specified in the Cosumnes, American, Bear, and Yuba (CABY) Integrated Regional Water
Management (IRWM) Department of Water Resources (DWR) Proposition 84 IRWM 2014
Drought Grant (Grant) Agreement:

Task 3a Surveying and Geotechnical Services deliverable
¢ Survey Mapping and Geotechnical Findings memo

Task 3b Design deliverable
e 50% Design Plans
o Final Plans and Specifications

Task 3¢ CEQA Documentation deliverable
e Notice of Exemption and documentation supporting the determination that the Project is
eligible for a Categorical Exemption

Task 3d Permitting deliverables (as applicable)
e Section 404 Nationwide Permit with the Army Corps of Engineers (Corps)
e 1600 Streambed Alteration Agreement (SAA) with the California Department of Fish and
wildlife (CDFW)
e 401 Water Quality Certification (WQC) with the Regional Water Quality Control Board
(RWQCB)

Task 3e Project Monitoring Plan
e Project Monitoring Plan

EN2 and D&A have organized the above task deliverables set forth in the Project Work Plan into
the following proposed scope of services for purposes of the proposed consulting services
agreement with the District.

Task 1: Reporting

EN2 will draft the District’s sections for the quarterly progress report due to the Nevada
Irrigation District (NID) to meet DWR reporting requirements including the appropriate task
deliverables. This will be a maximum of two quarterly progress reports.

Deliverables:
e Two Quarterly Progress Reports



Task 2: Surveying and Design

Survey Mapping

e The District will provide site survey data for the project reaches. Mapping of the
reaches will be on “Google” base aerial mapping showing the extent of the lining
and the total length for each reach. District personnel will stake the end points
and measure the lineal footage of lining for each reach and show the information
with stationing on “Google Earth”.

e The District will provide cross-sections points (minimum 4 points) including top
of bank and toe of bank on each side of the channel. These cross-sections will be
at a maximum 100ft interval. No vertical control will be provided, only relative
elevations of points at each cross-section.

e The District will locate (by station) any structures such as culverts, turnouts, trees
to be removed, bridges and any other obstructions that will affect the lining
project. Sizes of trees, culverts and turnout dimensions will also be provided.

e The District will provide a length and surface profile for the alignment of the
proposed pipeline at the Dewarte reach.

Geotechnical Memorandum
e A brief one day geotechnical review of the sites will be conducted to address
compaction requirements and any slope stability issues to be addressed by the
design engineers.
e A short memorandum of findings will be provided to discuss finding of the
geotechnical review.

Design Services
e Design Engineers will create the overall design plans and specifications for
applicable sections of canal lining showing project reaches, lengths, typical
sections and any related construction details. Also provided will be one section
(1,500 ft) of pipeline to replace a reach of ditch.

e Based on the surveying scope above, no vertical or horizontal control or
alignments will be provided with the designs, only approximate locations shown
on “Google” background. Right of way descriptions will not be provided nor will
temporary construction easements.

¢ Technical specifications will be in a separate document coordinated with the
District’s front end specifications and special conditions.

Deliverables:
o 50% design documents to be reviewed by the District and for use in the environmental
documents.

o 90% bid documents to be reviewed by the District for final approval.
e Final bid documents in electronic format for distribution by the District.



Task 3: CEQA Documentation

The Grant Agreement between the State of California, Department of Water Resources (State or
DWR) and NID under basic conditions states, “prior to the commencement of construction or
implementation activities, Grantee shall submit Environmental Documentation:
i.  Grantee submits to the State all applicable environmental permits,

ii. Documents that satisfy the CEQA process are received by the State

jii.  State has completed its CEQA compliance review as a Responsible Agency, and

iv.  Grantee receives written concurrence from the State of Lead Agency’s CEQA documents

and State notice of verification of environmental permit submittal.”

As assumed in the Grant work plan, a Notice of Exemption will be prepared to satisfy the
requirements of CEQA. The Project qualifies for Categorical Exemption 15301, Existing
Facilities, Class 1, which consists of the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing,
licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities, mechanical
equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that
existing at the time of the lead agency's determination.

As a component of CEQA, the District will be required to perform a Phase I Cultural Review and
provide a summary of consultation with Native American tribes per requirements of AB 52.
Consultation under AB 52 requires that the District provide written notification of its decision to
undertake a project to Native American tribes. The notification is to be sent to those tribes that
have requested to be on the District’s Notice List for Projects. Tribes have 30 days to request
consultation and the District then has 30 days to begin consultation after receiving the request.
The District will provide the list of Native American Tribes which have requested Notification of
Projects under AB 52 to EN2 to complete this task.

Deliverables:
e Filed CEQA Notice of Exemptions
e Cultural Review Consultation Documentation
o Summary of Notification and Consultation per AB 52 requirements

Task 4: Permitting

To meet permit requirements, a Corps Preliminary Wetland Delineation report will be drafted
and sent to the Corps, which will determine and formally acknowledge the project as being
exempt. According to the Corps Regulatory Guidance Letter No. 07-02, construction or
maintenance of irrigation ditches and maintenance of drainage ditches under section 404 of the
Clean Water Act qualifies for an exemption.

According to the CDFW, if appropriate design measures have already been developed through
the Section 404 and CEQA processes, CDFW may not require additional mitigation as part of the
Section 1600 Lake or Streambed Alteration Agreement. Pending consultation with the ACOE,
additional permitting requirements through CDFW will possibly need to be met before
construction can proceed.



EN2 will complete the required consultations and permit review processes. EN2 will submit draft
and final permit packages to the District for review before sending them to the applicable
regulatory agencies. In order to meet the basic conditions of the Grant Agreement, EN2 will
supply the District with the required environmental documentation needed to submit to DWR via
Nevada Irrigation District.

Deliverables:
o Preliminary Wetland Delineation Report
e Draft and Final CDFW 1600 Streambed Alteration Agreement (if required)

Task 5: Project Monitoring Plan

D&A and EN2 will assist the District in developing the Project Monitoring Plan as described in
the Grant Agreement.

Deliverables:
o Draft and Final Project Monitoring Plan

Key Assumptions
The proposed timeline and cost estimate for the proposed Project assumes that:

¢ The cultural resources investigation will indicate that subsurface cultural resources are

unlikely to be found and that there are no tribal or other Native American issues to be

addressed.

No detailed protocol-level field surveys (cultural or biological) will be needed.

The District will be responsible for all CEQA filing and permit application fees.

EN2 will coordinate with the District to post notices and file CEQA documents.

EN2 assumes that a CDFW 1600 permit will be required.

EN2 assumes that a Corps 404 and State Water Resources Control Board 401 permit will

not be required. If initial findings conclude that these permits are required then EN2 will

prepare an amendment to this scope of work and budget in coordination with the District.

e EN2 will coordinate with the District to file permit applications.

e All deliverables will be sent to the District electronically as either Word or PDF format.
If the District prefers, a few paper copies and CDs can be submitted.

e © & & @

The estimated labor and direct expenses to prepare and process the environmental documentation
and permits applications are presented on the attached page. The attached cost estimate reflects
the above assumptions.

We appreciate your consideration of this draft proposal. If you have questions on the above or
the attached, please feel free to contact myself or Melissa Marquez at (530) 626-1401.

Page amended 3/21/2016



Exhibit B

RATE SCHEDULE

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
And

EN2 RESOURCES, INC.



‘papaadxa 94 10U |{Im 128pnq |B10] Inq }Sel pue [enpiaipul Aq Asen Aew 398png pue SINOH

0SE's8$ 0.9 08 oot | 95 | os€ | T | | tesol
066'25$ 8¢ ST 0 0 1743 o1 |elol1-qns
008'8S (19e11U00-gnNS) jE2IUYIRI0RY UoTeled
0ST'9T$ 0LT 9 09T s 00'S6$ ape) wir
005°LT$ ort 9 €T v 00'SZT$ JaWwwey ueug
0vs'0T$ 79 9 s z 00'0LT$ 1i2Y21udwog 0f
$3je120s5Y '3 1[jdYy3iudwog
09€'CES 862 . 7] orT 9 9 vI {eicL-qns
068'TS o€ ot ot 9 v 00'€9% URISISSY SANRASIUIWPY
9EE’SS 8s 44 0z 81 8 00°26$ ueIuYdI3L SID
0v0'e$ 8¢ 91 (44 00'08$ Asueay apisAsy
0zZL'6S 06 14" 17 01 T4 9 00'80TS zanbie essll3
vEE'SS (44 v 44 91 00°L2T$ auyaiy st
ovo‘LS ov 9 81 9 9 ¥ 00°941$ puin i
$3IN0sSaY ZN3I
SINOH ue|d STITOEY | \"[0F ) udisag | Sunsoday
jelol | Sysel | tPselL | gjysel | Zysel T)iseL
150) pajew)is3 SINOH pajewns3 aiey
AjanoH
SINOY JoqeT| pajewysH

199{01g U01IAN0IJ [EIEITUONAUY PUB
‘Symqenay Alddng ‘UoneAIIsu0)) 1)\ ILLSIA AWM dHAn APIAKT um0)281035




RESOLUTION NO. 2018-02

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT
TO THE PROFESSIONAL. SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH EN2
EXTENDING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT TO DECEMBER 31, 2018

WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement between the Georgetown Divide Public Utility
District (“District”) and EN2 Resources, Inc. (“Consultant”) was entered into the 21 day of March 2016;
and

WHEREAS, the District and Consultant negotiated a scope of work to develop a Project Work
Plan for the Environmental Permitting, Project Design and Preparation of Bid Documents related to the
Cosumnes, American, Bear, and Yuba (“CABY”) Integrated Regional Water Management Grant Project
(the “Project); and

WHEREAS, the District and Consultant acknowledge and agree that the term of the prior
Professional Services Agreement has expired; and District and Consultant have a desire to extend the
Term to December 31, 2018, through the execution of this Amended Agreement; and

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to
execute an Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with EN2 to extend the term of the
contract to December 31, 2018.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 9th day of January 2018, by the following vote:
AYES: %&{ﬂt@ //J?’leAc /{ 524&}:{, C/ﬁc; Wad le_

Londres Uso, President
Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

ATTEST:

Steven Palmer, Clerk and Ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

GDPUD Resolution No. 2018-02 Page 1 of 2



CERTIFICATION

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution 2017-13 duly and
regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District, County of
El Dorado, S’?Ie f California, on the 9" day of January 2018.

Steven-Paler| Clerk and Ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

GDPUD Resolution No. 2018-02 Page 2 of 2



REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6C

AGENDA SECTION: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
SUBJECT: GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

PREPARED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager

BOARD MEETING OF JANUARY 9, 2018 _

. —

RECRUITMENTS

The second round of interviews have been completed for the Water Resources Manager position and
a selection has not yet been made.

Approximately 29 applications were received for the Administrative Aide Il position (Accounts Payable)
that was vacated when Christina Cross accepted the Management Analyst position. Applications are
being reviewed for potential interviews with candidates.

UPCOMING BOARD ITEMS
February
Approve ACWA Conference Attendance
Purchasing Policy
Mid-Year Budget Adjustment
Board of Director Goal Setting

Euture

Board policy updates

Approve Cost Sharing Applications with El Dorado County Water Agency
GIS Update
Asset Management Program

Wastewater Fee Review

Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan Update

PG&E Hotchkiss Hill Antenna Lease

Personnel Manual

Capital Facility Charge Update

Approve plans and specifications and authorize bid for canal lining project

FINANCE COMMITTEE
Working on agenda and coordinating a meeting for later this month

HOLIDAY SCHEDULE
District offices will be closed Monday, January 15, 2018 in observance of Martin Luther King, Jr. Day.

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District @ 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, CA 95634 4 (530) 333-4356 4 gd-pud.org



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Operations Manager’s Report for December 2017

Presented to the GDPUD Board of Directors by Darrell Creeks, Operations Manager January 9, 2018, AGENDA ITEM #6D

Water Quality Monitoring

Monitoring has been completed and
reports have been submitted to the
December State Water Resources Control Board.
v" The treatment plants are in
compliance with all drinking water
standards, with the exception of
the ALTWTP which is currently
under a SWRCB Compliance
Order. To comply with this Order,
a new plant is under construction.

v" Distribution system monitoring
results showed all samples
absent/ negative of any bacterio-
logical contamination and
adequate levels of disinfection
through the system.

Chart Water Production (MG)

March April June July Sept

100
80
6

IS
o O

2

o O

m2013 m2016 =2017

Waste Water: Auburn Lake Trails Summary of Field Work Activities

The Leachfield Capacity Report and Water Balance Report was
submitted to the State on November 25%. Smoke testing of sewer lines
was completed September 21.

Distribution Crew
v Repaired leaks: 6
v"  Repair/replace meters: 1
Average daily flows in the community disposal system were 23,209 v Installed new service: 0 treated _
gallons per day. This value does not exceed the limit of 71,800 v Adjusted altitude and pressure reducing valves
gallons per day as identified in the Waste Discharge Requirements.

A new magnetic flowmeter has been installed to improve accuracy.. ~ Maintenance Crew .

The maintenance crew continued to use the
The District has, to date, completed all required laboratory excavator and brush cutters to clean over 4000 feet
monitoring of groundwater, surface water and wastewater effluent. of canal.

The District is currently up to date in the monitoring of waste water
systems in the zone.

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
6425 Main Street P.O. Box 4240, Georgetown, CA 95634 e (530) 333-4356 e  www.gd-pud.org
Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager e Darrell Creeks, Operations Manager




REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD MEETING OF JANUARY 9, 2018 _

Agenda Iltem No. 6E .
AGENDA SECTION: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
SUBJECT: ALT WATER TREATMENT PLANT PR T UPDATE
PREPARED BY: George Sanders, Engineering Consultant -
APPROVED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager

This is a summary of the various work activities at the ALT Treatment Plant for the month of
December. Attachment 1 is the eighth in a series of update flyers that will be posted on the
District's website and Facebook.

In addition to the construction work performed by Myers & Sons, the District is also under
contract with NEXGEN for construction management, PSOMAS for Engineering Support
during construction, Youngdahl Consulting Group for material testing, and Foothill Associates
for CEQA compliance.

Myers & Sons Construction

Construction activities at the site, during the month of December, continue to concentrate work
activities in three areas. These are identified as the Filter Building, Raw Water Pump Station

Building, and Sludge Drying Beds.

e Filter Building — This is the largest building at the site, approximately 5,500 SF. Itis a
metal building on a concrete slab with exterior footings. The Chlorine Contact Basis is
below grade and under the center portion of this building. The concrete work on this
building is now complete. Work activities during this reporting period continue to
concentrate on the fabrication of the metal building. The columns, beams and roof
rafters are now in place along with portions of the framing for the doors. The three high
service pumps (700 gpm each) for the Chlorine Contact Basin are in place as well as
the one Filter Backwash Pump (2100 pgm).

e Raw Water Pump Station Building — This is a metal building on a concrete slab with
exterior footings, consisting of approximately 1350 SF. The building fabrication is
complete and the Contractor is preparing to install the piping and raw water pumps.

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District 4 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, CA 95634 4 (530) 333-4356 4 gd-pud.org



ALT Update Page 2
Board Meeting of January 9, 2018
Agenda ltem #6E

¢ Sludge Drying Beds — These are concrete bays, 4 in number, covering a total area of
approximately 4,000 SF. The concrete walls and slabs are now in place consisting of
approximately 30 individual pours. Upcoming work activities will include installation of
the sumps and curtain drains.

PSOMAS

This firm is under contract with the District to provide Engineering Support during construction.
Primary functions consist of the review of contractor submittals, requests for information (RFI)
and to provide added clarity on various construction related matters. As of this date, the total
number of contractor submittals is 171 and the number of requests for information is 119.
PSOMAS continues to provide Engineering Support.

Youngdahl Consulting Group

This firm is under contract to provide the material testing of soils and concrete. Material testing
during this reporting period includes the testing of concrete (air entrainment, temperature,
slump and compressive strength) for multiple concrete pours within the Sludge Drying Beds.

Foothill Associates

This firm is under contract with the District to assist with CEQA compliance together with
implementation of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). This firm has not
performed any work activities during this reporting period.

SWPPP — Myers & Sons Under the construction contract, Myers & Sons is responsible for the
installation and maintenance of the storm water improvements together with the inspection and
reporting of individual storm events. During the month of December the site experienced one
qualifying rain event that yielded 0.7 inch of rain.

NEXGEN

This firm is under contract with the District to provide Construction Management services.
NEXGEN is currently providing construction inspection at the site daily.




ALT Update Page 3
Board Meeting of January 9, 2018
Agenda Item #6E

Budget

Project expenses since start of construction as compared to budget are summarized in the
table below. At this point, projected expenditures are within the approved project budget.

Phase Expended to Date Budget
Construction $4,874,111 $11,249,000
Construction Engineering,

Construction Management, $ 383,804 $ 1,076,226
and Environmental

Total $5,257,915 $12,325,226

Contract Change Orders

No Contract Change Orders were processed during this reporting period. Contract Change
Order Number 1 resulted in a net increase in the contract amount by $39,772. This Change
Order was identified at the regular Board meeting in September. Contract Change Order
Number 2 resulted in a net decrease in the contract amount by <$970.41>. This Change Order
was identified at the regular Board meeting in October. Contract Change Order Number 3, a no
cost change order, increased the contract time by 17 days due to weather related days during
the months of March, April, May and June of this year. This Change Order was identified at the
regular Board meeting in November.

EPA Grant and State SRF Payment Requests

There is no change in the reporting under this activity from that of the Board meeting in
October. All monies have been received under the EPA Grant. Staff is currently working on the
final reporting as required to close out the Grant.

The District has received six reimbursement payments from the State Revolving Fund Loan
Agreement for a total amount of $ 3,2563,558. The first payment was received during the month
of June in the amount of $ 1,157,141. The second payment was received in August in the
amount of $ 439,850. The third payment was received in September in the amount of $ 68,457.
The fourth payment was received in October in the amount of $540, 675. The fifth payment
was received in November in the amount of $497,125. The sixth payment was received in
December in the amount of $550,310. At the time of this report, the District has one (#7)
outstanding reimbursement requests. Reimbursement Request #7 is for the amount of
$1,047,320.

Information contained in this report will be supplemented with project-related photos. This
concludes the ALT update for work activities during the month of December. Staff remains
available to answer questions.




ogep-eee (0€9) 11eD
Jo BI6pna-p
‘19beuey J00loid ‘siapues abioog)
1JOBJUCD ‘uoljewlojul |euolippe Jo4
Jebeuey |[e1oud
‘Jd ‘4euljed UdA)S
agep-c€€ (0£5)5I0PNA-po MMM
€966 VO ‘umojabioan
02y xod 'O’'d
j98.1g Ule\ G219
1211SIa ALLn o1nand
3AIAIG NMO13DY039

: 8102 110z
a N 0 S v r ) W v W ) a N (0] S v f f W W
ol clezta]s 5|3 T Tslelzlslelz]s =z
2 m mm $ |3 ,W 213183222 § 6
ol l8|als|e HE =313 (31818|%| |53
0 B m. - m m_ Eialil®2|lold]|a 5 &
SR A Ele 213|5(5(3|8]8| |=2
2|7 |el= > |8 E|ld[8|3|2 |83 7
15|28 18] | lEl9] Flelzlz1alel8] |38
fo) | (=3 i | = [ © =1 = = 5
2 @ =32 & m @ | 28 B 13 3
2 = orlE S |zl w @ | 3
m g m g(® e |5 |8 £
J1NAIHIS NOILLINIILSNOD 1J3(0idd
8102 Joquasaq ajeq uonajdwo) pajedionuy |
%LV a19|dwo) Juadiad |-
208‘v.8'V$ /102 49qwaoaq@ iy} papuadx3 |
2
] ] JUNOWY }0BJU0D MO |
2¢08'.8¢ c—.w 100 ON :€# J9pJQ abuey) joesuod
(026 $) :g# JopJ abuey) oesnuod
rANN :L# JopJaQ 9Bueyy yoenuo)

000°672°0L $ :unowy joesuo) jeuwlbuQ |

d1lvad LIVIINOD

sileM B qels -speg buikig
abpn|g — in0d d)aI10u0) e
Buipiing 3 qels ‘bunoo4
uone)s dwnd Jojepy mey e
sqe|S 400[4 8 S|ejsspad
Ja}i4 ‘uised JoEUCY SULOIYD
‘Bp|g J8)jid -SIN0d 8)8I10U0) e
aulI ssedAg
JajepA usiul4 Aesodwa) e
uoydis JSjepA MEY @
uoneziiqoN e

SAILIAILYY d3ilITdWO)

suiel ® uoidy 8)840u0)d
— spag bullig obpn|S e
sadigd pue sdwnd ||ejsuj
— uoile)s dwnd Jsjepy mey e
suo “Bpig -'bpig Jeuid e
SAILIAILDV ONIWOJd[()

—4Lvadn 123(oud

L10Z ‘L€ 290 ¢ 8 "ON @epdn

ANV1d INTJNLVYIYL ¥ILVM STIVHL INVT NINENV

JousIag Aljin 21and epiaig umoleblioss




1/5/2018

GDPUD Board Meeting of 1/9/2018
AGENDA ITEM 6F

Georgetown Divide Public Utlfity District
Board of Directors
January 9, 2018

I A N x ' x. . u PO, S Ly | ) £ s n

Existing Plant:
1. Three sets of pumps.
2. Three chemical feed systems (not

| LK ATER
RauRs

£
- G UBIARAGH
AN

BADs #3750 BASH

.
.
g1
BAORWASH DHSPCSR,

o P $IATON a

3

s

. -

Existing Plant

N - ot R RGO MAS T e v L
5 h l_t. Y i DTN R L
:.&@;.—@m@_l,l‘-ch' 7 Y T ;F'J g L ST PHODISE, SOAVAIL Laa ~
. o F = == T navrwgonomn L, . e




1/5/2018

Background on the ALTWTP (con’t)

» New Design - completed in March 2016.
» SRF Loan in place August 2016. The amount of the SRF funding is $10,000,000.
» Contract with Myers & Sons, executed in February 2017 in the amount of $10,249,000.

> Project Improvements currently 50% complete with final construction scheduled for
December 2018.

Treatment Improvement:
Filter System

The existing plant utilizes an In-Line
Filter System which is no longer
recognized by the State as an acceptable
system.

The new plant will incorporate a Two
Stage Contact Filter System.

This two stage system consists of Clarification in
addition to Filtration and has become a standard
throughout the industry as a State Approved
System.




1/5/2018

{387
3

Treatment Improvement
Polymer [njection

Polymer is used to enhance the ‘ ) T
coagulation of particulate matter in the
raw water. .V

The existing plant injects polymer -

immediately upstream (20 feet) from the - e
In-Line Filter System which exposes
coagulated material to turbulent water, }
thus diminishing the effectiveness of the EEETaes - LT L,

process.

The new plant injects and mixes polymer 1 ¥ | == ]
at the raw water pump station and ."‘wmm«' - o
provides a uniform flow into the Two 2y, e — 1!

Stage Contact Filter units approximately i
250 feet distant, thus greatly enhancing ’
the coagulation process.

Treatment Improvement:
Recycling of Backwash Water

The media within the filter systems are
cleaned through backwashing. The process
of backwashing is common to both the
existing and new filter systems.

The existing plant has historically discharged
backwash water into an open, unlined
settling pond. Current State regulations do
not recognize this as an acceptable method
of discharging backwash water.

The new plant will discharge backwash water into concrete lined beds which will recycle and
recover the backwash water through a multistage process of decanting the liquids and
separating the solids.




1/5/2018

Treatment Improvement:
Chlorine Residual

Chlorine is added to the water as a
final process to eliminate the growth
of bacteria in the system.

The existing plant injects chlorine,
which mixes with the water as it
passes through two separate tanks.
Each of the tanks are relatively small
in size, provide poor baffling and limit
the ability of the operator to maintain a
uniform residual amount of chiorine in ESEELC XL ~F N -_o L& N SN
the system. S

The new system will allow the operator to maintain a more consistent and uniform chlorine residual,
resulting in an overall superior product to the customer.

New Technology
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition
(SCADA)

Existing WTP Pumps & Processes New WTP Pumps and Processes

Using new technology, (SCADA) via an internet
connection, personnel will have the ability to monitor,
modify processes and control equipment from a
satellite location.

* Interruptions in the treatment process currently
notify operators through a radio pager, in the form
of an alarm. Often times these notices are time
sensitive as they commonly relate to high tank
levels, power outages and pump failures. Plant
operators must be on-site to assess the deficiency
and at the controls to affect any changes in the
operation.

Automatically log information required for State
reporting.

Efficiently manage the Plant operations through the
tracking of power usage and equipment maintenance
needs.




1/5/2018

Operational Tasks Required at New Plant

+»Chlorine Contact Basin
« Operator Monitoring of Level and Flow (common to both existing and new

facility).

«<*Raw Water Pump Station
« Streaming Current Meter and Polymer Injection System (common to both
existing and new facility).
¢ Pre-Chlorination Injection

«»Backwash Water Recovery Basin
* Dewatering Polymer Injection
¢ Solids Separation
* Decant Basin and Pumps

Operational Tasks Required at New Plant (con’t)

*»Sludge Drying Beds
 Solids Drying Sequence Rotation
» Sand Bed Cleaning and Maintenance

»Filter to Waste Collection Tank
* Recycle Water Metering




REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD MEETING OF JANUARY 9, 2018 _

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7A .

AGENDA SECTION: NEW BUSINESS
SUBJECT: FY 2016-17 Audited Financial Statements

PREPARED BY: Kristen West, Finance Consultant

APPROVED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager }W

BACKGROUND

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (“District”) prepares annual financial statements in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). These principles provide
guidance for financial reporting and state that financial information should be timely, complete,
accurate and reliable. An annual independent financial audit of financial statements is a
requirement of the Comptroller of the United States of America in accordance with the
Governmental Auditing Standards. In order to meet these requirements Georgetown Divide
Public Utility District (“District”) contracted with the CPA firm, Fechter & Company, to administer
the audit and provide an opinion for fiscal years ending 2016, 2017 and 2018.

DISCUSSION

The District’s financial goals for providing timely, complete, accurate and reliable financial
statements include an annual audit with issued financial statement reports no later than 180
days after the close of the fiscal year.

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, Fechter & Company conducted their year-end audit
fieldwork the week of October 16! and provided final financial statements on December 29,
2017, effectively meeting the goals of the District. The auditors issued a clean opinion that the
District's audited financial statements presented fairly in all material respects.

The auditor’s opinion, Management'’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A), financial statements, and
notes to the financial statements are bound as a single report. Hard copies of the financial
statements are to be distributed to the Board and key personnel. At this time an electronic copy
is available for review (Exhibit A), after which it will be published on the District’s website for
public access.

Craig Fechter, of Fechter & Company, will be in attendance to present the audited financial
statements.

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District ¢ 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, CA 95634 ¢ (530) 333-4356 4 gd-pud.org



FY 2016-17 Audited Financial Statements Page 2
Board Meeting of January 9, 2018
Agenda ltem #7A

FISCAL IMPACT
None.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Upon verbal presentation from Fechter & Company, accept and file the audited financial

statements.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Exhibit A - Fiscal Year 2016-17 Financial Statements
2. Fechter & Co Management Report



GDPUD Board Meeting of 1/9/2018
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7A
Attachment 1

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC
UTILITY DISTRICT

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

JUNE 30, 2017



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Annual Financial Report

June 30, 2017
Table of Contents
Page
Independent Auditor’s REPOIt..........cocuiiiiiiiieiiiiiiieneeniieiieeeeieenreeaseeseeeeneesaessessesraessessansnnenns 1-3
Management’s Discussion and ANALYSIS .......ccccevivervuerrieeniieniennieinientenseese e sieesneeseaeas 4-10
Basic Financial Statements:
Government- Wide Financial Statements:
Statement Of Net POSIION .....c..cceiuerieriiiiiiiiiietcet et eans 11
StatemMent Of ACHVITIES .....eeveeriereeeirereeeteeieeee ittt sr b e et eseeesaeeneennnasneas 12
Fund Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds...........ccocovieiiiioiieiiiiicccicce e 13
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position —

Proprietary FUNAS ..........cceieiiiiiiir ettt cre s sre et enr e e sera s bneesnnessnnnees 14
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds............ccccccviiniininiieineseeeeeccieeee e 15-16
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabiliti€s ...........ccccoouieernieirieniieiinernesiee e 17

Notes to Basic Financial Statements ..............cooiieimiiiiiieeicienteteeceeeseeet e 18-45
Required Supplementary Information:

Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Post-Employment Benefits..........ccccccooeeiieririinennen. 46

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ..........c.cccceenenen. 47

Schedule of Pension ContribUtions ...........c.ccoiiiiiiiriirineerereetee st nesae e sne e 48
Supplementary Information:

Schedule of Operating EXPenses........c.cocicirieriniiniieiienie sttt aeaae s 49

Restricted Plant Benefit Charges and DiSClOSUIES ...........coeiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiceceecee e 50

Other Report:
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards............oocueiiiiiieiiini e 51-52



FECHTER
& COMPANY

Certified Public Accountants Craig R. Fechter, CPA, MST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Georgetown, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the fiduciary fund of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (District) as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

1

3445 American River Drive Suite A | Sacramento, CA 95864 | ph 916-333-5360 | fax 916-333-5370
www.fechtercpa.com
Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Tax Section
and California Society of CPAs



To the Board of Directors of the
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Georgetown, California

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the business-type activities, each major fund, and fiduciary fund of the District as of
June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the fiscal year then
ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 4-10, the Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment
Benefits on page 44, the Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability on
page 45, and the Schedule of Pension Contributions on page 46 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District’s basic financial statements. The Schedules of
Operating Expenses and Restricted Plant Benefit Charges and Disclosures are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Schedules of Operating Expenses and Restricted Plant Benefits Charges and Disclosures are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedules of Operating Expenses and Restricted Plant
Benefits Charges and Disclosures are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.



To the Board of Directors of the
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Georgetown, California

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 29, 2017, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Fechter & Company,
Certified Public Accountants

S, O

Sacramento, California
December 29, 2017



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2017

As management of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (District), we offer readers of the
District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with the audited financial statements and accompanying notes that follow this section.

Financial Highlights

Total revenue for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 was $5,141,124, an increase of $1,088,841 or 26.87%
from the previous fiscal year. Total expenses were $4,119,887, a decrease of $269,844 or 6.04% from the
previous fiscal year. The increase in net position was $941,237 for the fiscal year.

Operating revenue totaled $2,224,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, an increase of $264,001 or
13.47% from the previous fiscal year. Operating expenses totaled $4,119,004 a decrease of $317,713 or
7.16% from the previous fiscal year.

Non-operating revenue was $2,917,124, an increase of $824,840 or 39.42%. Non-operating expense was
$80,883, an increase of $47,869 or 145%. The remaining non-operating revenue supplements operating
revenue to cover operating expenses and capital improvements.

Other significant financial activities were:
¢ Hiring a full time General Manager to fill the vacant position.
o Investing $2,410,219 towards the design of the Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant
Retrofit Project.
e Water sales beginning to recover from the Statewide drought, which impacted operating
revenues from rates.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of four parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial
Statements, Required Supplementary Information, and optional Supplementary Information.

The required financial statements are the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2017; the Statement of
Activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 at the government-wide level; the Statement of Net
Position — Proprietary Funds at June 30, 2017; the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position — Proprietary Funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017; and the Statement of Cash Flows —
Proprietary Funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 at the fund level. The final required financial
statement is the Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities. The financial statements also include
comprehensive notes which summarize the official accounting policies of the District.

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, which means that revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred regardless of the timing of cash receipts or
payments. The cash flow statement is an exception because that statement shows the receipt and payment of
cash for operating activities, non-capital financing activities, capital and related financing activities, and
investing activities.



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2017

Required Financial Statements

The financial statements of the District report information about the District using accounting methods
similar to those used by companies in the private sector. These statements offer short and long-term
financial information about its activities. The Statement of Net Position includes all the District’s assets and
liabilities. The statement also provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in assets
and obligations to District creditors as liabilities. The statement also provides the basis for computing rate
of return, evaluating the capital structure of the District, and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility
of the District.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying events giving rise
to the changes occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.

All of the current fiscal year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. This statement measures the District’s operations over the past
fiscal year and can be used to determine whether the District has successfully recovered all of its costs
through its rates, fees, and other charges. The District’s net position and credit worthiness can also be
determined from this statement.

The primary purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows is to provide information about the District’s cash
receipts and cash payments during the reporting period. This statement reports cash receipts, cash
payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operating, investing, and financing activities. It explains
where cash came from, cash usage, and the change in the cash balance during the reporting period.

The Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities is provided to report on assets held in an agency capacity
for others and which cannot be used to support the District’s operating activities.

Financial Analysis of the District

Has the financial condition of the District improved or deteriorated as a result of this year’s operations? The
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position attempts
to answer this question. Net position may be a useful indicator over time as to the District’s financial
position. But, there may be other non-economic factors that could cause a change in the District’s financial
situation.

Statement of Net Position

The Statement of Net Position is a snapshot in time that shows assets, liabilities, and net assets as of June
30, 2017. Net Position increased by $941,237 to $17,188,262 in fiscal year 2017. Total assets and deferred
outflows increased by 3,997,302 and liabilities and deferred inflows increased by $3,056,065 from the
previous fiscal year. A summary of the District’s Statement of Net Position is presented in Table A-1.



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Table A-1
Condensed Statement of Net Position

Current Assets
Restricted Assets
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

Deferred pensions

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Liabilities

Current Restricted Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted Net Assets for Facilities

Restricted Net Assets for Debt Service
Unrestricted Net Assets

Total Net Assets

June 30, 2017

Fiscal Year 2017  Fiscal Year2016 ~ Dollar Change Percent

Change
$ 6752497 $ 7,163,033 $§  (410,536) 573%
4,114,818 2,994,909 1,119,909 37.39%
14,460,695 12,270,069 2,190,626 17.85%
25,328,010 22428011 2,899,999 12.93%
1,582,032 484,729 1,097,303 226.37%
26,910,042 22,912,740 3,997,302 17.45%
378,898 223,574 155,324 69.47%
1,122,600 8,090 1,114510  13776.39%
7,985,590 6,235,173 1,750,417 28.07%
234,692 198,878 35814 18.01%
9,721,780 6,665,715 3,056,065 45.85%
12,526,296 11,389,428 1,136,868 9.98%
2,365,593 2,265,880 99,713 4.40%
358,941 397,952 (39,011) -9.80%
1,937,432 2,193,765 (256333)  -11.68%
$ 17188262 $ 16247025 & 941237 5.79%

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position provides information on the nature and
source of assets represented on the Statement of Net Position. It also shows that the revenues exceeded
expenses by $941,237. Ending net position totaled $17,188,262. Total revenues increased by $1,088,841 in
2017 totaling $5,141,124. Operating revenue increased by $264,001.
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position lists the operating revenues and the non-operating revenues together
and compares them to the operating and non-operating expenses. Table A-2 depicts total revenues and total

expenses and the resulting changes in net position.

The Statement of Revenues,



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2017
Table A-2
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Dollar Percent

2017 2016 Change Change
Operating Revenues $ 2,224,000 $ 1,959,999 $ 264,001 13.47%
Non-operating Revenues and Contributions 2,917,124 2,092,284 824,840 39.42%
Total Revenues 5,141,124 4,052,283 1,088,841 26.87%
Operating Expenses 4,119,004 4,436,717 (317,713) -7.16%
Non-operating Expenses 80,883 33,014 47,869 145.00%
Total Expenses 4,199,887 4,469,731 (269,844) -6.04%
Net Income (Loss) 941,237 (417.448) 1,358,685 -325.47%
Beginning Net Assets 16,247,025 16,664,473 (417,448) -2.51%
Ending Net Assets $ 17,188,262 $ 16,247,025 $ 941237 5.79%

Operating Revenues

In a purely business environment, operating revenues are meant to cover operating expenses. The District's
operating revenues are significantly less than operating expenses. Therefore, the District operates on an
operating loss and requires non-operating revenue to operate. The District is fairly unique in that it receives
a significant amount of non-operating revenue in the form of property taxes. This non-operating revenue is
used to offset this operating loss. Operating revenues increased slightly this year. The end of dry weather
conditions and easing of the statewide drought have resulted in a light rebound in revenue from water sales.
The remaining operating revenues were close to expectations. Operating revenues are depicted in Table

A-3.
Table A-3
Condensed Operating Revenues

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Dollar Percent

2017 2016 Change Change

Water Sales - Residential $1,350,610 $1.244,193 $106,417 8.55%
Water Sales - Commercial 224,924 177,031 47,893 27.05%
Water Sales - Irrigation 224,156 135,218 88,938 65.77%
Water Disposal Fees and Charges 347,582 346,429 1,153 0.33%
Penalties 43,652 39,885 3,767 9.44%
Connections 33,044 15,232 17,812 116.94%
Other Operating Revenues 32 2,011 (1,979) -98.41%
Total Operating Revenues $2,224,000 $1,959,999 $264,001 13.47%




GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Operating Expenses by Department

Total operating expenses decreased $317,713 or 7.16% to $4,119,004. One significant ($176,834) decrease
in expenses was realized in Transmission and Distribution — Raw Water activities largely due to a reduction
in staffing and termination of the General Manager. The other significant decrease in expenses ($149,427)
is due to a reduction in annual depreciation as many District assets have reached the end of their useful life
and are fully depreciated. On-site Wastewater Disposal expenses increased due to increased staffing
The hydroelectric activities are combined with the
administrative activities as they are not material enough to present separately. Source of Supply expenses

necessary for increased real estate transactions.

June 30, 2017

decreased due to a reduction in staffing. Operating expenses are depicted in Table A-4.

Table A-4
Operating Expenses by Department

Source of Supply

Transmission and Distribution — Raw Water
Water Treatment

Transmission and Distribution — Treated Water
Customer Service

Administrative and Hydroelectric
Depreciation and Amortization

On-site Wastewater Disposal Zone

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Revenues vs. Operating Expenses

The District’s operating loss decreased by $581,714. Table A-5 compares operating revenues to operating

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Dollar Percent
2017 2016 Change ~ Change

$ 291,251 $ 351,861 $ (60,610) -17.23%
416,978 593,812 (176,834) -29.78%
576,938 546,119 30,819 5.64%
692,748 728,310 (35,562) -4.88%
245,576 250,023 (4,447) -1.78%
956,416 966,505 (10,089) -1.04%
666,864 816,291 (149,427) -1831%
272,233 183,796 88,437 48.12%

$4,119,004 $4,436,717 $(317,713) -7.16%

expenses and depicts the District’s reliance on other revenue for operations.

Table A-5
Operating Revenues vs Operating Expenses
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Dollar Percent
2017 2016 Change Change
Operating Revenues  $ 2,224,000 $ 1,959,999 $264,001 13.47%
Operating Expenses 4,119,004 4,436,717 (317,713) -7.16%
Operating Loss $(1,895,004) $(2,476,718) $581,714 -23.49%




GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2017

Non-operating Revenues and Expenses

The District’s non-operating income is vital to covering operations. Interest income, Capital Facility
Payments and Capital Contributions had significant increases this fiscal year. In addition, the District
collected an additional Surcharge. Table A-6 compares non-operating revenues and expenses.

Table A-6
Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Dollar Percent
2017 2016 Change Change
Property Taxes — General $ 1,524,159 $ 1447381 $ 76,778 5.30%
Interest Income 67,984 45,883 22,101 48.17%
Capital Facility Payments 53,200 18,400 34,800 189.13%
Lease Revenue 65,795 60,230 5,565 9.24%
Hydroelectric Royalty Payments 49,655 43,259 6,396 14.79%
SMUD Payment 107,729 108,515 (786) -0.72%
Gain on sale of asset 1,527 (1,527)  -100.00%
Surcharge 328,751 328,751 100.00%
Capital contributions 715,365 339,606 375,759 110.65%
Other 4,486 27483 (22,997) -83.68%
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Including Property
Owner Contributions) 2,917,124 2,092,284 824,840 39.42%
Total Non-operating Expenses 80,883 33,014 47,869 145.00%

Non-operating Income less Non-operating Expense $ 2,836,241 $ 2,059,270 $ 776971 37.73%

Capital Assets

The District’s investment in capital assets for the fiscal year was $2,857,491, which includes $2,465,524
capital improvements. Additions to capital assets are:

$2,410,219 Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant Retrofit project

$55,305 Water Conservation, Supply Reliability, and Environmental Protection Project (CABY)
$47,833 2017 Ford F350

$69,086 John Deer 50G Excavator

$23,262 2017 Ford 150

$166,347 Walton Storage Tank Recoating

$85,439 other miscellaneous assets

Additional information about District capital assets can be obtained in Note 4 of the notes to the financial
statements.



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2017

Long-term Debt and Debt Administration

At June 30, 2017, the District had $7,985,590 in long-term debt, including compensated absences and other
postemployment benefits obligations, $1,750,417 more than the prior fiscal year. The District continues to
perform debt administration functions previously performed by the County on the District’s behalf for
certain 1915 Act bonds. Additional information about District long-term debt can be obtained in Note 6 of
the notes to the financial statements.

CalPERS Pension Plan

Assembly Bill 340 was recently passed by the California Legislature in an effort to reduce CalPERS pension
costs in the long run. The District has participated in a CalPERS Pension Plan since February of 1972.
There have been amendments to the contract with CalPERS over the years. CalPERS requires the District
to be part of a small employer pool and the 2006 contract change which require payments to reduce a side
fund. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute and the employer
contribution rate is established and may be amended by CalPERS.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

The District has been endeavoring to fund these benefit commitments for many years and implemented
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45 — Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions in fiscal year 2010. On April 11, 2006, the
District adopted Ordinance 2006-01 regarding retiree health benefits implementing caps on the amount the
District would pay towards these types of benefits. A calculation of the future liability for these benefits has
been prepared utilizing the simplified method allowed by the statement for small employers. Utilizing this
method, it is estimated that the District saved approximately $850,000 by instituting the caps. The estimated
actuarial liability at June 30, 2015 is $1,533,647. The District has set aside $519,756 for this obligation. As
the District administers this plan without a trust, the designated assets set aside for these benefits are not
recognized in the notes to the financial statements. Additional information about postemployment benefits
other than pensions can be obtained in Note 14 of the notes to the financial statements.

Economic Factors and Rates

The District’s customer base continues to grow at a slow rate. The District completed a Water System
Reliability Study in fiscal year 2002. This study has been utilized as a basis for long-term maintenance and
capital improvement plans for the District. The District reviewed its financial reserves and updated its
financial reserve policy in fiscal year 2006. The updated reserve policy provides a guide for development of
future rates and fees to adequately support the capital and operation needs of the District.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the finances of the Georgetown Divide
Public Utility District. After the financial report is approved by the Board of Directors, it can be found
under the financial section on the District’s website (gd-pud.org). Copies of the report are also provided to
the El Dorado County libraries in Placerville and Georgetown. A copy will be available for review at the
District office, located at 6425 Main St, Georgetown, CA 95634. Questions concerning any information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the General
Manager of the District, Georgetown Divide Public Utility District, P.O. Box 4240, Georgetown, CA
95634-4240.

10



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2017
(with comparative totals for June 30, 2016)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts
Interest
Inventory
Deposits and prepaid expenses
Total current assets
Restricted Assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Interest
Assessments
Total restricted assets
Capital assets, net
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pensions
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deposits payable
Unearned revenue
Total Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accrued interest payable
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due in one year
Due in more than one year
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pensions

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for new facilities
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

Business-Type Activities

2017 2016
$ 6,094,134 $ 6,646,096
511,658 366,806
9,711 7,081
42,990 41,826
94,004 101,224
6,752,497 7,163,033
3,933,223 2,717,114
6,907 281
174,688 277,514
7,114,818 2,994,900
14,460,695 12,270,069
25,328,010 22,428,011
1,582,032 484,729
$ 26,910,042 $ 22,912,740
301,942 146,833
47,701 51,489

7,900 -
21,355 25,252
378,808 223,574
5,403 5,646
1,116,026 1,273
1,171 1,171
1,122,600 8,000
128,536 137,481
7,857,054 6,097,692
7,085,590 6,235,173
9,487,088 6,466,837
234,692 198,878
12,526,296 11,389,428
2,365,593 2,265,880
358,941 397,952 *
1,937,432 2,193,765
17,188,262 16,247,025
$ 26910,042 $ 22,912,740

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

11



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
(with comparative totals for June 30, 2016)

Program Revenues Net Changes in Net Position
Capital
Charges for ~ Contributions
Functions/Programs Expenses Services and Grants 2017 2016
Business-Type Activities:
Water $ 3,903,623 $ 1,876,418 $ 715365 $ (1,311,840) $ (2,304,889)
Wastewater Disposal 296,264 347,582 - 51,318 134,763

Total business-type activities $ 4,199,887 § 2,224,000 § 715,365 (1,260,522) (2,170,126)

General Revenues:

Property taxes 1,524,159 1,447,381
Surcharge 328,751 -
Investment income 67,984 45,883
Other revenues 280,865 259,414
Total general revenues 2,201,759 1,752,678
Change in net position 941,237 (417,448)

Net position - beginning of year 16,247,025 16,664,473

Net position end of year $ 17,188,262 $§ 16,247,025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
12



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017
(with comparative totals for June 30, 2016)
Enterprise Funds Totals
Wastewater
Water Disposal 2017 2016
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments $ 5201,730 $ 892404 $ 6,094,134 $ 6,646,096
Receivables:
Accounts 508,410 3,248 511,658 366,806
Interest 7,517 2,194 9,711 7,081
Inventory 42,990 - 42,990 41,826
Deposits and prepaid expenses 92,122 1,882 94,004 101,224
Total current assets 5,852,769 899,728 6,752,497 7,163,033
Restricted Assets:
Cash and investments 3,679,895 253,328 3,933,223 2,717,114
Receivables:
Interest 6,310 597 6,907 281
Assessments 174,688 - 174,688 277,514
Total restricted assets 3,860,893 253,925 4,114,818 2,994,909
Capital assets, net 14,253,129 207,566 14,460,695 12,270,069
TOTAL ASSETS 23,966,791 1,361,219 25,328,010 22,428,011
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pensions 1,534,571 47,461 1,582,032 484,729
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 25,501,362 $ 1,408,680 $ 26,910,042 $ 22,912,740
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 299,134 2,808 301,942 146,833
Accrued expenses 45,364 2,337 47,701 51,489
Deposits payable 7,900 - 7,900 -
Unearned revenue 21,355 - 21,355 25,252
Total Current Liabilities 373,753 5,145 378,898 223,574
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accrued interest payable 5,403 - 5,403 5,646
Accounts payable 1,116,026 - 1,116,026 1,273
Unearned revenue 1,171 - 1,171 1,171
Total Current Liabilities Payable from
Restricted Assets 1,122,600 - 1,122,600 8,090
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due in one year 127,100 1,436 128,536 137,481
Due in more than one year 7,694,963 162,091 7,857,054 6,097,692
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 7,822,063 163,527 7,985,590 6,235,173
TOTAL LIABILITIES 9,318,416 168,672 9,487,088 6,466,837
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pensions 227,651 7,041 234,692 198,878
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES 227,651 7,041 234,692 198,878
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 12,318,730 207,566 12,526,296 11,389,428
Restricted for new facilities 2,111,668 253,925 2,365,593 2,265,880
Restricted for debt service 358,941 - 358,941 397,952
Unrestricted 1,165,956 771,476 1,937,432 2,193,765
TOTAL NET POSITION 15,955,295 1,232,967 17,188,262 16,247,025
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS AND NET POSITION $ 25,501,362 $ 1,408,680 $ 26,910,042 $ 22912740

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

13



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
(with comparative totals for June 30, 2016)

Enterprise Funds Totals
Wastewater
Water Disposal 2017 2016
Operating revenues:
Water sales:
Residential $ 1,350,610 $ - $ 1,350,610 $ 1,244,193
Commercial 224,924 - 224,924 177,031
Irrigation 224,156 - 224,156 135,218
Installations and connections 33,044 - 33,044 15,232
Waste disposal:
Zone charges - 311,477 311,477 311,629
Design fees - 6,600 6,600 1,200
Escrow fees - 29,505 29,505 33,600
Penalties 43,652 - 43,652 39,885
Other 32 E 32 2,011
Total operating revenues 1,876,418 347,582 2,224,000 1,959,999
Operating expenses:
Source of supply 291,251 - 291,251 351,861
Transmission and distribution - raw water 416,978 - 416,978 593,812
Pumping and power 576,938 - 576,938 546,119
Transmission and distribution - treated water 692,748 - 692,748 728,310
Customer service 245,576 - 245,576 250,023
Administration and hydroelectric 956,416 - 956,416 966,505
Depreciation 642,833 24,031 666,864 816,291
On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone - 272,233 272,233 183,796
Total operating expenses 3,822,740 296,264 4,119,004 4,436,717
Operating income (loss) (1,946,322) 51,318 (1,895,004) (2,476,718)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Tax revenue - general 1,524,159 - 1,524,159 1,447,381
Surcharge 328,751 - 328,751 -
Interest income 59,478 8,506 67,984 45,883
Lease revenue 65,795 - 65,795 60,230
SMUD payment 107,729 B 107,729 108,515
Hydroelectric royalty payments 49,655 - 49,655 43,259
Capital facility charge 53,200 - 53,200 18,400
Gain on sale of assets - - - 1,527
Other revenue 4,486 - 4,486 27,483
Interest expense (25,210) - (25,210) (25,882)
Other expense (55,673) - (55,673) (7,132)
Total non-operating revenues, net 2,112,370 8,506 2,120,876 1,719,664
Income (loss) before capital contributions
and transfers 166,048 59,824 225,872 (757,054)
Capital contributions 715,365 - 715,365 339,606
Transfers in 65,736 32,000 97,736 1,198,358
Transfers out (56,377) (41,359) (97,736) (1,198,358)
Capital contributions and transfers in (out), net 724,724 (9,359) 715,365 339,606
Change in net position 890,772 50,465 941,237 (417,448)
Beginning net position 15,064,523 1,182,502 16,247,025 16,664,473
Prior period adjustment - - - -
Beginning net position, restated 15,064,523 1,182,502 16,247,025 16,664,473
Ending net position $ 15,955,295 $1,232,967 $ 17,188,262 $ 16,247,025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

14



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
(with comparative totals for June 30, 2016)

Enterprise Funds Totals
Wastewater
Water Disposal 2017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers $ 1,731,771 $ 349,080 $ 2,080,851 $ 2,028,117
Payments to suppliers (1,175,499) (113,654) (1,289,153) (1,397,223)
Payments to employees (2,175,576) (192,539) (2,368,115) (2,093,953)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (1,619,304) 42,887 (1,576,417) (1,463,059)
Cash Flows from non-capital financing activities:
Property taxes received 1,524,159 - 1,524,159 1,447,381
Surcharge 328,751 - 328,751 -
Assessment receivable payments 102,826 - 102,826 72,676
Receipts from capacity charges 53,200 - 53,200 18,400
SMUD payment 107,729 - 107,729 108,515
Hydroelectric royalty payments 49,655 - 49,655 43,259
Other revenue 4,486 - 4,486 27,483
Other expense (55,673) - (55,673) (7,132)
Transfers (to) from other funds 9,359 (9,359) - -
Receipts from cellular antenna rentals 65,795 - 65,795 60,230
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities 2,190,287 (9,359) 2,180,928 1,770,812
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt (103,382) - (103,382) (90,972)
Loan proceeds 1,157,141 - 1,157,141 -
Interest payments on long-term debt (25,453) - (25,453) (26,784)
Capital grant 715,365 - 715,365 339,606
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - - 1,527
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,742,763) - (1,742,763) (277,793)
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities 908 - 908 (54,416)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income received 51,656 7,072 58,728 44,712
Net cash provided by investing activities 51,656 7,072 58,728 44,712
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 623,547 40,600 664,147 298,049
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 8,258,078 1,105,132 9,363,210 9,065,161
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 8,881,625 $ 1,145,732 $ 10,027,357 $§ 9,363,210
Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments, unrestricted $ 5,201,730 $ 892,404 $ 6,094,134 $ 6,646,096
Restricted cash and investments 3,679,895 253,328 3,933,223 2,717,114
Total cash and investments $ 8,881,625 $1,145732  $ 10,027,357 § 9,363,210
Noncash investing/financing activities:
Issuance of capital lease $ - $ - $ - $ 54,406
(Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
15



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
(with comparative totals for June 30, 2016)

Enterprise Funds Totals
Wastewater
Water Disposal 2017 2016

Recenciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $ (1,946,322) $ 51,318 $ (1,895,004) $ (2,476,718)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 642,833 24,031 666,864 816,291
Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
and deferred inflows of resources:
Accounts receivable (146,350) 1,498 (144,852) 58,364
Inventory (1,164) - (1,164) 5,309
Deposits and prepaid expenses 7,812 (592) 7,220 (5,084)
Deferred outflow - pension (1,066,323) (30,980) (1,097,303) (179,567)
Accounts payable 158,113 (4,955) 153,158 55,918
Accrued expenses (4,149) 2,337 (1,812) 21,061
Deposits payable 2,300 - 2,300 -
Compensated absences (6,174) 677 (5,497) 19,097
Postemployment benefits 87,848 - 87,848 78,182
Deferred infiow - pension 35,535 279 35,814 (639,531)
Net pension liability 615,034 (726) 614,308 773,865
Unearned revenue 1,703 - 1,703 9,754
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ (1,619304) §$§ 42,887 $ (1,576,417) $ (1,463,059)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

16



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

JUNE 30, 2017

(with comparative totals for June 30, 2016)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments
Prepaid expenses
Receivables:
Interest
Assessments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due in one year
Due in more than one year
Total noncurrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Totals
2017 2016

84,638 $ 103,299

- (955)
- 67
154,919 163,527
239,557 $ 265,938

746 $ -

2,246 2,996
52,718 13,738
55,710 76,734
5,553 5,358
178,294 183,846
183,847 189,204
239,557 $ 265,938

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

17



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Note 1:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Significant Accounting Policies

A. Organization and Description

The reporting entity, the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (District), was created
by the electorate, June 4, 1946, under the California Public Utility District Act of 1921.
The District operates under a governing five-member Board of Directors (Board) elected
at-large for four-year overlapping terms. The District’s management is under the
direction of the General Manager, who also serves as Clerk, and ex-officio Secretary of
the Board, who is appointed by and serves at the pleasure of the Board.

Reporting Entity

The District’s basic financial statements include the operations of all organizations for
which the District’s Board of Directors exercises oversight responsibility. Oversight
responsibility is demonstrated by financial interdependency, selection of governing
authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations, and
accountability for fiscal matters.

Based upon the aforementioned oversight criteria, there are no component units in this
report which met the criteria of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and 61.

The basic financial statements include the accounts of two enterprise activities provided
by the District: (1) raw and treated water services, and (2) wastewater disposal services in
the Auburn Lake Trails (A.L.T.) subdivision.

Basis of Presentation

The District’s basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board is the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing
accounting and financial reporting standards followed by governmental entities in the
United States of America.

Government- Wide Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about
the primary government (District). These statements include the financial activities of the
District, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the
double counting of internal activities. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in
part by fees charged to external parties.

18



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note 1:  Significant Accounting Policies - continued
C. Basis of Presentation - continued

Government-Wide Statements - continued

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each segment of the District’s business-type activities. Direct expenses are
those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are
clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by
the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, (b) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational need of a particular program, and (c) fees,
grants, and contributions that are restricted to financing the acquisition or construction of
capital assets. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as
general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements provide information about the District’s funds, including
the fiduciary fund. Separate statements for each fund category — proprietary and
fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
individual funds, each of which is displayed in a separate column. All remaining funds
are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether
current or noncurrent) are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and
decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in
the period in which the liability is incurred.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from
the primary operation of the fund. All other revenues are reported as nonoperating
revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary
operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as nonoperating expenses.

19



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note 1:  Significant Accounting Policies - continued

C.

Basis of Presentation - continued

Fund Financial Statements - continued

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or
as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and/or other
funds. The District maintains one fiduciary fund. Fiduciary funds are custodial in nature
and do not have a measurement focus; however, they do use the accrual basis of
accounting.

Major Funds

GASB Statement No. 34 defines major funds and requires that the District’s major
proprietary funds are identified and presented separately in the fund financial statements.
All other funds, called nonmajor funds, are combined and reported in a single column,
regardless of their fund-type.

Major funds are defined as funds that have assets, liabilities, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses equal to or greater than ten percent of their fund-type total and
five percent of all fund-type totals. The District may also select other funds that it
believes should be presented as major funds. The District reports all its proprietary funds
as major funds.

The District reported the following major proprietary funds:

Water

This fund accounts for the activities of providing raw and treated water services to the
customers. Raw water service is also known as irrigation water.

Wastewater Disposal

This fund accounts for the activities of monitoring wastewater disposal of the residents of
the Auburn Lake Trails subdivision. The area is also known as the On-Site Wastewater
Disposal Zone. The On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone is comprised of all the lots in the
Auburn Lake Trails Subdivision, including the lots connected to the Community Disposal
System.

Additionally, the District reports a fiduciary agency fund to account for the debt service
activities for the Stewart Mine, Greenwood, Cool-Cherry Acres, Spanish Dry Diggins,
and Water Line Extensions 77-5 Water Assessment Districts. The District’s
administration of this debt is a purely custodial function.

20



Note 1:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Significant Accounting Policies - continued

E.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the “economic resources”
measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when
the related cash flows take place.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both government-wide financial statements and
proprietary funds financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict
with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for
their business-type activities and proprietary funds, subject to this same limitation. The
government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Budget and Budgeting
Budget integration is employed as a management control device. Budgets are formally
adopted by the Board of Directors and take effect the following July 1. The budgets are

used as a management tool and are not a legal requirement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the District considers all highly liquid

investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Inventory
Inventories of supplies are stated at cost. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis.
Restricted Assets

These assets consist of certificates of deposit, short-term investments, and receivables
which are restricted for debt service and other legal obligations.

21



Note 1:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Significant Accounting Policies - continued

J.

Capital Assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at fair
value at the date of donation. The District capitalizes capital assets valued over $1,000
and having a useful life of at least three years. Depreciation is recorded using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the capital assets, which range
from 30 to 100 years for the plant and pipelines and 3 to 15 years for other equipment.

Compensated Absences

All earned vacation, which is payable upon termination or retirement, is accrued as
compensated absences, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 16.

Property Taxes

The District receives property taxes from El Dorado County (County), which has been
assigned the responsibility for assessment, collection, and apportionment of property
taxes for all taxing jurisdictions within the County. The District’s property taxes are
levied each July 1, on the assessed values as of the prior January 1 for all real and
personal property located in the District. Property sold after the assessment date (January
1) is reassessed and the amount of the supplemental property tax levied is prorated.
Secured property taxes are due in two installments on November 1 and February 1 and
are delinquent after December 10 and April 10, respectively. Property taxes on the
unsecured roll are due on the January 1 lien date and become delinquent if unpaid by
August 31.

The District participates in the County “Teeter Plan” method of property tax distribution
and thus receives 100% of the District’s apportionment each fiscal year, eliminating the
need for an allowance for uncollectibles. The County, in return, receives all penalties and
interest on the related delinquent taxes. Under the Teeter Plan, the County remits
property taxes to the District based on assessments, not on collections, according to the
following schedule: 55 percent in December, 40 percent in April, and 5 percent at the end
of the fiscal year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, as prescribed by the GASB and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

22



Note 1:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Significant Accounting Policies - continued

N. Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior fiscal year has been presented in the accompanying
basic financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the
District’s financial position, operations, and cash flows. Certain classifications may have
been made to the prior fiscal year financial statements to conform to the current fiscal
year presentation.

Net Position

GASB Statement No. 63 requires that the difference between assets added to the deferred
outflows of resources and liabilities added to the deferred inflows of resources be
reported as net position. Net position is classified as either net investment in capital
assets, restricted, or unrestricted.

Net position that is net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the outstanding principal of related debt.
Restricted net position is the portion of net position that has external constraints placed
on it by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Unrestricted net position
consists of net position that does not meet the definition of net investment in capital
assets or restricted net position.

Pension Plans

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of
resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Local Government of District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement
System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to /deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

23



Note 2:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Cash and Investments

Classification

The cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below, based on
whether or not their use is restricted under the terms of District debt instruments or District

agreements:

Unrestricted cash and investments $ 6,094,134

Restricted cash and investments 3,933,223

Cash and investments, Statement of Net Position 10,027,357

Cash and investments, Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 84,638
Total Cash and Investments $ 10,111,995

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017, consist of the following:

Cash on hand $ 450
Deposits with financial institutions 110,841
Investments 10,000,704

Total Cash and Investments $ 10,111,995

A. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s

Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the
California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive).
The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the
District’s investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit
risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments of debt
proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of
the District, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
District’s investment policy.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio _in One Issuer
Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF) N/A None $50 million
Money Market Funds (must be
Comprised of eligible securities
Permitted under this policy) N/A None None

24



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note 2: Cash and Investments — continued

B.

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
District’s investment policy. The table below identifies the investment types that are
authorized for investments held by bond trustee. The table also identifies certain
provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and
concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio  in One Issuer
Money Market Funds N/A None None

Fair Value Hierarchy

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
in an active market for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable
inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

Deposits and withdrawals in governmental investment pools, such as the State of
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAI F), are made on the basis of one dollar
and not fair value. Accordingly, the fair value of the County's proportionate share in this
type of investment is an uncategorized input not defined as a Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3
input. Money Market Accounts are nonparticipating interest-bearing savings accounts.
They are measured using a cost-based measure, not fair value, and therefore, not subject
to fair value hierarchy.

25



Note 2:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Cash and Investments — continued

C. Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market
interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of
the District’s investments by maturity:

Remaining Maturity
(in Months)
12 Months
Investment Type or Less
State Investment Pool (LAIF) $ 6,935,485
Money Market Funds 3,032,145
Held by Debt Trustees:
Money Market Funds 33,074
$ 10,000,704

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the
minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the
District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of fiscal year
end for each investment type.

Rating as of Fiscal Year End

Minimum
Legal
Investment Type Amount Rating AAA Not rated
State Investment Pool (LAIF) $ 6,935,485 N/A § $ 6,935,485
Money Market Funds 3,032,145 N/A 3,032,145
Held by Debt Trustees:
Money Market Funds 33,074 N/A 33,074
$ 10,000,704 $ 33,074 $ 9,967,630

26



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note 2: Cash and Investments - continued

D.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the District contains limitations on the amount that can be
invested in any one issuer. Only investments with LAIF and the Money Market Funds
exceed 5% or more of total District investments. The Money Market Funds are
collateralized for the amount over the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation amount or
backed by United States obligations.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be
able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The
custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do
not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit
risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The
California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by
state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool
held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the government unit).
The fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of
the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure District deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having
a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.

As of June 30, 2017, $2,782,146 of the District’s deposits and investments with financial
institutions in excess of federal depository insurance limits were held in collateralized
accounts.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in LAIF that is regulated by the California
Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair
value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial
statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided
by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).
The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by
LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

27



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2017
Note 2: Cash and Investments - continued
F. Investment in State Investment Pool - continued
Restricted cash and investments are identified by use as follows at June 30, 2017:
Waste
Water Disposal Total
Debt Service:
Kelsey South $ 232,172 § § 232,172
Kelsey North 126,769 126,769
State Revolving Fund 57,128 57,128
Total Debt Service
Cash and Investments 416,069 416,069
New Facilities:
Capital Facility Charges 1,703,842 1,703,842
Water Development 402,843 402,843
Auburn Lake Trails Retrofit Project 1,157,141 1,157,141
Community Disposal System
Replacement and Expansion 253,328 253,328
Total New Facilities Cash and
Investments 3,263,826 253,328 3,517,154
Total Restricted Cash and
Investments $ 3,679,895 $ 253,328 $ 3,933,233
Note 3: Assessments Receivable and Long-Term Receivable

Assessments receivable to the District are construction obligations of the benefited property
owners of the Kelsey North, Kelsey South, Pilot Hill North, Pilot Hill South, and Stewart
Mine Water Assessment Districts. El Dorado County collects the special assessments semi-
annually in order to pay the related projects’ Department of Water Resources or United States
Department of Agriculture construction debts as they mature. The assessments receivable

balances at June 30, 2017, were as follows:

Current Non-Current Total
Water Restricted Assessments Receivable $ 24906 $ 149,782 $ 174,668
Fiduciary Assessments Receivable 5,329 149,590 154,919
Total Assessments Receivable $ 30,235 $ 299,372 $§ 329,587

28



Note 4:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Capital Assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost when purchased. Donated capital assets are
recorded at fair value at the date of donation. Capital assets are depreciated over estimated
useful lives ranging from one hundred years (Stumpy Meadows Dam) to three years (small
office equipment) using the straight-line method. Capital assets at June 30, 2017, consisted of
the following:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2016 Additions Deletions June 30, 2017
Nondepreciable Capital Assets:
Land and land right $ 770,975 $ $ $ 770,975
Construction in progress 1,046,483 2,465,524 3,512,007
Total nondepreciable capital assets 1,817,458 2,465,524 4,282,982
Depreciable Capital Assets:
General plant equipment and facilities 1,273,069 1,273,069
Water treatment 5,601,841 166,347 5,768,188
Transmission and distribution 13,302,475 225,620 13,528,095
Auburn Lake Trails septic facilities 847,140 847,140
Source of supply 6,784,396 6,784,396
Total depreciable capital assets 27,808,921 391,967 28,200,888
Less: accumulated depreciation (17,356,310) (666,864) (18,023,174)
Net depreciable capital assets 10,452,611 (274,897) 10,177,714
Net capital assets $ 12,270,069 $ 2,190,627 § $ 14,460,695

Depreciation Allocations

Depreciation expense was charged to functions and programs based on their usage of the
related assets. The amounts allocated to each function or program was as follows:

Business-Type Activities:

Water $ 642,833
Wastewater Disposal 24,031
Total Depreciation Expense-Business-Type Activities $ 666,864

29



Note 5:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Long-Term Debt

A. Compensated Absences

District employees accumulate earned but unused vacation benefits which can be
converted to cash at termination of employment. It is estimated that up to two weeks per
employee might be liquidated with expendable, currently available financial resources
in the next year. These vested benefits are reported as part of the noncurrent liabilities
on the Statement of Net Position and totaled $65,105 at June 30, 2017. It is anticipated
that $35,237 of these benefits will be used during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017.

B. Notes Payable
Balance

June 30, 2017
Department of Water Resources
Three long-term contracts have been entered into with the State
of California Department of Water Resources (DWR) to finance
the construction of various water projects.

The Kelsey North Water Assessment District 1989-1 contract of
$630,000 is to be repaid by seventy semi-annual payments of
$15,398. These payments, due April 1 and October 1, beginning
April of 1993 and ending October 1, 2027, include interest on the
outstanding note balance at 3.3712%. Payments are made from
assessments collected from the Assessment District. $ 270,414

The Kelsey South Water Assessment District 1989-4 contract of
$666,750 is to be repaid by sixty semi-annual payments of
$17,836. These payments, due April 1 and October 1, beginning
April of 1993 and ending October 1, 2022, includes interest on
the outstanding note balance at 3.41%. Payments are made from
assessments collected from the Assessment District. 177,518

The Walton Lake Water Treatment Plant Filter Replacement

contract of $400,511 is to be repaid by forty semi-annual

payments of $12,529. These payments, due April 1 and

October 1, beginning October of 2010 and ending April 1, 2030,

include interest on the outstanding note balance at 2.2836%. 280,474
Total Department of Water Resources Notes Payable 728,406

United States Bureau of Reclamation

A non-interest bearing contract was entered into with the U.S.
Bureau of Reclamation in 1977 to construct the Otter Creek
Project. Annual principal payments of $4,538 are due through

January 1, 2018. 4,538
Total Notes Payable $ 732,944

30



Note 5:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Long-Term Debt - continued

B. Notes Payable — continued

California State Water Resources Control Board

Project No. 0910013-005C Agreement No. D16-02021 construction loan

for the Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant Upgrade at 1.6%. No

payment due until construction is completed estimated in fiscal year

2018-2019. Loan approved to $10 million. $ 1,157,141

Future minimum debt service requirements for notes payable are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 75,029 $ 21,034  $ 96,063
2019 72,692 18,833 91,525
2020 74,942 16,583 91,525
2021 77,327 14,198 91,525
2022 79,728 11,797 91,525

2023-2027 265,827 31,275 297,102
2028-2031 87,399 3,171 90,570

$ 732,944 § 116,891  $ 849,835

Capital Leases

On November 27, 2006, the District entered into a long-term capital lease agreement with
Verizon for the purpose of constructing a permanent cell tower. The first ten years of
uncollected lease payments represent the cost of constructing the tower, which is owned
by the District. If the lease is terminated within the first ten years, the District will owe
Verizon the remaining construction cost. The first ten year period commenced November
1, 2008. The capital lease totaled $155,731 based on discounting at 3% the monthly lease
amount of $1,500. The capital lease liability is being retired using a 3% interest rate as
well. The balance of the capital lease at June 30, 2017, was $5,963.

On May 22, 2016, the district entered into a long-term capital lease agreement with
Santander Financing for a 2016 Ram 5500 truck costing $54,406. The payments are
$1,231 per month including interest at 4.1% for 48 months. The balance of the lease at
June 30, 2017, was $38,351. The accumulated depreciation and related depreciation
expense on the truck for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $13,602 and $10,881,
respectively.

31



Note 5:

Note 6:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Long-Term Debt — continued
C. Capital Leases — continued
Future minimum debt service requirements for capital leases are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 18,270  § 1,269 $ 19,539
2019 13,963 807 14,770
2020 12,081 228 12,309

$ 44314  $ 2304 § 46,618

D. Change in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows:
Due
Within
Balance Balance One
July 1,2016  Additions Repayments June 30, 2017 Year

Notes payable $ 805874 § $ (72,930) $§ 732,944 $ 75,029
Loan payable 1,157,141 1,157,141
Post-employment benefits 495,200 186,034 (98,186) 583,048
Capital lease 74,767 (30,453) 44,314 18,270
Compensated absences 70,602 (5,497) 65,105 35,237
Net pension liability 4,788,730 614,308 5,403,038

Total $ 6,235,173 $1,957,483 $(207,066) $ 7,985,590 $ 128,536

Agency: Special Assessment Debt

The District acts as an agent for the Stewart Mine Road Water Assessment District 98-1
Bonds, issued on August 24, 1999. This debt was not included in the District’s accounting
records because the District had no obligation for the payment of these bonds other than in a
fiduciary capacity. The principal amount outstanding at June 30, 2017, and June 30, 2016, was
$183,846 and $189,204, respectively.

Construction relating to various improvement districts has been financed in part by assessment
of benefited property owners in the form of special assessment bonds authorized under the
Improvement Bond Act of 1915. Bonds in the amount of $774,002 have been issued for the
benefit of Greenwood, Cool-Cherry Acres, Spanish Dry Diggins, and Line Extensions 77-5
water improvement districts. These bonds were originally issued through Farmers Home
Administration, later transferred to General Electric Capital Corporation and subsequently
acquired by CapMark. During 2009, CapMark was acquired by Berkadia. The notes were paid
in full during the fiscal year ending June 2017.

32



Note 7:

Note 8:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone (O.S.W.D.Z.)

During the early part of 1984, it became apparent that a proposed sewer assessment district
was not going to be approved and that the assimilation alternative of combining certain lots in
the Auburn Lake Trails (A.L.T.) subdivision was a possibility. By letter dated April 24, 1984,
Trans America Development Corporation (TADCO) and A.L.T. property owners jointly
requested the formation of an on-site wastewater disposal zone which would be monitored by
the District. The 0.S.W.D.Z. was formed pursuant to the authority granted under Sections
6950 et seq. of the Health and Safety Code of the State of California and became operative by
board resolution on March 19, 1985. The effective date for accounting for revenues and
expenses was April 1, 1985.

The purpose of the O.S.W.D.Z. is to protect the ground and surface water within the Disposal
Zone boundaries in compliance with Regional Water Quality Control Board requirements. The
District’s responsibility is to design and inspect new on-site disposal systems and to monitor
the surface and ground water quality and system performance of existing systems.

The O.S.W.D.Z. assessment revenues charged will be restricted to pay the operating costs of
the O.S.W.D.Z. No unrestricted District funds can be used to pay expenses of the O.S.W.D.Z.

Effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the O.S.W.D.Z. Capital Expenditure Reserve
was established. The O.S.W.D.Z. Capital Expenditure Reserve fund has had little activity over
the years. The fund was inactivated May 13, 2008.

In addition to the O.S.W.D.Z., the District, by contract, has taken over operation of the
Community Disposal System (C.D.S.) of 139 lots within the A.L.T. subdivision. These
property owners pay additional assessments for operation and maintenance of the C.D.S. The
C.D.S. Expansion Benefit Reserve was established July 1, 2000, and currently receives annual
transfers in an effort to achieve the reserve level approved by the District in May 2005.

Restricted Benefit Charges

This non-operating revenue is comprised of various benefit charges and interest earned on the
corresponding deposits. The implementation of the Capital Facility Charges on July 1, 2008,
replaced the previous treatment plant, pipeline, and storage benefit charges. Pursuant to
District ordinance, this revenue is restricted in special accounts which are to be used
exclusively as follows:

Water development charge funds: To develop alternate sources of raw water to meet
long-term District requirements.

Capital Facility Charge Fund: For maintenance and/or improvements of the treatment
plants, pipeline facilities, and storage facilities.

0.S.W.D.Z./C.D.S. replacement and expansion benefit charge funds: For maintenance,

improvement, and/or expansion of the community disposal system, as well as facilitating
improvements in the O.S.W.D.Z.

33



Note 9:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Net Position

Net Position is the excess of all the District’s assets over all its liabilities, regardless of fund.
Net position is divided into three captions under GASB Statement No. 63. These captions
apply only to net position, which are determined only at the government-wide level,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds (trust funds only), and are described below.

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Investment in capital assets describes the portion of net position which is represented by the
current net book value of the District’s capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt
issued to finance these assets.

Net Position Restrictions

Restricted net position consists of constraints placed on net position use through external
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grants, contributors, laws or regulations of other
governments, or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. Net position restricted for new facilities represent the net assets accumulated from
restricted benefit charges imposed by District ordinances for the maintenance and expansion
of facilities. Net position restricted for debt service is required by the debt agreements.
Unrestricted Net Position

The term “unrestricted” describes the portion of net position which is not restricted as to use.

The Board has designated portions of the unrestricted net position for specific operating
purposes in an effort to provide for the prudent operations of the District.

Retiree: To provide for the estimated future retiree health insurance benefits of existing
retirees and current employees who have bargained for the benefit.

Georgetown/Buckeye and Garden Valley: For use in activities specific to the designated
area.

34



Note 9:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2017

Net Position - continued

Unrestricted Net Position - continued

Restricted and unrestricted net position is identified by use as follows as of June 30, 2017:

Wastewater
Water Disposal Total
Restricted Net Position:
New Facilities:
Water Development $ 403,798 $ $ 403,798
Capital Facility Charges 1,707,870 1,707,870
C.D.S. Replacement 39,184 39,184
C.D.S. Expansion 214,741 214,741
Total New Facilities Net Position 2,111,668 253,925 2,365,593
Debt Service:
Kelsey North $ 126,769  $ $ 126,769
Kelsey South 232,172 232,172
Total Debt Service Net Position 358,941 358,941
Total Restricted Net Position $ 2,470,609 $ 253,925 $ 2,724,534
Unrestricted Net Position:
Unrestricted Designated Net Position:
Stumpy Meadows Emergency Reserve $ 1,043,889  § $ 1,043,889
Short-lived Asset Replacement 770,015 770,015
Capital Reserve 1,081,388 1,081,388
EPA 975,200 975,200
Garden Valley 105,722 105,722
Hydroelectric 575,365 575,365
Total Unrestricted Designated
Net Position 4,551,578 4,551,578
Unrestricted Undesignated Net Position (3,385,621) 771,476 (2,614,144)
Total Unrestricted Net Position $ 1,165,958 $ 771,476 $ 1,937,434

35



Note 10:

Note 11:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
District participates in the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance
Authority (ACWAJPIA), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk carrier
management and insurance program for member agencies. The purpose of ACWAJPIA is to
spread the adverse effect of losses among the members and to purchase excess insurance as a
group, thereby reducing its expenses. The District pays annual premiums to the ACWAJPIA
for its general liability, automobile, property, fidelity coverage, and workers’ compensation.
The agreement for formation of the ACWAJPIA provides that the ACWAJPIA will be self-
sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for
claims in excess of $50,000 (property), $100,000 (fidelity), and $2,000,000 (general,
automobile and public officials liability) for each insured event, except for workers
compensation which will reinsure for claims in excess of $2,000,000. The deductibles for the
ACWAIJPIA do not exceed $2,500. Total premiums paid for fiscal year 2017 were $114,901.

The District continues to carry commercial insurance for employee health and life insurance.
The District also carries commercial insurance for dental and optical insurance for the
employees represented by Stationary Engineers, Local 39, and all new employees hired after
July 11, 2006.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

A. General Information About the Pension Plans

Plan Description—All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to
participate in the Local Government’s Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plans, cost-
sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the California
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provision under the Plans are
established by State statue and Local Government resolution. CalPERS issues publicly
available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit
provision, assumptions, and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS
website.

Benefits Provided—CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual
cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members, who must be public
employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one
year of full time employment. Members with five years of total services are eligible to
retire at age 50 with statutorily reduces benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty
disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the
Basic Death benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death
Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public
Employees’ Retirement Law.

36



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note 11: Defined Benefit Pension Plan - continued
A. General Information About the Pension Plans — continued

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2017, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous
On or after
Prior to June 19, 2006 to On or after

Hire Date June 19, 2006 December 28, 2012 December 28, 2012
Benefit formula 2.7% @ 55 2.7% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 55 55 55
Monthly benefits, as a % of

eligible compensation 2.7% 2.7% 2%
Required employee

contribution rates 8% 8% 6.25%
Required employer

contributions rates 12.878%+$398,214 11.008%+$10,368 6.555%+$12

Contributions — Section 20814 ( ¢ ) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law
requires that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an
annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change
in the rate. Funding contribution for both Plans are determined annually on an actuarial
basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount
necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The Local Government is
required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the
contribution rate of employees.

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense
for each Plan were as follows:

Tier I Tier 11 PEPRA
Contributions -- employer $443,912 $68,895 $19,931
Contributions -- employee (paid by employer) 28,388 42,534 18,663

37



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note 11: Defined Benefit Pension Plan — continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2017, the Local Government reported net pension liabilities for its
proportionate shares of the net pension liability of each Plan as follows:

Proportionate
Share of Net
Pension
Liability
Miscellaneous $5,403,038

The District’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of
the net pension liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of
June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation of June 30, 2013, rolled forward to June
30, 2014, using standard update procedures. The Local Government’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the Local Government’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating
employers, actuarially determined. The Local Government’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability for each Plan as of June 30, 2015, and 2017, was as follows:

Miscellaneous
Proportion -- June 30, 2015 $4,788,730
Proportion -- June 30, 2016 5,403,038
Change -- Increase (Decrease) 614,308

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Local Government recognized pension expenses of
$182,261. At June 30, 2017, the Local Government reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 17319 $ 3,968
Change in assumptions 163,853
Difference between projected and actual investment 852,801
Difference between employer’s contribution and
proportionate share of contributions 71,158 66,870
Change in employer’s proportion 108,016
Pension contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date 532,738
Total ' $1,582,032 $ 234,691

38



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note 11: Defined Benefit Pension Plan — continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions — continued

$532,738 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as

follows:
Measurement Deferred
Period Outflows/(Inflows)
June 30, of Resources
2018 $ 85,808
2019 93,657
2020 414,253
2021 220,886

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2016 actuarial
valuations were determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Miscellaneous

Valuation Date June 30, 2014

Meassurement Date June 30, 2015

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.65%

Inflation 2.75%

Salary Increases Varies by entry age and service

Derived using CalPERS’ membership

Mortality Rate Table (1) data for all funds

Contract COLA up to 2.75% until

purchasing power protection

allowance floor on purchasing power

Post-retirement benefit increase applies, 2.75% thereafter

(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table
includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. Refer
to the 2014 experience study for more details on this table. Net of pension plan
investment expenses, including inflation.

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the
June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience
study for the period 1997 to 2011. Further details of the Experience Study can found on the
CalPERS website under Forms & Publications.

39



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note 11: Defined Benefit Pension Plan — continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions — continued

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65% for
each Plan. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation
of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in
a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based
on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.65 percent
discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not
necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.65 percent will be applied to all plans
in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a
detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.

CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset
Liability Management (ALM) review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February
2018. Any changes to the discount rate will require Board action and proper stakeholder
outreach. For these reasons, CalPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of
administrative expenses for GASB 67 and 68 calculations through at least the 2017-18
fiscal year. CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference in calculation
until such time as we have changed our methodology.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both
short-term and long-term market return expectations, as well as the expected pension fund
cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds® asset classes, expected compound
returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years)
using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term
and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected
rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the
same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term
and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single
equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down the nearest one quarter of one percent.

40



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note 11: Defined Benefit Pension Plan — continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions — continued

Discount Rate — continued

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate
of return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the
discount rate and asset allocation. The target allocation shown was adopted by the Board
effective July 1, 2015. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New
Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-100 Years 11+@
Global equity 51.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global fixed income 20.0% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation sensitive 6.0% 0.45% 3.36%
Private equity 10.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real estate 10.0% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and forestland 2.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 1.0% (.55%) (1.05%)
100.0%

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate—The following presents the Local Government’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability for each Plan, calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well
as what the Local Government’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage
point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Miscellaneous
1% Decrease 6.65%
Net Pension Liability $7,530,358
Current Discount Rate 7.65%
Net Pension Liability $5,403,038
1% Increase 8.65%
Net Pension Liability $3,644,914

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position—Detailed information about each pension plan’s
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

41



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note 12: Description of Deferred Compensation Pension Plans

The District has two deferred compensation plans. All amounts of compensation deferred
under the plans, all property and rights purchased with these amounts, and all income
attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the
employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the employees and their
beneficiaries. No part of the corpus or income of the trust shall revert to employer or be used
for or diverted for purposes other than for the exclusive benefit of participants and their
beneficiaries.

Only employee contributions were made to the Internal Revenue Code Section 457 deferred
compensation plan or the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) defined contribution money
purchase plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The District does not make
contributions on behalf of the employees.

The District is the administrator of the plans. The International City Management Association
(ICMA) Retirement Corporation holds the funds in a trust and also advises as to legality, files
appropriate plan documentation, and reports the quarterly activities to each plan participant.

Note 13: Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions

A. Plan Description

The District provides certain health insurance benefits to retired employees in
accordance with a memorandum of understanding with International Union of Operating
Engineers, Stationary Engineers, Local No. 39 (Union) and Ordinance 2006-01.

For employees who retire from the District after at least twenty (20) years of service
with the District and who continue health insurance through a District-sponsored health
insurance plan until the age of 65, the District will contribute up to $435 per month of
the health insurance premium for the retiree and/or the retiree’s spouse. At the age of
65, the retiree is required to enroll in Medicare and the District will continue to
contribute up to $435 per month to a Medicare supplemental plan of the retiree’s or
retiree spouse’s choice.

Effective February 7, 2006, the District extended the benefit described above to all new
employees, as well as the employees who are part of the Union. However, the District
administers a wide variety of other retirement benefits based on the plans in place when
various long-term employees’ retired and in conjunction with Ordinance 2006-01. The
benefits for the few unrepresented and management employees as of April 11, 2006, are
dictated by Ordinance 2006-01 as well. None of the previous arrangements are being
extended to any new employees of the District.

42



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note 13: Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions - continued
B. Funding Policy

The District’s policy is to contribute an amount sufficient to pay the estimated amount
required to cover benefits for the existing employees who may retire with 20 years of
service. For fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the District paid $98,186 for retiree
benefits and received retiree contributions of $50,255, for a net cost of $47,931.
Currently, there are 16 retirees who are receiving benefits. The District administers the
plan described above and has accumulated $519,756 in cash and investments for these
benefits as of June 30, 2017. However, as the plan is not administered with an
irrevocable trust, this amount cannot be considered for prefunding.

C. Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligation

As the District administers the non-pension post-employment benefits plan, the District
records the annual retiree benefit expense as the annual premium expense adjusted to the
annual required contribution (ARC). The District’s annual other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the ARC, an amount actuarially determined
in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45’s Alternative
Measurement Method allowed for employers with less than 100 plan members (active
employees and eligible retirees). The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on
an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The
following table shows the components of the District’s annual OPEB cost for the fiscal
year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the District’s net OPEB

obligation.

Annual required contribution $ 135,841
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 135,841

Contributions made (47,993)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 87,848

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of fiscal year 495,200

Net OPEB obligation - end of fiscal year $ 583,048

The District ‘s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2017, 2016, and 2015 were as follows:

Net
Fiscal Percentage of OPEB
Year Annual Annual OPEB Obligation
Ended OPEB Costs Costs Contribution (Asset)
June 30, 2015 $ 135,779 4% $ 417,018
June 30, 2016 135,841 42% 495,200
June 30, 2017 135,841 35% 583,048

43



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note 13: Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions — continued

D.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2015, the most recent Alternate Measurement Method valuation date, the
plan was zero percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $1,533,647,
and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued
liability (UAAL) of $1,533,647. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $777,837, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was
197 percent.

The Alternate Measurement Method valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of
the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of
events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status
of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The Alternate
Measurement Method valuation (valuation) method and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

In the June 30, 2015, valuation, the attained age cost method was used. The valuation
assumptions included a 0.5 percent investment rate of return, which is the expected long-
term investment returns on plan assets, a projected salary increase assumption rate of 1.6
percent, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 3.6 percent. There are no assets
designated for the plan as of June 30, 2017. The UAAL is being amortized over the
average number of years remaining to be worked to reach the average retirement age of
the active employees. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2017, was ten years.

44



Note 14:

Note 15:

Note 16:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Revenue Limitation Imposed by California Proposition 218

Proposition 218, which was approved by the voters in November 1996, regulates the District’s
ability to impose, increase, and extend taxes and assessments. Any new, increase, or extended
taxes and assessments subject to the provisions of Proposition 218 requires the voters’
approval before they can be implemented. Additionally, Proposition 218 provides that these
taxes and assessments are subject to voter initiative process and may be rescinded in the future
years by the voters.

The proposition also provides for a customer protest process when fees for services benefiting
a property are proposed to be increased. The District follows this process when changes are
contemplated for water sales and waste disposal zone charges.

Commitments and Contingencies

The District has received State and Federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to
review and audit by the grantor Agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure
disallowances under the term of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursements
will be immaterial.

On November 16, 2012, the El Dorado County Superior Court ruled in favor of the District in
a suit brought against the District, challenging the District’s right and obligation to maintain
infrastructure serving the public. The decision upholds the District’s right and obligation to
maintain public infrastructure.

At June 30, 2017, the District had commenced the retrofit related to the design of the Auburn
Lake Trials Water Treatment Plant.

Compliance Order #01-09-04CO-002 was issued by the CA Dept. of Public Health on
February 23, 2004, which required the District to provide surface water treatment that
effectively reduces giardia cysts and viruses by 3 and 4 logs respectively, through filtration
and disinfection at its Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant. Since then, regulations
have added the requirement for the ALTWTP to effectively reduce cryptosporidium cysts by 2
logs. This later requirement is considered achieved when treatment requirements for giardia
and viruses are being met. As of the date of these financial statements, the District is not in
compliance with the Compliance Order. The ramifications of this non-compliance have not
been determined, but may include possible fines and penalties.

Subsequent Events

In preparing the accompanying financial statement, the District management has reviewed all
known events that have occurred after June 30, 2017, and through December 29, 2017, the
date when this financial statement was available to be issued, for inclusion in the financial
statement and footnotes.

45



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
JUNE 30, 2017

Other Post-Employment Benefits

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Annual UAAL asa
Accrued Value of Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Valuation Liability Assets Liability Status Payroll Payroll
Date @ (b) (a)-(b) (b)(a) © [(@)-(b)]/(c)
6/30/2010 $ 1,428,000 % - $ 1,428,000 0.0% $ 1,448,117 98.6%
6/30/2011 1,290,449 - 1,290,449 0.0% 1,383,003 93.3%
6/30/2012 1,703,923 - 1,703,923 0.0% 1,586,957 107.4%
6/30/2015 1,533,647 - 1,533,647 0.0% 777,839 197.2%

46



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

JUNE 30,2017
June 30,2017 *  June 30,2016 *  June 30, 2015 *

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.15553% 0.19760% 0.16244%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 5,403,038 $ 4,788,730 $§ 4,014,865
Covered-employee payroll $ 1,190,407 $ 1,056,438 $ 1,058,538
Proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of its

covered-employee payroll 453.88% 453.29% 379.28%
Plan's fiduciary net position $ 10,398,057 $ 10455902 $ 11,715,109
Plan's total pension liability $ 15,801,095 $ 15244632 $ 15,729,974
Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of its

total pension liability 65.81% 68.59% 74.48%
Valuation date 6/30/2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2013

* Fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, was the first year of implementation; therefore, only three years of
information was available.

47



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

JUNE 30, 2017
June 30,2017 *  June 30,2016 *  June 30, 2015 *
Contractually required contributions (actuarially determined) $ 532,748 $ 484,729 $ 316,796
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions (532,748) (484,729) (316,796)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ -
Covered-employee payroll $ 1,190,407 $ 1,056,438 $ 1,058,538
Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 44.75% 45.88% 29.93%

* Fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, was the first year of implementation; therefore, only three years of
information was available.

48



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Salaries and part-time labor
CalPERS benefits
Payroll taxes
Insurance - health and life plans
Insurance - workers' compensation
Accounting and audit fees
ICMA benefits
Director stipends
Engineering fees
Insurance - general
Legal - general
Supplies, rentals and durable goods
Office supplies
Outside services
Retiree benefits
Development and travel
Utilities
Equipment and vehicle maintenance
Building maintenance
Vehicle operations
Regulatory requirements and fees
Other - County election admin.
Other - County property tax admin.
Other - Memberships
Depreciation
Other

Total

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016)

Transmission Transmission Site
Source of and and Administrative ~ Wastewater
Water Distribution - Water Distribution-  Customer and Disposal Totals
Supply Raw Water  Treatment _Treated Water Service Hydroelectric Zone 2017 2016
$110,085 § 308515 $161,835 $ 373337 $121972 § 271,641 $ 75917 $1423302 $1,340,014
(9,985) (109,356) 45,360 (38,786) 50,765 83,005 57,957 78,960 438,180
8,276 22,654 13,325 29,873 7,864 20,501 5,822 108,315 90,690
28,261 76,683 45,404 103,276 35,123 25,765 21,136 335,648 277,115
7,537 20,578 4818 14,280 1,122 1,235 3,294 52,864 67,887
- - - - - 16,640 - 16,640 15,000
- - - - - 2,385 - 2,385 -
- - - - - 24,031 - 24,031 6,321
30,633 - 760 484 - - - 31,877 23,200
4,146 17,010 10,735 16,737 6,072 4,882 2,456 62,038 25,858
- - - - - 103,522 13,125 116,647 61,917
38,432 43,219 66,287 91,374 492 7,222 8,229 255,255 125,651
14 344 217 3,354 13,622 31,979 2,113 51,643 298,010
19,593 6,366 8,698 44,683 3,369 97,291 25,863 205,863 50,315
- - - - - 135,779 - 135,779 184,654
200 600 - 3,034 - 8,143 200 12,177 135,841
2,729 337 149,812 11,976 3,479 22,970 12,186 203,489 18,571
3,504 13,930 5,937 12,869 1,383 2,235 8,212 48,070 183,728
- - - - - 6,618 - 6,618 46,713
4,150 13,607 4,943 17,324 - 125 2,215 42,364 39,369
43,296 1,633 58,727 8,692 - 5,491 33,393 151,232 139,836
- - - - - 6,816 - 6,816 -
- - - - - 33,731 - 33,731 30,646
- - - - - 12,663 - 12,663 12,112
108,585 89,558 161,504 249,111 17,038 17,038 24,030 666,864 816,291
380 858 80 241 313 31,746 115 33,733 8,798
$399,836 $ 506,536 $738442 $ 941,859 $262.614 $ 973,454 $ 296,263 $4,119,004 $4436,717

49



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
RESTRICTED PLANT BENEFIT CHARGES AND DISCLOSURES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Capital Short-lived ~ Community ~ Comm. Disp.
Water Facility Asset Disp. System  System Expan.
Development Charges Replacement  Rep. Benefit Benefit Total
Balance at June 30, 2015 $ 398543 $1,641,898 § 764357 $ 44148 § 181,290  $3,030,236
Activity for fiscal year
ended June 30, 2017:
Sources:
Transfer per District Reserve Policy 32,000 32,000
Interest earned 2,955 15,072 5,658 279 1,451 25,415
Restricted benefit charges 2,300 50,900 - - - 53,200
Total sources 5,255 65,972 5,658 279 33,451 110,615
Uses:
Zone repair materials - - - (5,243) - (5,243)
Total uses - - - (5,243) - (5,243)
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 403,798 $1,707,870 $ 770,015 $§ 39,184 § 214741 $3,135,608

50



OTHER REPORT



FECHTER
& COMPANY

Certified Public Accountants Craig R. Fechter, CPA, MST

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Georgetown, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standard generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Georgetown Divide Public
Utility District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
December 29, 2017.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control of
the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we considered to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that we have not identified.

51

3445 American River Drive Suite A | Sacramento, CA 95864 | ph 916-333-5360 | fax 916-333-5370
www.fechtercpa.com
Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Tax Section
and California Society of CPAs



Board of Directors
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Georgetown, California

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fechter & Company,
Certified Public Accountants

anpry, 5

Sacramento, California
December 29, 2017

52



GDPUD Board Meeting of 1/9/2018

FEC HTE R ﬁtGEI:DA |tTZEM NO. 7A
& COM PANY Craig R. Fechter, CPA, MST

Certified Public Accountants Scott A. German, CPA

E

December 29, 2017

To the Board of Directors
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Georgetown, California

We have audited the financial statements of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District for the
year ended June 30, 2017 and have issued our report thereon dated December 29, 2017. As part of
our audit we made a study and evaluation of the District’s system of internal accounting control to
the extent we considered necessary to evaluate the system as required by auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. The purpose of our study and evaluation was to determine
the nature, timing, and extent of the auditing procedures necessary for expressing an opinion on the
District’s financial statements. Our study and evaluation was more limited than would be necessary
to express an opinion on the system of internal accounting control taken as a whole.

The management of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District is responsible for establishing and
maintaining a system of internal accounting control. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and
judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of control
procedures. The objectives of a system are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that
transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorization and recorded properly to
permit the preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Because of inherent limitations in any system of internal accounting control, errors or irregularities
may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the system to
future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the procedures may deteriorate.

Our study and evaluation made for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph would not
necessarily disclose all material weaknesses in the system. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the system of internal accounting control of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
taken as a whole.

Our study and evaluation disclosed no condition that we believed to be a material weakness.

This report is intended solely for the use of management and should not be used for any other
purpose.

1

1870 Avondale Avenuc Suite 4 | Sacramento CA, 95825 | ph 916-333-5360 | fax 916-333-5370
www.fechtercpa.com

Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Tax Section
and California Socicty of CPAs



To the Board of Directors
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Georgetown, California

We would like to thank the District staff for taking the time to compile complete and accurate records
for the audit. We look forward to working with the District and its staff in the future.

Sincerely,

%@7@% s

Craig R. Fechter, CPA, President
Fechter & Company, CPAs



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
Management Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The Auditor’s Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to
plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute assurance that the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions,
there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and not be detected by us.

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used
by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were
adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year. We noted no
transactions entered into by the District during the year that were both significant and unusual, and of
which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you.

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting
them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate(s) affecting the
financial statements were:

¢ Allowance for doubtful accounts
Accrual and disclosure of pension liability and other post-employment benefits liability
e Capital asset lives and depreciation expense



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
Management Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Audit Adjustments

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define an audit adjustment as a proposed correction
of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except through our
auditing procedures. An audit adjustment may or may not indicate matters that could have a
significant effect on the District’s financial reporting process (that is, cause future financial
statements to be materially misstated). We did not record any audit adjustments for the year ended
June 30, 2017.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are
pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Consultations with Other Independent Auditors

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses
were not a condition to our retention.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit.



REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS .

BOARD MEETING OF January 9, 2018 _

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7B .

AGENDA SECTION: NEW BUSINESS

SUBJECT: Amended Professional Services Agreement with Vavrinek,
Trine, Day & Co., LLP

PREPARED BY: Kristen West, Finance Consultant

APPROVED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager ¢@/

BACKGROUND

On August 8, 2017, Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (“District”) contracted for finance
management professional services with Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP (“VTD"). The current
scope of services includes financial and accounting oversight.

During which time the District opened a Management Analyst position. The Management
Analyst position was filled by the then Administrative Aide Il. Job duties of the Administrative
Aide Il were redistributed among current office staff, however some tasks could not be
redistributed due to internal controls surrounding segregation of duties.

DISCUSSION
The workload for the part-time Administrative Aide position is estimated to be 3 days per week,
duties included but not limited to are:
¢ Manage all duties related to accounts payable;
Review, code and process weekly vendor invoices
Process and distribute vendor check payments
Prepare monthly reports for board meeting
Review, code and process purchase order requisitions as requested
Assist with interim and yearend audit preparation
Support General Manager, Management Analyst and other office staff as needed,
some tasks include:
o Assist with bi-monthly meter reading data entry logs
o Assist with customer questions and account management

VTD’s approved contract amount under the current professional services agreement covers
the Finance Manager in the amount of $89,100. VTD employs professional staff trained at all
experience levels and currently has availability to meet the District's needs. In order to account

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District ¢ 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, CA 95634 & (530) 333-4356 ¢ gd-pud.org



Amended Professional Services Agreement with Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP Page
2

Board Meeting of January 9, 2018

Agenda ltem #7B

for additional services related to the District's immediate need for a part-time Administrative
Aide the proposed amendment to the professional services agreement is $53,760, increasing
the total contracted amount to $142,860 for Fiscal Year 2017-2018.

FISCAL IMPACT

The Fiscal Year 2017-18 budget includes an estimate of $90,000 from Account 10-5080-5600
for finance and accounting services which cover the costs of the original professional services
agreement in the amount of $89,100. The additional costs of $53,760 for additional services
are covered by savings from previously budgeted personnel costs for the currently vacant
Administrative Aide Il position, savings resulting from the Management Analyst position being
vacant for five (5) months, and savings resulting from the Water Resources Manager position
being vacant for six (6) months.

CEQA ASSESSMENT
Not a CEQA project.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff recommends the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
(GDPUD) adopt the attached Resolution authorizing the General Manager to execute the
Amended Professional Services Agreement with Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution
2.  Amended Professional Services Agreement



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-03

OF THE GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE
AN AMENDED PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

WITH VAVRINEK, TRINE, DAY & CO., LLP

WHEREAS, the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (“District”) retained
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP (VTD) to perform initial finance and accounting oversight to
address immediate needs of the District; and

WHEREAS, the District has a need for additional services related to the functions of
the Administrative Aide position; and

WHEREAS, VTD employs personnel at the appropriate experience level to meet the
needs of the District; and; and

WHEREAS, VTD provided an amended schedule of services and rates.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to
execute the amended the professional services agreement with Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co.,
LLP to $142,860 for finance and accounting management services.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public
Utilities District at a meeting of said Board held on the 9th day of January 2018, by the following
vote:

AYES: //&//4 /7/%{64:/6{ Tpess, t/s2 wadle

Londres Uso, President
Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Steven Y’alm\ér, Clerk and ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

GDPUD Res. 2018-03 Amending Professional Services Agreement with VTD & Co., LLP Page 1 of 2



CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution 2018-03 duly and
regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District,
County of El Dorado, State of California, on the 9th day of January 2018.

Steven Palmer, Clerk and ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

GDPUD Res. 2018-03 Amending Professional Services Agreement with VTD & Co., LLP Page 2 of 2



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and
entered into this 9th day of January 2018, (the “Effective Date™) by and between the Georgetown
Divide Public Utilities District, a California Public Utilities District (“District”), and Vavrinek,
Trine, Day & Co., LLP (“Consultant™). District and Consultant may herein be referred to
individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. There are no other parties to this
Agreement.

RECITALS

A. District has determined that consultant services are required for non-audit services
to assist the District in reviewing and updating finance and accounting policies and procedures
(the “Project™).

B. Consultant has submitted a proposal to District that includes a scope of proposed
consultant services, attached hereto and described more fully in Exhibit A (“Services™).

C. Consultant represents that it is qualified, willing and able to provide the Services to
District, and that it will perform Services related to the Project according to the rate schedule
included in the scope of proposed consultant services attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Rates”).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants set forth below,
the Parties agree as follows:

AGREEMENT i

1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above (“Recitals™) are true and correct and are
hereby incorporated into and made part of this Agreement by this reference. In the event of any
inconsistency between the Recitals and Sections 1 through 20 of this Agreement, Section 1
through 20 shall prevail.

2. Consulting Services. Consultant agrees, during the term of this Agreement, to
perform the Services for District in connection with the Project. Any request for services in
addition to the Services described in Exhibit A will be considered a request for additional
consulting services and not compensated unless the Parties otherwise agree in writing. No
subcontract shall be awarded or an outside consultant engaged by Consultant unless prior written
approval is obtained from District.

3. Compensation. District shall pay Consultant according to the fee schedule set forth
in Exhibit B for a time and materials cost not to exceed $142,860, as full remuneration for the
performance of the Services. Consultant agrees to maintain a log of time spent in connection with
performing the Services. On a monthly basis, Consultant shall provide District, in reasonable and
understandable detail, a description of the services rendered pursuant to the Services and in
accordance with the Rates. If the work is satisfactorily completed, District shall pay such invoice

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
Page 1 of 8



within thirty (30) days of its receipt. If District disputes any portion of any invoice, District shall
pay the undisputed portion within the time stated above, and at the same time advise Consultant in

writing of the disputed portion.

S. Term. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and will
continue in effect until the Services provided herein have been completed, unless terminated earlier
as provided in Section 6 or 7 below (the “Term™).

6. Termination. District may terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration of the
Term (“Termination™), without cause or reason, by notifying Consultant in writing of District’s
desire to terminate this Agreement (the “Termination Notice”). Upon receipt of a Termination
Notice, Consultant shall immediately cease performing the Services. Consultant will be entitled to
compensation, as of the date Consultant receives the Termination Notice, only for Services actually

performed.

7. Termination for Cause. Notwithstanding Section 6 above, this Agreement may
be terminated by District for cause based on the loss or suspension of any licenses, permits or
registrations required for the continued provision of the Services, or Consultant’s malfeasance.
Termination of the Agreement for cause as set forth in this Section shall relieve District from
compensating Consultant.

8. Confidential Information. Consultant understands and agrees that, in the
performance of Services under this Agreement or in the contemplation thereof, Consultant may
have access to private or confidential information that may be owned or controlled by District and
that such information may contain proprietary or confidential details, the disclosure of which to
third parties may be damaging to District (“Confidential Information”).

Consultant shall not, either during or after the Term, disclose to any third party any
Confidential Information without the prior written consent of District. If District gives Consultant
written authorization to make any such disclosure, Consultant shall do so only within the limits
and to the extent of that authorization. Such authorization does not guarantee that the District will
grant any further disclosure of Confidential Information. Consultant may be directed or advised
by the District’s General Counsel on various matters relating to the performance of the Services
on the Project or on other matters pertaining to the Project, and in such event, Consultant agrees
that it will treat all communications between itself, its employees and its subcontractors as being
communications which are within the attorney-client privilege.

9. Performance by Key Employee. Consultant has represented to District that

will be the person primarily responsible for the performance of the Services and

all communications related to the Services. District has entered into this Agreement in reliance on
that representation by Consultant.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
Page 2 of 8



10.  Property of District. The following will be considered and will remain the
property of District:

A, Documents. All reports, drawings, graphics, working papers and
Confidential Information furnished by District in connection with the Services (“Documents”).
Nothing herein shall be interpreted as prohibiting or limiting District’s right to assign all or some
of District’s interests in the Documents.

B. Data. All data collected by Consultant and produced in connection with
the Services including, but not limited to, drawings, plans, specifications, models, flow diagrams,
visual aids, calculations, and other materials (“Data”). Nothing herein shall be interpreted as
prohibiting or limiting District’s right to assign all or some of District’s interests in the Data.

C. Delivery of Documents and Data. Consultant agrees, at its expense and
in a timely manner, to return to District all Documents and Data upon the conclusion of the Term

or in the event of Termination.

11.  Duties of District. In order to permit Consultant to render the services required
hereunder, District shall, at its expense and in a timely manner:

A. Provide such information as Consultant may reasonably require to
undertake or perform the Services;

B. Promptly review any and all documents and materials submitted to District
by Consultant in order to avoid unreasonable delays in Consultant’s performance of the Services;
and

C. Promptly notify Consultant of any fault or defect in the performance of
Consultant’s services hereunder.

12.  Representations of Consultant. District relies upon the following representations
by Consultant in entering into this Agreement:

A. Qualifications. Consultant represents that it is qualified to perform the
Services and that it possesses the necessary licenses, permits and registrations required to perform
the Services or will obtain such licenses or permits prior to the time such licenses or permits are
required. Consultant represents and warrants to District that Consultant shall, at Consultant’s sole
cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all times during the Term of this Agreement, any
licenses, permits, and registrations that are legally required for Consultant to practice Consultant's
profession at the time the Services are rendered.

B. Consultant Performance. Consultant represents and warrants that all
Services under this Agreement shall be performed in a professional manner and shall conform to
the customs and standards of practice observed on similar, successfully completed projects by
specialists in the Services to be provided. Consultant shall adhere to accepted professional
standards as set forth by relevant professional associations and shall perform all Services required

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
Page 3 of 8



under this Agreement in a manner consistent with generally accepted professional customs,
procedures and standards for such Services. All work or products completed by Consultant shall
be completed using the best practices available for the profession and shall be free from any
defects. Consultant agrees that, if a Service is not so performed, in addition to all of its obligations
under this Agreement and at law, Consultant shall re-perform or replace unsatisfactory Service at
no additional expense to District.

13.  Compliance with Laws and Standards. Consultant shall insure compliance with
all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations and permits, including but not
limited to federal, state, and county safety and health regulations. Consultant shall perform all
work according to generally accepted standards within the industry. Consultant shall comply with
all ordinances, laws, orders, rules, and regulations, including the administrative policies and
guidelines of District pertaining to the work.

14. Independent Contractor; Subcontracting. Consultant will employ, at its own
expense, all personnel reasonably necessary to perform the Services. All acts of Consultant, its
agents, officers, employees and all others acting on behalf of Consultant relating to this Agreement
will be performed as independent contractors. Consultant, its agents and employees will represent
and conduct themselves as independent contractors and not as employees of District. Consultant
has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of District. Except as District may
specify in writing, Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of
District in any capacity whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind District to any obligation whatsoever. Consultant is
prohibited from subcontracting this Agreement or any part of it unless such subcontracting is
expressly approved by District in writing.

15. Insurance. Consultant and all of Consultant’s contractors and subcontractors shall
obtain and maintain insurance of the types and in the amounts described in this paragraph and its
subparagraphs with carriers reasonably satisfactory to District.

A. General Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain occurrence
version commercial general liability insurance or an equivalent form with a limit of not less than
Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per claim and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) for each
occurrence.

B. Workers’ Compensation Insurance. Consultant shall carry workers’
compensation insurance as required by the State of California under the Labor Code. Consultant
shall also carry employer’s liability insurance in the amount of One Million Dollars
($1,000,000.00) per accident, with a One Million Dollar ($1,000,000.00) policy limit for bodily
injury by disease, and a One Million Dollar ($1,000,000.00) limit for each employee’s bodily
injury by disease.

C. Automobile Insurance. Consultant shall carry automobile insurance for the
vehicle(s) Consultant uses in connection with the performance of this Agreement in the amount of
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
Page 4 of §



D. Errors and Omissions Liability. Consultant shall carry errors and
omissions liability insurance in the amount of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00)
per occurrence or greater if appropriate for the Consultant’s profession. Architects and engineers
coverage is to be endorsed to include contractual liability. Any deductibles or self-insured
retentions must be declared to and approved by the District. At the option of the District, either
the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the
District, elected and appointed councils, commissions, directors, officers, employees, agents, and
representatives (“District’s Agents”); or the Consultant shall provide a financial guarantee
satisfactory to the District guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claims
administration and defense expenses.

E. Other Insurance Requirements. Within five (5) days of the Effective
Date, Consultant shall provide District with certificates of insurance for all of the policies required
under this Agreement (“Certificates™), excluding the required worker’s compensation insurance.
Such Certificates shall be kept current for the Term of the Agreement and Consultant shall be
responsible for providing updated copies and notifying District if a policy is cancelled, suspended,
reduced, or voided. With the exception of the worker’s compensation insurance, all of the
insurance policies required in this Agreement shall: (a) provide that the policy will not be
cancelled, allowed to expire, or materially reduced in coverage without at least thirty (30) days’
prior written notice to District of such cancellation, expiration, or reduction and each policy shall
be endorsed to state such; (b) name District, and District’s Agents as additional insureds with
respect to liability arising out of Services, work or operations performed by or on behalf of the
Consultant; products and completed operations of the Consultant; premises owned, occupied, or
used by the Consultant, or automobiles owned, leased, or hired or borrowed by the Consultant.
The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the District;
(c) be primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs covering District or
District’s Agents and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by District or District’s Agents
shall be in excess of Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute to it; (d) contain standard
separation of insured provisions; and (e) state that any failure to comply with reporting or other
provisions of the policy including breaches of warranties shall not affect the coverage provided to
the District.

16. Indemnification. Consultant hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless
District, its agents, officers, employees and volunteers, against all liability, obligations, claims,
loss, and expense (a) caused or created by Consultant, its subcontractors, or the agents or
employees of either, whether negligent or not, pertaining to or related to acts or omissions of
Consultant in connection with the Services, or (b) arising out of injuries suffered or allegedly
suffered by employees of Consultant or its subcontractors (i) in the course of their employment,
(ii) in the performance of work hereunder, or (iii) upon premises owned or controlled by District.
Consultant’s obligation to defend, indemnify and hold District and its agents, officers, employees
and volunteers harmless is not terminated by any requirement in this Agreement for Consultant to
procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

17.  Consequential Damages. Notwithstanding any other provision ofthis Agreement,
in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for
any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
Page 5 of 8



or revenue, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services performed in
connection with this Agreement.

18.  Litigation. In the event that either Party brings an action under this Agreement for
the breach or enforcement hereof, or must incur any collection expenses for any amounts due
hereunder the prevailing Party in such action shall be entitled to its costs including reasonable
attorney’s fees, whether or not such action is prosecuted to judgment.

19.  Notices. Any notice or communication required hereunder between District or
Consultant must be in writing, and may be given either personally, by registered or certified mail
(return receipt requested), or by Federal Express, UPS or other similar couriers providing overnight
delivery. If personally delivered, a notice shall be deemed to have been given when delivered to
the Party to whom it is addressed. Notices given by registered or certified mail shall be deemed
to have been given and received on the first to occur of (a) actual receipt by any of the addressees
designated below as the party to whom notices are to be sent, (b) on the date delivered as shown
on a receipt issued by the courier, or (c) five (5) days after a registered or certified letter containing
such notice, properly addressed, with postage prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail. If
given by Federal Express or similar courier, a notice or communication shall be deemed to have
been given and received on the date delivered as shown on a receipt issued by the courier. Any
Party hereto may at any time, by giving ten (10) days written notice to the other Party hereto,
designate any other address in substitution of the address to which such notice or communication
shall be given. Such notices or communications shall be given to the Parties at the addresses in
this paragraph set forth below:

If to District: Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
P.O. Box 4240
6425 Main Street
Georgetown, CA 95634
Attention: General Manager

With courtesy copies to: Churchwell White LLP
1414 K Street, 3rd Floor
Sacramento, California 95814
Attention: Barbara A. Brenner, Esq.

If to Consultant: Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
2151 River Plaza Drive, Suite 308
Sacramento CA 95833
Attention: Joseph Aguilar

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
Page 6 of 8



20. General Provisions.

A. Modification. No alteration, modification, or termination of this
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and executed by all Parties.

B. Waiver. The waiver by any Party of a breach of any provision hereof shall
be in writing and shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any other or subsequent breach
hereof unless specifically stated in writing.

C. Assignment. No Party shall assign, transfer, or otherwise dispose of this
Agreement in whole or in part to any individual, firm, or corporation without the prior written
consent of the other Party. Subject to the forgoing provisions, this Agreement shall be binding
upon, and inure to the benefit of, the respective successors and assigns of the Parties.

D. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the state of California.

E. Venue. Venue for all legal proceedings shall be in the Superior Court of
California for the County of El Dorado.

F. Partial Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall
nevertheless continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way.

G. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original and all of which shall be deemed a single
agreement.

H. Severability. If any term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement is held
by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in
effect.

I. Audit. District shall have access at all reasonable times to all reports,
contract records, contract documents, contract files, and personnel necessary to audit and verify
Consultant’s charges to District under this Agreement.

J. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding
between the Parties as to the subject matter of this Agreement and merges all prior discussions,
negotiations, proposal letters or other promises, whether oral or in writing.

K Headings Not Controlling. Headings used in this Agreement are for
reference purposes only and shall not be considered in construing this Agreement.

L. Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement for each
covenant and term of a condition herein.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Vavrinek, Tring, Day & Co., LLP
Page 7 of 8



M. Drafting and Ambiguities. Any rule of construction that ambiguities are
to be resolved against the drafting party does not apply in interpreting this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the last day and date

below written.

DISTRICT:
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC

UTILITIES DISTRICT, a California Public
Utilities District

By:

SteverrV. Palmer, General Manager

Date: ‘/{7 /“o

App to Form:

(e

Harbara A. Brennér,General Counsel

CONSULTANT:

VAVRINEK, TRINE, DAY & CO., LLP
Limited Liability Partnership .

By: Hot—

7
Name: Joseph A’qu{\ar
7 7

Date: \/5—/’(

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
Page 8 of 8



EXHIBIT A

Services

Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP will provide finance and accounting services as directed by the
General Manager. Consultant will provide personnel to function as finance/accounting manager
for up to 16 hours per week. Services will include tasks typical of a finance/accounting manager
and are likely to include the following:

Oversee and review various tasks needed to assist the District in closing the accounting records
(“books”), preparing financial statements, etc. in preparation of yearend financia) audits. This
includes inspecting and evaluating the condition of the original books of entry (e.g. accounts
payable, payroll, billing, etc.)

Entering budgets into District accounting software and instructing District staff on same
Ensuring contracts are properly encumbered in District accounting software and instructing
District staff on same

Assist with format and staff training for monthly budget to actual tracking and reports, monthly,
quarterly and annual financial reports to the Board

Assist in preparation of budget adjustments

Assist in development of policies and procedures

Support preparation of annual budgets and capital improvement plans

Consultant will provide personnel to function as the administrative support for up to 24 hours per
week. Services will include tasks included in the job description of the administrative aide.
Those tasks are likely to include:

Manage all duties related to the function of accounts payable

Review, code and process weekly vendor invoices

Process and distribute vendor check payments

Prepare monthly reports for board meeting

Review, code and process purchase order requisitions

Assist with interim and yearend audit preparation

Support General Manager, Management Analyst and other office staff as needed



EXHIBIT B

Rates

VAVRINEK, TRINE, DAY & CO., LLP

Fee Proposal
Hourly Rates
Position 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
Partner S 175 S 185 $ 185
Manager S 160 s 165 $ 170
Supervisor S 140 $ 140 $ 145

Senior Accountant S 100 S 100 S 105

Staff Accountant S 80 S 80 S 83

Annual Costs

Finance Admin
Manager Aide Total
FY 2017-18 89,100 53,760 S 142,860

FY 2018-19 92,700 92,160 $ 184,860



) ®
ACORD
\—/

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
7/26/2017

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER
Kessler Alair Insurance Services, Inc

GONIACT Mary Strohman

PHONE i, (909) $31-1500

(FAA,é No); (909) 932-2133

License # OA 91387 ﬁgg“,:'éss:ms_!:rohman@kééQié;:vai"a—rir.com
12487 N. Mainstreet, Ste. 240 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Rancho Cucamonga CA 91739 | nsurRer A Everest Indemnity Ins Co 10851
INSURED INSURER B :
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP INSURER C :
10681 Foothill Blvd., #300 INSURER D :
INSURERE :
Rancho Cucamonga CA 91730-3271 INSURER F :

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NUMBER:17/18 WC NO WOS

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY EFF

TR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) ﬁ't"nm) LIMITS
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s
cLams-ADE [ | ocour P D ce) | 8
. MED EXP (Any one person) $
] PERSONAL & ADV INJURY [ §
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
| rouicy D s D Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $
OTHER: s
[ AUTOMOBILE LiABILITY COMBINED SINGLE T '3
|| anvauto BODILY INJURY (Per person) |
|| AySneD e | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
HIRED AUTOS Rroe e (Por acadenty A $
$
| | UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OGCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
pep | | ReTEnTIONS - M
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY il X | Stare | [ R
grg;l gggmﬁ;ggm&gmgggecww [:] iN/A | E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
2 | (Mandatory In NH) j CA10003013171 5/13/2017 | 5/13/2018 | £ DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE § 1,000,000
DESERIATION OF OPERATIONS beiow E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000

Certificate holder only.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Attn: General Manager

PO Box 4240

6425 Main Street

Georgetown, CA 95634

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

N Gonzalez/NICOLE W‘W@/

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INSO025 ro01401m

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




ACORD
———

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

VAVRTRI-01 AJ922628
DATE (MM/DDIYYYY)

5/15/2017

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

certlficate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER Ljcense # 0E77964

Integro USA Inc., dba: Integro Insurance Brokers
3620 Birch Street

Newport Beach, CA 92660

CONTACT g17anne Posada

N ey 1 (949) 419-1644 | TA%, no: 1(949) 419-1674
AL ss: Suzanne.posada@integrogroup.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
isurer A ; Federal Insurance Company 20281
INSURES msurer 8 : Navigators Insurance Company 42307
Vavrinek, Trine, Day and Company, LLP INSURER C : ]
10681 Foothill Bivd., Suite #300 INSURER D :
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 81730 BISURERIE:
INSURER F ;
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CCNDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 18 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
| cLamsaace [ X] occur X | X [38029324WCE 05/13/2017 | 05113/2018 | DAPRCETORENTED * | 1,000,000
| MED EXP {Any one person) | § 10,000
— PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
| GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
[ X]pouey [ 5% [ ]uoc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 2,000,000
OTHER: $ |
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY & WMENEDSINGLELMIT | 5 1,000,000
A | | anvauto 73593893 05/13/2017 | 05/13/2018 | BODILY INJURY (Per persen) | §
A e o BODILY INJURY (Per accident)’ §
L HIRED AUTOS = o MAGE §
| 5
| X |umerewaLae | X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE s 10,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE 79887380 05/13/2017 | 05/13/2018 | AGGREGATE $ 10,000,000
pep | X | ReTenTiOnS 0 s
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN STATUTE ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOVEE| §
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below . EL. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
B |E&O Liabliity CH17APLOBFDPVNV 01/01/2017 | 01/01/2018 ;Each Occurrence/Agg. 5,000,000
B |E&O Liability CH17APLOBFDPVNV 01/01/2017 | 01/01/2018 Retention-Each Claim 100,000
i

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required)

Errors & Omissions Liability - Claims Made - Full Prior Acts

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District, a California Public Utilities District is additional insured, per the attached form #80-02-2367 (Rev. 5-07) including
primary and non-contributory coverage, to the extent required by written contract, subject to policy terms and conditions. Waiver of Subrogation applies on
the General Liability, per the attached form #80-02-2000 (Rev. 4-01), to the extent required by written contract, subject to policy terms and conditions. 60 days
notice of cancellation, 20 days for non-payment of premium, per the attached form #80-02-9717 (Rev. 9-15), to the extent required by written contract, subject

to policy terms and conditions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Attn: General Manager

P.O. Box 4240

6425 Main Street

Georgetown, CA 95634

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

éﬂﬂ’u a Ketrw

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



CcCHUBE

Llabliity Endorsement
(continued)

Conditions

Other Insurance —
Primary, Noncontributory
Insurance — Scheduled
Person Or Organization

Liabllity Insurance

Under Conditions, the following provision is added to the condition titled Other Insurance.

If you are obligated, pursuant to a contract or agreement, to provide the person or organization
shown in the Schedule with primary insurance such as is afforded by this policy, then in such case
this insurance is primary and we will not seek contribution from insurance available to such person
or organization,

Schedule

Persons or organizations that yon are obligated, pursuant 1o a contract or agreemoent, (o provide with
such insurance as is afforded by this policy.

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged,

Authorized Representative ; :,%Q)\\\\u@

Additional Insured - Scheduled Person Or Organization fast page

Form B0-02-2367 (Rev. 5-07)

Endorsement Page 2



Coverages
(continued)

Medical Expenses
Coverage

Investigation, Defense
And Settlemenis

Subject to all of the terms and conditions of this insurance, we will pay medical expenses for
bedily injury caused by en accident to which this coverage applies:

. that takes place on premises rented to or owned by yon; or
. in connection with your operations;

provided that such:

. accident occurs during the policy period;

» expenses are incurred and reported to us within three (3) years of the date of the accident;
and

. person who sustained such bodily imjury submits to examination, at our expense, by
physicians of our choice as ofien as we reasonsbly require.

‘We will make these payments regardiess of fanlt.
‘We have no other obligation or liability under this coverage.

Subject to all of the terms and conditions of this insurance, we will have the right and duty to

defend the insured against a suit, even if such suit is false, fraudulent or groundless.

1£ such a suit is brought, we will pay reasonable attormey fees and necessary Htigation expenses to

defend;

. the insared; and

. if applicable, the indermmittee of the inswred, provided the obligation to defend, or the cost of
the defense of, such indemnittee has been assumed by such insured in an insured confract.

Such attorney fees and Hiigation expenses will be paid as described in the Supplementary Payments

section of this coniract,

'We have no duty to defend any person or organization against any suit secking damages to which

this insurance does not apply.

‘We may, at our discretion, investigate any occurrence or offense and seitle any claim or suit.

Our duty to defend any person or organization ends when we have used up the applicable Limit Of

Insurance.

Subject to ali 6f the terms and conditions of this insurance, we will pay, ‘w1th‘rcspect to a cﬁaim we :

Supplementary
Payments investigate or settle, or a suit against an insured we defend:
A.  the expenses we incur.
B.  thecostof:
1, bail bonds; or
2,  bondsrequired to:
a. appeal judgments; or
Liablfity Insurance

Form 80-02-2000 {Rev. 4-01)

Contract Pago 40f 32



Who Is An Insured

(continued)

Parinerships Or Joint If you are a partnership (inclnding @ limited liability partnership) or a joint venture, you are an

Ventures insured. Your membets, your partacrs and their spouses are insareds; but they are insureds only
with respect to the conduct of your business,

Lirnited Liability If you are a limited liability company, you are an insured. Your members and their spouses are

Companies insureds; but they are insureds only with respect to the conduct of your basiness. Your managers
are insureds; but they are insureds only with respect to their duties as your managers.

Other Organizations Tf yon are an organization (including a professional corporation) other than a partnership, joiat
venture or Hmited liability company, you are an insured. Your directors and officers are insureds;
but they are inswreds only with respect to their doties as your directors oz officers. Your
stockholders and their spouses are insureds; bt they are insureds only with respect to their
liability as your stockholders,

Employees Your employees arc insureds; but they are insureds only for acts within the scope of their
employment by you or while performing duties related to the conduct of your business.

However, no employee is an insured for:
A,  bodily injury, advertising injury or personal injury:

1. to you, to any of your directors, managers, members, officers or partners (whether or
not an eeployee) or to any co-employee while such injured person is either in the
course of his or her employment or while performing duties related to the conduct of
your buginess;

2. to the brother, child, parent, sister or spouse of such injured person as a consequence
of any injury described in subparagraph A, 1. above; or

3,  for which there is any obligation to share damsages with or repay someone clse who
mnst pay damages because of any injury described in subparagraphs A1, or A2,
above,

With respect to bodily injury only, this limitation does not apply to:

. you or {0 your directors, managers, members, officers, partners or supervisors as
insureds; or

. your employees, as insureds, with respect to such damages caused by cardio-
pulmonary resuscitation or first aid services administered by such an employee; or

B.  property damage to any property owned, occupied or used by you or by any of your
directors, managers, members, officers or parmers (whether or not an employee) or by any
of your employees,

This limitation does not apply to property damage to premises while rented to you or

temporarity occupied by you with permission of the owner,

Linbiiity Insurance

Form 80-02-2000 {Rav, 4-01) Contract Page 6 of 32



Who Is An Insured

Vendors
(continued)

Lessors Of Equipment

Lessors Of Premises

Subsidiary Or Newly
Acquired Or Formed
Organizations

Limitations On Who Is An
insured

Liabllity insurance

Farther, o person or organization from whom you have acquired your products, or any container,
ingredient or patt entering into, accompanying or containing your products, is an insured under
this provision,

Persons or organizations from whom you lease equipment ate insureds; but they are insureds only
with tespect to the maintenanice or usc by you of such equipment and only if you are contractually
obligated to provide them with such insurance as is afforded by this contract.

However, no such person or organization is an insared with respect to any:

. damages arising out of their sole negligence; or

. occurTence that occurs, or offense that is committed, after the equipment lcase ends.

Persons or organizations from whom you lease premises are insureds; but they are insureds only
with respect to the ownership, maintenance or use of that particular part of such premises leased to
you and only if you are contractually obligated to provide them with such insurance as is afforded
by this contract,

However, no sach person or organization is an insured with respect to any:
. damages arising out of their sole negligence;
. occurrence that occurs, or offense that is committed, after you cease to be a tenant in the
premises; or
. :‘ttlmctnral alteration, new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf of
em,

If there is no other insurance available, the following organizations will qualify as named insureds:

. a subsidiary organization of the first named imsured shown in the Declarations of which, at
the beginning of the policy period and at the time of loss, such first named insured controls,
either directly or indirectly, more than fifty (50) percent of the interests entitled to vote
generally in the election of the governing body of such organization; or

. a subsidiary organization of the first named insured shown in the Declarations that such first
named insured acquires or forms duting the policy period, if at the time of loss such first
named insured controls, either directly or indirectly, more than fifty (50) percent of the
interests entitled to vote generally in the election of the governing body of such organization,

A, Exceptto the extent provided under the Subsidiary Or Newly Acquired Or Formed -
Organizations provision above, no person or organization is an insured with respect to the
conduct of any person or organization that is not shown as a named insured in the
Declarations. :

B.  No person or organization is an insured with respect to the:
1. ownership, maintenance or use of any assets; or
2. conduct of any person or organization whose assets, business or organization;

Form 80-02-2000 (Rev. 4-01)

Contract Page 8 of 32



Limits Of Insurance

Each Occurrence Limit
{continued)

Damage To Premises
Rented To You Limit

Medical Expenses Limit

&Bodl Injury/Properly
Damg,:]e Excluslons

Aircraft, Autos Or
Watercraft

Liabillly insurance

T the applicable aggregate limit has been reduced to an amount that s less than the Each
Occwrrence Limit, the remaining amount of stch aggregate limit is the most that will be available
for any other payment.

Subject to the Each Occurrence Limit, the Damage To Premiscs Rented To You Limit is the most
we will pay for the sum of damages for property damage to any one premises while rented to you
or temporarily occupied by yon with permission of the owner.

Subject to the Bach Occurrence Limit, the Medical Expenses Limit is the most we will pay for the
sum of medical expenses, under Medical Expenses coverage, for bodily injury sustained by any
one person,

None of the following exclusions, except "Contracts”, "Expected Or Intended Injury" and “Loss In
Progress”, apply to property damage to premises whilc rented to yon or temporarily occupied by
you with permission of the owner.

This insurance does not apply to bodily injury or property damage erising out of the ownership,
maintenance, use (use includes operation and loading or unicading) or entrustment to others of
any:

. aircraft,
. auto, or
. watercraft;
owned or operated by or loanced or rented to any insured.
This exclusion does not apply to:
A.  awatercraft while ashore on premises owned by or rented to you;
B.  awatercraft you do not own, provided that it:
1. is less than fifty-five {S5) feet long; and
2. does not transport petsons or cargo for & charge;

C.  the parking of an anto on premises owned by or rented to yon, provided the auto is not
owned by or loaned or rented 1o you or the insured;

D, the liability for dsmages assumed in an insured contractresulting from the ownership,
maintenance or use, by others, of an aircraft or watercraft;

E,  the operation of the equipment described in subparagraphs F.2. or F.3. of the defmition of
mobile equipment; or

F.  an aircraft you do not own, provided that:
1.  the pilotin command holds a corrently effective certificate, issued by the duly

constituted authority of the United States of America or Canada, designating that
person as a commercial or airline transport pilot;

Form 80-02-2000 (Rev. 4-01)

Contract Page 100f 32



Bodily

Injured/Property
Damage Exclusions
Damage To Impeired . delay or failure by you or anyone acting on your behalf to perform & contract or agreement in
Property Or Properiy Not accardance with its terms and conditions.
(ch'x ;ﬁla;g)’ Injured This cxclusion does not apply to the loss of nse of other tangible property resulting from sudden and
accidental physicel injury to your product or your work after it has been put to its intended use,
Damage To Owned This insurance does not apply to property damage to any property owned by you.
Properly
Damage To Varlous This insurance does not apply to property damage to any;
Properiy Of Others (Care, .
Control Or Custody) personal property loaned or rented to you;
. property held by you or on your behalf for sale or entrusted to you for safekeeping or storage;
. property on your premises for purposes of performing operations on such property by you or
on your behalf;
* toois or equipment used by you or on your behalf in performing operations; or
’ property in your care, control or custody that will be erected, instalied or used in constroction
operations by you or on your behalf.
This exclusion does not apply to the Hebility for damages asspmed in a sidetrack agreement.
Damage To Your Product  This insurance does not apply to property damage to your product arising out of it or any part of
it,
Demage To Your Work This insurance does not apply to property damage to your work arising out of it or any part of it
and included in the products-completed operations hazard,
This exclusion does not apply if the damaged work or the work causing the damage was performed
on your behalf by a subcontractor.
Employer’s Liability A, This insurance does not apply to bodily injury to an employee of the insured arising out of
and in the course of:
1. employment by the insured; or
2,  performing duties related to the conduct of the insured's business,
B.  This insurance does not apply to bodily injury to the brother, child, parent, sister or spouse
of such employee as a consequence of eny injury described in paragraph A. above.
This exclusion applies:
. whether the insured may be liable as an employer or in any other capacity; and
* to any oblgation to share damages with or repay someone else who must pay damages
because of any injury described in paragraphs A, or B, above,
Lizability insurance

Form BO-02-2000 {Rsv, 4-0f)

Contract Page 12 of 32



Advertising

Injury/Personal Injury

Exclusions

Breach Of Contract

Continuing Offenses

Contracts

Crime Or Fraud

Expeacted Or Intended
Injury

Faifure To Conform To
Representations Or
Warranties

Internet Activities

Liabffity insurance

This insurance does not apply to advertising injury or personal injury arising out of breach of
contract,

This insurance does not apply to advertising injury or pexsomal injury that arises out of that part
of an offense that continues or resumes after the later of the end of the policy period of:

A,  thisinsnrance; or

B,  asubsequent, continuous xenewal or replacement of this insurance, that:
1. is issned to you by us or by an affiliate of ours;
2. remains in force while the offense continues; and
3. would otherwise apply to advertising injury and personal injury.

This insurance does not apply to advertising injury or personal injury for which the insured is
obligated to pay damages by reason of assumption of liability in a conract or agrecment.

This exclusion does not epply to the liability for damages;
. thet such insured would have in the absence of such contract or agreement; or

. assumed in a written contract or agreement that is an insured contract, provided the
advertising injury or personal injury, to which this insurance applies, is caused by an
offense first commitied after the execution of such contract or agreement.

This insurance does not apply to adverfising injury or personal injury arising out of any criminal
or fraudulent conduct committed by or with the consent or knowledge of the insured.

This insurance does not apply to adverfising injury or personal injury arising out of an offense,
committed by or on behalf of the insured, that:

. is intended by such insured; or

. would be expected from the standpoint of a reasonable person in the circumstances of such
insured;

fo cause injury.

This insurance does not apply to advertising injury or personal infjury arising out of the failure of
goods, prodocts or services to conform with any electronic, oral, written or other representation or
warranty of durability, fitness, performance, quality or use,

This insurance does not apply to advertising injury or personal injury arising out of:
. controlling, creating, designing or developing of another’s Internet site;

Form 80-02-2000 (Rev. 4-01)

Confract Page 14 of 32



Medical Expenses

Exclusions

{continued)

Nuclear Energy This insurance does not apply to medical expenses arising out of bodily injury in any way related
to the;

. nuclear hazardous properties of nuclear material; and
o operation of a muclear facility by any person or organization.

Products-Completed This insurance does not apply to medical expenses arising out of bedily injury included in the

Operations Hazard products-completed operations hazard.

Workers’ Compensation This insurance does not apply to medical expenses arising out of bodily injury to any person,

Or Similar Laws whether or not an employee of any insured, if benefits for such bodily injury are payable or must
be provided under any workers' compensation, disability benefits or unemployment compensation
law or any similar law,

Policy Exclusions

Asbestos A.  This insurance dots not apply to bodily injury, property damage, advertising injury or

personal injury arising out of the actual, alleged or threatened contaminative, pathogenic,

toxic or other hazardous properties of asbestos,
B,  This insurance docs not apply to any loss, cost or expense arising out of any:

1. request, demand, order or regulatory or statutory requirement that any insured or
others test for, monitor, clean np, Temove, contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or in
any way respond to, or assess the effects of ashestos; or

2, claim or proceeding by or on behalf of a governmental authority or others for damages
because of testing for, monitoring, cleaning up, removing, containing, treating,
detoxifying or nentralizing, or in any way responding to, or assessing the effects of
ashestos,

Employmeni-Related A,  This insurance does not apply to-any damages sustained at any time by any petson, whether

Practices ot not sustained in the course of employment by any insured, arising out of any

employment-related act, omission, policy, practice or representation directed at such person,

occurring in whole or in part af any time, including any:

1, arrest, detention or imprisonment;

2. breach of any express or implied covenant;

3, coercion, criticism, humiliation, prosecation or retaliation;

4.  defamation or disparagement;

5. demotion, discipline, evaluation or reassignment;

6.  discrimination, harassment or segregation;

Liability Insurance

Form 80-02-2000 (Rev. 4-01} Contract Page 16 of 32



Policy Exclusions
{continued)

Nuclear Energy

Pollution

Liabiily Insurance

This insurance docs not apply to bodily infury, nuclear property damage, advertising
injury or personal injury:

1

with respect to which any insured under this policy also has statas as an insured under
a nuclear energy liability policy issued by Nuclear Energy Liability Insurance
Association, Mutnal Atomic Energy Liability Underwriters, Nuclear Insurance
Association of Canada or any of their saccessors, or would have had status as an
ingured under any such policy but for its termination upon exhaustion of its limit of
insurance; or

arising out of the nuclear hazardous properties of muclear material and with
respect to which:

a.  any person or organization is required to maintain financial protection pursuant
to the United States of America Atomic Energy Act of 1954, or any law
amendatory thereof; or

b, the insured is, or had this policy not been issued would be, entitled to
indemnity from the United States of America, or any agency thereof, under any
agreement entered into by the United States of America, or any agency thereof,
with any person or ozganization,

This ingurance does not apply to bodily injury, nuclear property damage, advertising
injery or personal injury arising ot of the nuclear hazardous properties of nuclear

material;
1. if the muclear material:
a, is at any nuclear facility owned by, or operated by or on behalf of, any

insared;
b.  hasbeen discharged or dispersed therefrom; or

¢. s contained in muclear spent fuel or nuclear waste at any time transported,
handled, stored, disposed of, processed, treated, possessed or nsed by or on
behalf of any insured; or

in any way related to the furnishing by any insured of services, materials, parts or
equipment in connection with the planming, construction, maintenance, operation or
use of any nuclear facility. But if such facility is located within-the United States of
America (including its possessions or territories) or Canada, this subparagraph 2.
applies only to nuclear property damage to such nuclear facility and any property
thereat,

This insurance does not apply to bodily injury, property damage, advertising injury or
personal injury arising out of the actual, alleged or threatened discharge, dispersal, scepage,
migration, release or escape of pollutants:

1

at or from any premises, site or location which i3 or was at eny time owned or
occupied by, or loaned or reated to, any insured;

at or from any premises, site or location which is or was at any time used by oz for any
insured or others for the handling, storage, disposal, processing or treattnent of waste;

Form 80-02-2000 (Rev. 4-01)

Contract

Page 18 of 32



‘Policy Excluslons

Pollution 2. claim or proceeding by or on behalf of a governmental authority or others for damages

(continued;} ‘because of testing for, monitoring, cleaning up, removing, containing, treating,
detoxifying or neutralizing, or in any way responding to, or assessing the effects of
pollutants.

Paragraph B, above does not apply to the lisbility for damages, for property damage, that
the insured would have in the absence of such request, demand, otder or regulatory or
statutory requirement, or sech claim or proceeding by or on behalf of a governmental
avthority.
This exclusion does not apply to the Hability for damages, for property damage, to premises while
reated to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner and caused by a hostile
fire, explosion, smoke or leakage from fire protective equipment.
This exclusion applies regardicss of whether or not the pollution was accidental, expected, gradual,
intended, preventable or sudden.

Recall Of Products, Work  This insurance does not apply to any damages claimed for any loss, cost or expense incurred by you
Or Impaired Properly or others for the loss of use, withdrawal, recall, inspection, repair, replaceruent, adjustment,
removal or disposel of:
. your product;
. your work; ar
. impaired property;
if such product, work or property is withdrawn or recalled from the market or from use by any

person or organization becanse of a known or suspected defect, deficiency, inadequacy or
dangerous condition in it.

Workers’ Compensation This insurance does not apply to any obligation of the insured under any workers' compensation,

Or Similar Laws disability benefits or pnemployment compensation law or any similar law.

Conditions

Arbitration We arc ontitled to exercise gll of the insured's rights in the choice of arbitrators and in the conduct
of any arbitration proceeding, except when the proceeding is between us and the insured.

Bankrupicy Bankraptey or insolvency of the insured or of the insured's estate will not relieve us of our
obligations under this insurance.

Liabifity Insurance

Form 80-02-2000 (Rev. 4-01) Contract Pags 20 of 32



Conditions

Duties In The Event Of F.  Knowledge of an occurrence or offense by an agent or employee of the insured will not
Occurrence, Offense, constitnie knowledge by the insured, unless an officer (whether or not an employee) of any
Claim Or Suit insured or an officer's designee knows about such occurrence or offense.

{continued)

G.  Failure of an agent or employee of the insured, other than an officer (whether or not an
employee) of any msured or an officer's designee, to notify us of an eceurrence or offense
that such person knows about will not affect the insnrance afforded to you.

H. FKaclaim or loss does not reasonably appesr to involve this insurance, but it later develops
into a claim or loss to which this insurance applies, the failure to report it to ns will not
violate this condition, provided the insured gives us immediate notice as soon as the msured
is aware that this insurance may. apply to such claim or loss,

Legal Action Against Us No person or organization has a right under this insurance to:

. join us as a party or otherwise bring us into a suit seeking damages from an instured; or

. sue us on this insurance nnless all of the terms and conditions of this insurance have been
folly complied with,

A person or organization may sue us to recover on an agreed sefflement or on a final judgment

apgainst an insured obtained after an actual:

o trial in a civil proceeding; or

. arbitration or other alternative dispute resolution procecding;

but we will not be linble for damages that are not payable under the terms and conditions of this

insurance or that are in excess of the applicable Limits Of Insurance,

Other Insurance If other valid and collectible insurance is available to the imsured for loss we would otherwise
cover under this insurance, our obligations are limited as follows,

Primary insurance

This insurance is primary except when the Excess Insurance provision described below applies.

If this insarance is primary, our obligations are not affected unless any of the other insurance is also

primary. Then, we will share with all that other insarance by the method described in the Method of

Sharing provision described below.

Excess Insurance

This ingnrance is excess over any other insurance, whether primary, excess, contingent or on any

other basis:

A.  thatis Fire, Extended Coverage, Builder's Risk, Installation Risk or similar insurance for
your work;

B.  thatis insurance that applies to property damage to premises rented to you or temporarily
occupied by you with permission of the owner;

C.  ifthe loss arises out of aircraft, autes or watercraft (to the extent not subject to the Aircraft,
Autos Or Watercraft exclusion);

Liability Insurance
Fomm 80-02-2000 (Rev. 4-01) Contract Page 22 of 32



Conditions

(continusd)

Transfer Or Waiver Of We will waive the right of recovery we would otherwise have had against another person or

Rights Of Recovery organization, for Ioss to which this insurance applies, provided the insured has waived their rights

Against Others of recovery against such person or organization in a contract or agrecment that is executed before
such loss.

To the extent that the insured's ¥ights to recover all or part of any payment made under this
insurance bave not been waived, those rights are transferred to us. The insured must do nothing
after loss to impair them. At our request, the insured will bring smit or transfer those rights to us

and help us enforce them,

This condition does not apply to medical expenses,

Liabffity Insurance
Fom 80-02-2009 (Rsv, 4-01) Contract

Page 24 of 32



Definitions WHEN USED WITH RESPECT TO INSURANCE UNDER THIS CONTRACT, WORDS
{continued) AND PHRASES THAT APPEAR IN BOLD PRINT HAVE THE SPECIAL MEANINGS
DESCRIBED BELOW;
Impaired Properly Impaired property means tangible property, other than your product or your work, that cannot
be used or is less useful because:
. it incorporstes your product or your work that is known or thought to be defective,
deficient, inadequate or dangerous; or
s you have failed to fulfill the terms or conditions of a contract or agreement;
if such property can be restored to use by:
. the repair, replacement, adjustment or removal of your product or your work; or
. your fulfilling the terms or conditions of the contract or agreement.
insured Insured means a person or an organization qualifying as an insured in the Who Is An Insured
section of this contract.
Insured Contract Tnsured contract;
A, means:
1.  aleasc of premises;
2 a sidetrack agreement;
3.  ancasement or license agrecment;
4 an obligation, as required by oxdinance, to indemnify a municipality, except in
connection with work for a municipality;
5 an elevator maintenance agreement; or
6.  any other contract ar agreement pertaining to your business (inclnding an
indemnification of a municipality in connection with work pexformed for such
municipality) in which you assume the tort liability of another person or organization
to pay damages, to which this insurance applies, sustained by a third person or
organization,
B,  does not include that part of any contract or agreement that indemnifies an architect,
englneer or surveyor for damages arising out of:
1, preparing, approving or failing to prepare or approve maps, drawings, opinions,
reports, surveys, field oxders, change orders, designs or specifications; or
2. piving directions or instructions, or failing to give them,
Liabilfty Insurance

Form 80-02-2000 (Rev. 4-01)

Contract Page 25 of 32



Definitions

Mabile Equipment
{continued)

Nuclear Facifity

Liablfity insurance

WHEN USED WITH RESPECT TO INSURANCE UNDER THIS CONTRACT, WORDS
AND PHRASES THAT APPEAR IN BOLD PRINT HAVE THE SPECIAL MEANINGS
DESCRIBED BELOW:

D.

vehicles, whether self-propelled or not, maintained primarily to provide mobility to
permanently mounted;

1. power cranes, shovels, loaders, digpers or drills; or
2.  road construction or resurfacing equipment such as graders, scrapers or rollers;

vehicles not described in subparagraphs A., B., C, or D, above that are oot self-propelled and
are mainfained primarily to provide mobility to permanently attached equipment of the
following types; ‘

1. air compressors, pumps and generators, including spraying, welding, building
cleaning, geophysical exploration, lighting and well servicing equipment; or

2. cherry pickers and similar devices used to raise or lower workers; and

vehicles not described in subparagraphs A., B., C. or D. ahove maintained primarily for
purposes other than the transportation of persons or cargo.

Mobile equipment does not include self-propelled vehicles with the following types of
permanently attached equipment, and such vehicles will be considered autos:

1. eguipment designed primarily for;
a snow removal;
b.  road maintenance, but not construction or resurfacing; or

c.  streetcleaning;

2,  cherry pickers and similar devices mounted on automobile or truck chassis and used to
raise or lower workers; and

3, air compressors, pumps and generators, including spraying, welding, building
cleaning, geophysical exploration, lighting and well servicing equipment,

Nucdear facility means any:

A,
B.

C

nuclear reactor;

equipment or device designed or used for:

1. secparating the isotopes of plutonium or uraniom;
2,  processing or utilizing nuclear spent fael; or

3. handling, processing or packaging nuclear waste;

equipment or device used for the processing, fabricating or alloying of nuclear material, if
at any time the total amount of such material in the custody of the insured at the premises
where snch equipment or device is located consists of or contains more than:

1, twenty-five (25) grams of plutoninm or uranium 233, or any combination thereof; or
2, two-hundred-fifty (250) grams of uranium 235; or

Form 80-02-2000 (Rev. 4-01)

Conbact

Page 28 of 32



Definitions
(continued)

Personal Injury

Pollutants

Products-Completed
Operations Hazard

Liabllity Insurance

WHEN USED WITH RESPECT TO INSURANCE UNDER THIS CONTRACT, WORDS
AND PHRASES THAT APPEAR IN BOLD PRINT HAVE THE SPECIAL MEANINGS
DESCRIBED BELOW:

Personal injury means injury, other than bodily injury, property damage or adverfising injury,
caused by an offense of:

A,
B.
C.

false arrest, false detention or other false imprisonment;
malicious prosecation;

wrongfnl entry into, wrongful eviction of a person from or other violation of a person's right
of private occupancy of a dwelling, premises or room that such person occupies, if
committed by or on behalf of its landlord, lessor or owner,;

electronic, oral, written or other publication of material that:

1, libels or slanders a person or organization (which does not include disparagemeat of
goods, products, property or services); or

2.  violates a person's right of privacy; or

discrimination, harassment or segregation based on a person's age, color, national origin,
race, religion or sex.

Pollatants means any solid, liqnid, gaseons or thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke,
vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals and waste. Waste includes materials to be recycled,
reconditioned or reclaimed,

Products-completed operations hazard:

A

inclodes all bodily injury and property damage taking place away from premises owncd or
occupied by or loaned or rented to you and arising out of your product or your work,
except:

1. products that are still in your physical possession; or

2. work that has not yet been completed or abandoned,

Your work will be deemed completed when:

. all of the work called for in your contract or agreement has been completed.

. all of the work to be performed at the site has been completed, if your contract or
agreement calls for work at more than one site,

. that part of the work completed at a site has been put to its intended use by auny person
or organization other than another contractor or subcontractor working on the same
project.

Work that may need service, maintenance, correction, repair or replacement, but which is

otherwise complete, will be treated as completed.

does not include bodily injury or property damage arising out of:

1,  the transportation of propetty, unless the injury or damage resnlts from a condition in
or on a vehicle not owned or operated by or loaned or rented to you and that condition
was created by the loading or unloading of that vehicle by any insured;

Form 80-02-2000 (Rev. 4-01)

Contract

Page 30 of 32



Definitions WHEN USED WITH RESPECT TO INSURANCE UNDER THIS CONTRACT, WORDS

(continued) AND PHRASES THAT APPEAR IN BOLD PRINT HAVE THE SPECIAL MEANINGS
DESCRIBED BELOW:
Your Work Your work:

A, means any:
1. work or operations performed by:
a,  you or on yoor behalf; or
b.  aperson or organization whose asscts or busingss yon have acquired; and
2. materials, pariz or equipment furnished in connection with sach work or operations.
B.  includes:

1. representations or warranties made at any time with respect to the durability, fitness,
performance, quality or sse of your work; and

2.  the providing of or failure to provide instructions or warnings.

Liability insurance
Form 80-02-2000 (Rev. 4-01) Contract

Page 32 of 32



Conditions

Cancellation

(2) you or your representative in pursuing a claim under this policy.

{continuec) 2, 60 days before the effective date of cancellation if we cancel for any other reason,
B.  All Policies In Effect For More Than 60 Days

1. I this policy hes been in effect for more than 60 days, or is a rencwal of a policy we
issned, we may cancel this policy or any of its individuel coverages only upon the
occurrence, after the effective date of the policy, of one or more of the following:

a,

b,

Nonpayment of premium, including payment due oz a prior policy we issued
and dve during the current policy term covering the samne risks,

Discovery of fraud or material misrepregentation by:
(1) any insured or his or her representative in obtaining this insurance; or
(2) you or your representative in pursing a claim under this policy.

A judgment by a court or an administrative tribunal that you have violated &
California or Federal law, baving as one of its necessary elements an act which
materially increases any of the risks insnred against,

Discovery of willful or grossly negligent acts or omissions, or of any violations
of state laws or regulations establishing safety standards, by you or your
representative, which materially increase any of the risks insored against.

Failure by you or your representative to implement reasonable loss conirol
requirements, agreed to by you as a condition of policy issuance, or which were
conditions precedent to our use of a particular rate or rating plan, if that failure
materially increases any of the risks insured against.

A determination by the Commissioner of Insurance that the:

(1)  loss of, or changes in, our reinsurance covering all or part of the risk
would threaten our financial integrity or solvency; or

(2) continnation of the policy coverage would place us in violation of
California law or the laws of the state where we are domiciled or threaten
our solvency.

A change by you or your representative in the activities or property of the
comumercial or industrial enterprise, which results in a materlally added,
increased or changed rigk, unless the added, increased or changed risk is
included in the policy.

2. We will mail or deliver advance written notice of cancellation, stating the reason for
cancellation and effective date of cancellation to the first named insured at the mailing
address shown on the policy and to the producer of record at least:

a,

b.

20 days before the effective date of cancellation if we cancel for a reason Hsted
in B.1.a.0r b. above; or

60 days before the effective date of cancellation if we cancel for any other
reason listed in paragraph B.1.

Policy Conditions California Mandatory — Cancellation And Nonrenewal continued

Form 80-02-8717 {Rev. 9-15) Endorsement

Pags 2



Condltions

Nonranewal
{continusd)

Policy Conditions

B.  This provision applies to coverage on real property which is used predeminantly for
residential purposes and consisting of not more than four dwelling units, and to coverage on
tenants’ household personal property in a residential unit, if such coverage is written under
this policy:

L

‘We may elect not to renew such coverage for any reason, except as provided in 2.
through 4, below.

‘We will not refuse to renew such coverage solely because the first named insured has
accepted an offer of earthquake coverage.

However, the following applies only to insarers who are associate participating
insurers as established by Cal. Ins. Code Section 10089.16. We may elect not to renew
such coverage after the first named insured has accepted an offer of earthquake
coverage, if one or more of the following reasons applies;

a.  the nonrenewal is based on sound underwriting principles that relate to the
coverages provided by this policy and that are consistent with the approved
rating plan and related documents filed with the Department of Insurance as
required by existing law;

b, the Commissioner of Insurance finds that the exposure to potentional losses will
threaten our solvency or place us in a hazardous condition, A hazardous
condition includes, but is not Limited to, a condition in which we make claims
payments for losses resulting from an earthquake that occurred within the
preceding two years and that required a reduction in policyholder surplus of at
least 25% for payment of those claims; or

e we have:

(1) lost or experienced a substantial reduction in the availability or scope of
reinsarance coverage; or

(2) experienced a substantial increase in the premium charged for reinsurance
coverage of our residential property insurance policies; and

the Commissioner has approved a plan for the nonrenewals that is fair and
equitable, and that is responsive to the changes in cur reinsurance position,

‘We will not refuse to renew such coverage solely becguse the first named insured has
cancelled or did not renew a policy, issued by the California Earthquake Authority that
included an earthquake policy premium sorcharge.

We will not refuse to renew such coverage solely because corrosive soil conditions
exist on the premises, This restriction (4.) applies only if the coverage provided under
this policy exclndesloss or damage caused by or resulting from corrosive soil
conditions,

C.  We are not required to send notice of nonrenewal in the following situations:

L

If the transfer or renewal of a policy, without any changes in terms, conditions, or
rates, is between us and a member of our insarance group.

If the policy has been extended for 90 days or less, provided that notice has been given
in accordance with paragraph A,

Callfornia Mandatory - Cancallation And Nonrenewal continusd

Form 80-02-9717 (Rev. §:15)

Endereement

Page 4



..‘ E . I Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
= Certified Public Accountants

RE@ ENVE @

AUG 02 2017

GEORGETOWN
DATE: July 31, 2017 DIVIDE PUD

TO: Mr. Steven Palmer, PE
General Manager
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
P.O. Box 4240
Georgetown, CA 95634

(530) 333-4356

FROM: Joe Aguilar, Partner
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP

SUBJECT: Signed PSA and Certificate of Insurance

ENCLOSED PLEASE FIND: PSA - 1 original signed copy
COI - 1 printed copy

For your files.
For your-information.
- X In accordance with your request.

Please sign all copies, retain a copy for your files, and return
one copy to our office.

For your distribution.
Please find enclosed per our discussion.
Please advise me how you wish to proceed.

Please sign, date and return copy to acknowledge receipt.

Should you need anything further, please contact Christine Endres by phone at (916) 570-1880 or via
e-mail at cendres@vtdcpa.com.

2151 River Plaza Drive, Suite 308 Sacramento, CA 95833 Tel: 916.570.1880 www.vtdcpa.com Fax: 916.570.1875



REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS I

BOARD MEETING OF JANUARY 9, 2018 _

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7C .

AGENDA SECTION: NEW BUSINESS

SUBJECT: CONSIDER FUNDING FOR AUTOMATED METER READING
AND METER REPLACEMENT PROJECT

PREPARED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager

APPROVED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Managerﬁ

BACKGROUND

The current meter reading process for the District requires manual reading of meters by hand
using pen and paper books, followed by office staff manually entering the meter read data from
the paper books into the computer database. This effort takes roughly one week, and utilizes
304 man hours of effort to read, and 72 man hours of effort to enter data per billing cycle (every
two months).

The Project includes the replacement of approximately 3,500 existing active 5/8-inch to 1-inch
meters; including replacing the existing 5/8-inch meters with 3/4-inch meters. The Project also
includes installing AMR technology and all software, services, and support needed to integrate
the new automated meters into the District’s existing billing and accounting software system.
The automated reading technology (AMR) will allow all meters to be read by one person in one
day, basically only limited by how quickly the meter reading routes can be driven. All data
collected by the meter reader will then be electronically downloaded to the utility billing
database in the office, requiring minimal staff time.

Completion of this Project is a recommendation of the El Dorado County Grand Jury Report,
dated May 17, 2017.

A request for bids for the Automated Meter Reading (AMR) and Meter Replacement Project
was issued on March 20, 2017. One bid was received and opened publicly at 2pm on April 5,
2017. The only bid was received from Ferguson Water Works, with a total bid amount of
$1,416,883.17; which is less than the engineer’s estimate of $1,900,000.

At that time, the District did not have sufficient revenue to obtain financing. One of the metrics
that lenders use when evaluating new loans to public agencies is the debt service coverage
ratio. The debt-service coverage ratio is the ratio of net operating income to debt service.
Lenders typically require a debt service coverage ratio of 1.20. In July 2017, projections
showed that the debt service coverage ratio would drop to less than 1.0 in fiscal years 2019-

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District 4 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, CA 95634 4 (530) 333-4356 4 gd-pud.org



Funding for AMR and Meter Replacement Page 2
Board Meeting of January 9, 2018
Agenda ltem No. 7C

2020 and 2020-2021 and cause the District to be in technical default from its loan covenants.
For example, one potential lender, Hollman Capital, suggested that the District complete the
rate study and increase rates before providing a final financing proposal.

In July 2017, the Board also considered using unrestricted reserve funds to fund the Project.
This would have reduced those funds to approximately $500,000, which is significantly less
than the Board adopted goal of $6,706,304 (Resolution 2005-05), and the 2015 Finance
Committee recommendation of $2,552,608.

Since the District could not obtain financing, and reserves would be reduced to an
unacceptable amount; the Board rejected all bids with the intent to rebid the Project once the
rate study has been updated and rates are increased to support the additional funding and
financing.

DISCUSSION

At the December 12, 2017 meeting of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (GDPUD)
Board of Directors, the Board approved a resolution adopting new rates for treated water and
irrigation water services. The new rates, which take effect January 1, 2018, are the result of a
yearlong process culminating in a rate study prepared by Rural Community Assistance
Corporation (RCAC) at no cost to GDPUD rate payers. The new rates are projected to provide
approximately $1,000,000 per year for capital replacements and capital reserves.

Since increased rates have been adopted, the District can now qualify for a loan to
construct the Project. It's also a good time of year to finalize Project plans and
specifications and advertise for bids. Traditionally, increased competition and better
pricing can be obtained from bidding projects during the Winter and awarding in Spring.
There are several options for funding this Project:

1. Cash. Using cash would still reduce the unrestricted reserve funds to an
unacceptable level. Over time, the new rates will provide enough cash to pay
for this project. At a rate of $1,000,000 per year available for capital
replacements and reserves, it could several years to generate enough revenue
to build reserves and fund this Project.

2. State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan. This project is eligible for financing
through the State’s SRF Loan program. Current interest rates are 1.7% with
a 20-year financing term. In order to obtain financing from this source, the
District needs to begin the formal application process which typically takes
approximately 9 months to 12 months from initial application to approval. This
financing mechanism would also require review by the State Water Board for
compliance with Federal environmental regulations; and review and approval
by the State Water Board of the Project plans and specifications. Additionally,
the District would need to follow Federal guidelines for compliance with the
Davis-Bacon Act regarding prevailing wage, Federal disadvantaged business
enterprise (DBE) requirements, and Federal American Iron and Steel
requirements.



Funding for AMR and Meter Replacement

Page 3

Board Meeting of January 9, 2018
Agenda item No. 7C

3. Private Lending — iBank. The District has been in contact with the private
lender, iBank, and they have provided a loan estimate (Attachment 1) with the
following terms:

=0 Qa0 oW

Interest rate of 3.0% per year

20-year loan term

Origination fee of 1% ($20,200)

Annual fee of 0.3% ($65,952.20)

Prepayment is not allowed for 10 years.

Prepayment premium of 2% of the principal balance during year 11, and
1% of the principal balance during year 12. No prepayment premium
during years

13-20.

District must pre-qualify contractors using the California Department of
Industrial Relations checklist.

4. Private Lending — Holman Capital. The District has been in contact with the
private lender, Holman Capital, and they have provided a loan estimate
(Attachment 2) with the following term options:

Poo oo

ANALYSIS

15-year loan term with interest rate of 3.82% per year

10-year loan term with interest rate of 3.50% per year

7-year loan term with interest rate of 2.50% per year

Origination fee of $5,000

Current pricing includes prepayment purchase option cost of 4% of the

outstanding principal.

i. Alternatively, the District could elect to eliminate the prepayment cost
by either paying a higher origination fee or paying a higher interest rate.
Pricing for these prepayment alternatives are not known at this time. In
order to calculate pricing for these alternatives, Holman Capital would
need to resubmit the District financial information to lenders for
preapproval.

If the District is to move forward with the Project in the near future, then financing is
required in order to avoid reducing reserves to an unacceptable level. A detailed analysis,
including amortization schedules are included as Attachment 1. A comparison of the
financing options based on assumed loan amount of $1,750,000 is summarized in the table

below.
Lender Term | Interest Average Annual | Origination | Total Cost
(years) | Rate Payment Fee

SRF - 20 20 1.70% $ 97,500 -- $ 2,047,500
iBank — 20 20 3.00% $ 120,453 $ 17,500 $ 2,426,568
Holman-15 | 15 3.82% $ 154,347 $ 5,000 $ 2,315,212
SRF -10 10 1.70% $172,614 - $ 1,898,750
Holman-10 | 10 3.50% $ 208,919 $ 5,000 $ 2,089,193
iBank — 10 10 3.00% $ 208,074 $ 17,500 $ 2,098,242
Holman-7 |7 2.50% $ 280,030 $ 5,000 $ 1,960,212




Funding for AMR and Meter Replacement Page 4
Board Meeting of January 9, 2018
Agenda ltem No. 7C

The SRF loan provides the lowest interest rate, lowest average annual payment, and
lowest origination fee. The SRF loans provides the lowest total cost and when compared
to similar private lending will save the District just over $370,000 for the 20 year loan, and
$190,000 for the 10 year loan. The disadvantages with the SRF loan are that it would
delay the replacement of meters by nine (9) months to one (1) year, and it would subject
the District to additional Federal contract compliance requirements.

Staff believes that the advantages of lower costs and a significantly lower interest rate
associated with the SRF loan outweigh the one year delay and additional reporting
requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT
A budget adjustment is not needed to proceed with loan applications.

This Project is programmed in the five-year Capital Improvement Plan in fiscal year 2018-2019.
The total project cost programmed in the CIP is $1,745,744, including construction
management, and construction contract (including a construction contingency).

This Project is not included in the adopted FY17-18 budget. A budget amendment would be
needed prior to paying any costs related to loans, and prior to bidding or awarding a
construction contract.

CEQA ASSESSMENT

Directing staff to move forward with obtaining Project financing is not a CEQA project. If
the Project moves forward, the Board will need to make a CEQA determination at a future
time.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Staff recommends the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
(GDPUD) provide direction on whether to proceed with the SRF loan application.

ALTERNATIVES

(a) Direct Staff to proceed with private financing from either iBank or Holman Capital Group; or
(b) Direct Staff to put the Project on hold until there are adequate reserves to fund the Project
with cash; or

(c) Provide other direction to Staff relative to delivery of this Project.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Financing Analysis



GDPUD Board Meeting of 1/9/2018
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7C
Attachment 1

Georgetown Divide PUD

Loan Financing

2018 Meter Reptacement Project
January 30, 2018
Analysis Results
{Bank Holman A Holman SWRCB
# of years Rate #of years Rate # of years Rate # of years Rate
20 3.00% 15 3.82% 7 2.50% 20 1.70%
Principal $ 1,750,000.00 $ 1,750,000.00 $ 1,750,000.00 $ 1,750,000.00
Interest 601,936.52 565,211.90 210,211.96 297,500.00
Annual Fee 57,131.15
Total Costs $ 2,409,067.67 $ 2,315,211.90 $ 1,960,211.96 $ 2,047,500.00
Origination Fee 17,500.00
Adjusted Total Costs | $ 2,426,567.67
Average Annual Payments $ 120453.38 $ 154,347.45 $ 280,030.28 $  97,500.00
PVofTotal Costs  { $ 1,817,812.28 $ 1,750,000.04 $ 1,750,000.03 $ 1,718,199.50
Holman Option B v SWRCB

Principal Savings ~ $ -
Interest Savings 190,442.80
Total Cost Savings $  190,442.80
Average Annual Payment Savings  $  36,305.64

PVofTotal CostSavings  § 190,442.80



ATTACHMENT 1

LOAN ANALYSIS
Georgetown Divide PUD
Loan Financing
2018 Meter Replacement Project
July 1, 2028
1Bank
California Infi &E L
California Lending for Energy and Environmental Needs {CLEEN)
7/1/2018 issue Date
3.00% Effective Interest Rate
0.30% Annual Fee
1,750,000 Loan Amount
20 Term
Total Total Present Fiscal Year
Date Principal interest Principal & Int Annual Fee Payment Value Cash Flows
7/1/2018 1,750,000.00 - - 4]
2/1/2019 1,750,000.00 30,625.00 30,625.00 30,625.00 30,097.64 210 30,625.00 18/19
8/1/2019 1,750,000.00 26,250.00 26,250.00 26,250.00 25,416.72 390
9/1/2019 1,680,325.71 69,674.29 26,250.00 95,924.29 5,250.00 101,174.29 97,719.84 Q0
2/1/2020 1,680,325.71 25,204.89 25,204.89 25,204.89 24,044.12 570 152,629.18 13/20
9/1/2020 1,608,561.19 71,764.52 25,204.89 96,969.41 5,040.98 102,010.38 95,636.76 780
2/1/2021 1,608,561.19 24,128.42 24,128.42 24,128.42 22,341.94 930 126,138.80 20/21
9/1/2021 1,534,643.73 73,917.46 24,128.32 98,045.88 4,825.68 102,871.56 93,614.63 1140
2/1/2022 1,534,643.73 23,019.66 23,019.66 23,019.66 20,689.92 1290 125,891.22 21/22
9/1/2022 1,458,508.75 76,134.98 23,019.66 99,154.64 4,603.93 103,758.57 91,651.65 1500
2/1/2023 1,458,508.75 21,877.63 21,877.63 21,877.63 19,086.59 1650 125,636.20 22/23
9/1/2023 1,380,089.72 78,419.03 21,877.63 100,296.66 4,375.53 104,672.19 89,746.09 1860
2/1/2024 1,380,089.72 20,701.35 20,701.35 20,701.35 17,530.51 2010 125,373.53 23/24
9/1/2024 1,299,318.12 80,771.60 20,701.35 101,472.95 4,140.27 105,613.21 87,896.26 2220
2/1/2025 1,299,318.12 19,489.77 19,489.77 19,489.77 16,020.30 2370 125,102.99 24/25
9/1/2025 1,216,123.37 83,184.75 19,489.77 102,684.52 3,897.95 106,582.48 86,100.54 2580
2/1/2025 1,216,123.37 18,241.85 18,241.85 18,241.85 14,554.61 2730 124,824.33 25/26
9/1/2026 1,130,432.78 85,690.59 18,241.85 103,932.44 3,648.37 107,580.81 84,357.32 2940
2/1/2027 1,130,432.78 16,956.49 16,956.49 16,956.49 13,132.14 3090 124,537.30 26/27
9/1/2027 1,042,171.47 88,261.31 16,956.49 105,217.80 3,391.30 108,609.10 82,665.08 3300
2/1/2028 1,042,171.47 15,632.57 15,632.57 15,632.57 11,751.63 3450 124,241.67 27/28
9/1/2028 951,262.32 90,909.15 15,632.57 106,541.72 3,126.51 109,668.24 81,022.32 3660
2/1/2029 951,262.32 14,268.93 14,268.93 14,268.93 10,411.83 3810 123,937.17 28/29
9/1/2029 857,625.90 93,636.42 14,268.93 107,905.35 2,853.79 110,759.14 79,427.58 4020
2/1/2030 857,625.90 12,864.39 12,864.39 12,864.39 9,111.56 4170 123,623.53 29/30
9/1/2030 761,180.39 96,445.51 12,864.39 109,309.90 2,572.88 111,882.78 77,879.45 4380
2/1/2031 761,180.39 11,417.71 11,417.71 11,417.71 7,849.65 4530 123,300.48 30/31
9/1/2031 661,841.51 99,338.88 11,417.71 110,756.5¢ 2,283.54 113,040.13 76,376.58 4740
2/1/2032 661,841.51 9,927.62 9,927.62 9,927.62 6,624.98 4890 122,967.75 31/32
9/1/2032 559,522.46 102,319.05 9,927.62 112,246.67 1,985.52 114,232.20 74,917.62 5100
2/1/2033 559,522.46 8,392.84 8,392.84 8,392.84 5,436.46 5250 122,625.03 32/33
9/1/2033 454,133.84 105,388.62 8,392.84 113,781.46 1,678.57 115,460.02 73,501.30 5460
2/1/2034 454,133.84 6,812.01 6,812.01 6,812.01 4,283.02 5610 122,272.03 33/34
9/1/2034 345,583.56 108,550.28 6,812.01 115,362.29 1,362.40 116,724.69 72,i26.36 5820
2/1/2035 345,583.56 5,183.75 5,183.75 5,183.75 3,163.64 5970 121,908.44 34/35
9/1/2035 233,776.78 111,806.78 5,183.75 116,290.53 1,036.75 118,027.28 70,791.58 6180
2/1/2036 233,776.78 3,506.65 3,506.65 3,506.65 2,077.32 6330 121,533.94 35/36
9/1/2036 118,615.79 115,160.99 3,506.65 118,667.64 701.33 115,368.97 69,495.80 6540
2/1/2037 118,615.79 1,779.24 1,779.24 1,779.24 1,023.09 6690 121,148.21 36/37
9/1/2037 (0.00} 118,615.79 1,770.24 320,295.03 355.85 120,750.87 68,237.85 6900 120,750.87 37/38
Totals 1,750,000.00 601_._938.52 2,351,936.52 57,131.15 2,409,067.67  1,817,812.28 2,409,067.67
TRUE TRUE

Note:
1) Prepayment allowed after the first 10 years
2) Prepayment premium between 10 - 12 years
3) 1% origination fee
$17,500 up front; or
4} 0.30% service fee on g balance, paid in arrears




ATTACHMENT 1

LOAN ANALYSIS
Georgetown Divide PUD
Loan Financing
2018 Meter Replacement Project
July 1, 2018
{Bank
California Infi &
California Lending for Energy and Environmental Needs (CLEEN)
7/1/2018 Issue Date
3.00% Effective Interest Rate
0.30% Annual Fee
1,750,000 Loan Amount
10 Term
Total Total Present Fiscal Year
Date Principal Interest Principal & Int Annual Fee Payment Value Cash Flows
7/1/2018  1,750,000.00 - . 0 S
2/1/2019 1,750,000.00 30,625.00 30,625.00 30,625.00 30,097.64 210 30,625.00 18/19
8/1/2019 1,750,000.00 26,250.00 26,250.00 26,250.00 25,416.72 390
9/1/2019 1,577,740.75 172,259.25 26,250.00 198,509.25 5,250.00 203,759.25 196,802.18 420
3/1/2020 1,577,740.75 23,666.11 23,666.11 23,666.11 22,520.26 600 253,675.36 19/20
9/1/2020 1,400,313.72 177,427.03 23,666.11 201,093.14 4,733.22 205,826.36 192,966.31 780
3/1/2021 1,400,313.72 21,004.71 21,004.71 21,004.71 19,401.31 960 226,831.07 20/21
9/1/2021 1,217,563.88 182,749.84 21,004.71 203,754.55 4,200.94 207,955.49 189,242.55 1140
3/1/2022 1,217,563.88 18,263.46 18,263.46 18,263.46 16,374.40 1320 226,218.95 21/22
9/1/2022 1,029,331.55 188,232.33 18,263.46 206,495.79 3,652.69 210,148.48 185,627.61 1500
3/1/2023 1,029,331.55 15,439.97 15,439.97 15,439.97 13,436.83 1680 225,588.45 22/23
9/1/2023 835,452.25 193,879.30 15,439.97 209,319.27 3,087.99 212,407.27 182,118.31 1860
3/1/2024 835,452.25 12,531.78 12,531.78 12,531.78 10,585.98 2040 224,939.05 23/24
9/1/2024 635,756.57 199,695.68 12,531.78 212,227.46 2,506.36 214,733.82 178,711.54 2220
3/1/2025 635,756.57 9,536.35 9,536.35 9,536.35 7,819.31 2400 224,270.17 24/25
9/1/2025 430,070.02 205,686.55 9,536.35 215,222.90 1,907.27 217,130.17 175,404.30 2580
3/1/2026 430,070.02 6,451.05 6,451.05 6,451.05 5,134.34 2760 223,581.22 25/26
9/1/2026 218,212.87 211,857.15 6,451.05 218,308.20 1,290.21 219,598.41 172,193.66 2940
3/1/2027 218,212.87 3,273.19 3,223.19 3,273.19 2,528.68 3120 222,871.60 26/27
9/1/2027 - 218,212.87 3,273.19 221,486.06 654.64 222,140.70 169,076.80 3300 222,140.70
Totals 1,750,000.00 303,458.25 2,053,458.25 27,283.32 2,080,741.57 1,795,458.73 2,080,741
TRUE TRUE
Note:

1) Prepayment allowed after the first 10 years
3) 1% origination fee
$17,500 up front; or
4) 0.30% service fee on ding balance, paid in arrears




Georgetown Divide PUD

Loan Financing

2018 Meter Replacement Project

January 30, 2018

Holman Capital Corporation

Option A

1/30/2018 Issue Date
3.82% Effective Interest Rate
1,750,000 Loan Amount
15 Term
Periodic Present
Date Principal Interest Debt Service Value
1/30/2018 - -
7/30/2018 43,748.73 33,425.00 77,173.73 75,727.34
1/30/2019 44,584.33 32,589.40 77,173.73 74,308.05
7/30/2019 45,435.89 31,737.84 77,173.73 72,915.37
1/30/2020 46,303.72 30,870.01 77,173.73 71,548.79
7/30/2020 47,188.12 29,985.61 77,173.73 70,207.82
1/30/2021 48,089.41 29,084.32 77,173.73 68,891.98
7/30/2021 49,007.92 28,165.81 77,173.73 67,600.81
1/30/2022 49,943.97 27,229.76 77,173.73 66,333.83
7/30/2022 50,897.90 26,275.83 77,173.73 65,090.60
1/30/2023 51,870.05 25,303.68 77,173.73 63,870.67
7/30/2023 52,860.77 24,312.96 77,173.73 62,673.60
1/30/2024 53,870.41 23,303.32 77,173.73 61,498.97
7/30/2024 54,899.33 22,274.40 77,173.73 60,346.36
1/30/2025 55,947.91 21,225.82 77,173.73 59,215.35
7/30/2025 57,016.52 20,152.21 77,173.73 58,105.53
1/30/2026 58,105.53 19,068.20 77,173.73 57,016.51
7/30/2026 59,215.35 17,958.38 77,173.73 55,947.91
1/30/2027 60,346.36 16,827.37 77,173.73 54,899.33
7/30/2027 61,498.98 15,674.75 77,173.73 53,870.41
1/30/2028 62,673.61 14,500.12 77,173.73 52,860.77
7/30/2028 63,870.67 13,303.06 77,173.73 51,870.05
1/30/2029 65,090.60 12,083.13 77,173.73 50,897.90
7/30/2029 66,333.83 10,839.90 77,173.73 49,943.97
1/30/2030 67,600.81 9,572.92 77,173.73 49,007.92
7/30/2030 68,891.98 8,281.75 77,173.73 48,089.41
1/30/2031 70,207.82 6,965.91 77,173.73 47,188.12
7/30/2031 71,548.79 5,624.94 77,173.73 46,303.72
1/30/2032 72,915.37 4,258.36 77,173.73 45,435.89
7/30/2032 74,308.06 2,865.67 77,173.73 44,584.33
1/30/2033 75,727.26 1,446.47 77,173.73 43,748.73
Totals 1,750,000.00 565,211.90 2,315,211.90 1,750,000.04
TRUE TRUE

180

360

540

720

900
1080
1260
1440
1620
1800
1980
2160
2340
2520
2700
2880
3060
3240
3420
3600
3780
3960
4140
4320
4500
4680
4860
5040
5220
5400

ATTACHMENT 1

Fiscal Year

154,347.46
154,347.46
154,347 46
154,347.46
154,347.46
154,347.46
154,347.46
154,347.46
154,347.46
154,347 .46
154,347.46
154,347.46
154,347 46
154,347.46

154,347 46

TRUE

LOAN ANALYSIS

Cash Flows

18/19
19/20
20/21
21/22
22/23
23/24
24/25
25/26
26/27
27/28
28/29
29/30
30/31
31/32

32/33

2,315,211.90
—_————=——=



Georgetown Divide PUD

Loan Financing

2018 Meter Replacement Project

January 30, 2018
Holman Capital Corporation
Option B
1/30/2018 Issue Date
3.50% Effective Interest Rate
1,750,000 Loan Amount
10 Term
Periodic Present
Date Principal Interest Debt Service Value
1/30/2018 - -
7/30/2018 73,834.64 30,625.00 104,459.64 102,663.04
1/30/2019 75,126.75 29,332.89 104,459.64 100,897.33
7/30/2019 76,441.46 28,018.18 104,459.64 99,162.00
1/30/2020 77,779.19 26,680.45 104,459.64 97,456.51
7/30/2020 79,140.33 25,319.31 104,459.64 95,780.35
1/30/2021 80,525.28 23,934.36 104,459.64 94,133.03
7/30/2021 81,934.47 22,525.17 104,459.64 92,514.03
1/30/2022 83,368.33 21,091.31 104,459.64 90,922.88
7/30/2022 84,827.27 19,632.37 104,459.64 89,359.10
1/30/2023 86,311.75 18,147.89 104,459.64 87,822.21
7/30/2023 87,822.21 16,637.43 104,459.64 86,311.75
1/30/2024 89,359.09 15,100.55 104,459.64 84,827.27
7/30/2024 90,922.88 13,536.76 104,459.64 83,368.33
1/30/2025 92,514.03 11,945.61 104,459.64 81,934.47
7/30/2025 94,133.02 10,326.62 104,459.64 80,525.28
1/30/2026 95,780.35 8,679.29 104,459.64 79,140.33
7/30/2026 97,456.51 7,003.13 104,459.64 77,779.19
1/30/2027 99,162.00 5,297.64 104,459.64 76,441.47
7/30/2027 100,897.33 3,562.31 104,459.64 75,126.75
1/30/2028 102,663.11 1,796.53 104,459.64 73,834.64
Totals 1,750,000.00 339,192.80 2,089,192.80 1,749,999.96
TRUE TRUE

180

360

540

720

900
1080
1260
1440
1620
1800
1980
2160
2340
2520
2700
2880
3060
3240
3420
3600

ATTACHMENT 1

Fiscal Year

208,919.28
208,919.28
208,919.28
208,919.28
208,919.28
208,919.28
208,919.28
208,919.28
208,919.28

208,919.28

TRUE

LOAN ANALYSIS

Cash Flows

18/19
19/20
20/21
21/22
22/23
23/24
24/25
25/26
26/27

27/28



ATTACHMENT 1

LOAN ANALYSIS
Georgetown Divide PUD
Loan Financing
2018 Meter Replacement Project
January 30, 2018
Holman Capital Corporation
Option C
1/30/2018 Issue Date
3.10% Effective Interest Rate
1,750,000 Loan Amount
7 Term
Periodic Present Fiscal Year
Date Principal interest Debt Service Value Cash Flows
1/30/2018 - e 0
7/30/2018 112,890.14 27,125.00 140,015.14 137,878.03 180
1/30/2019 114,639.94 25,375.20 140,015.14 135,773.54 360 280,030.28 18/19
7/30/2019 116,416.86 23,598.28 140,015.14 133,701.17 540
1/30/2020 118,221.32 21,793.82 140,015.14 131,660.44 720 280,030.28 19/20
7/30/2020 120,053.75 19,961.39 140,015.14 129,650.85 900
1/30/2021 121,914.58 18,100.56 140,015.14 127,671.93 1080 280,030.28 20/21
7/30/2021 123,804.26 16,210.88 140,015.14 125,723.22 1260
1/30/2022 125,723.22 14,291.92 140,015.14 123,804.26 1440 280,030.28 21/22
7/30/2022 127,671.93 12,343.21 140,015.14 121,914.58 1620
1/30/2023 129,650.85 10,364.29 140,015.14 120,053.75 1800 280,030.28 22/23
7/30/2023 131,660.44 8,354.70 140,015.14 118,221.32 1980
1/30/2024 133,701.17 6,313.97 140,015.14 116,416.86 2160 280,030.28 23/24
7/30/2024 135,773.54 4,241.60 140,015.14 114,639.94 2340
1/30/2025 137,878.00 2,137.14 140,015.14 112,890.14 2520 280,030.28 24/25

Totals 1,750,000.00 210,211.96 1,960,211.96  1,750,000.03 1,960,211.96
_—————




Georgetown Divide PUD

Loan Financing

2018 Meter Replacement Project

July 1, 2018

State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB)

7/1/2018 Issue Date
1.70% Effective interest Rate
1,750,000 Loan Amount

20 Term
Total Present
Date Principal Interest Principal & Int Value

7/1/2018 - :

2/1/2019 - - ;

8/1/2019  1,750,000.00 . - -
2/1/2020  1,662,500.00 87,500.00 14,875.00 102,375.00 99,667.50
8/1/2020  1,662,500.00 14,131.25 14,131.25 13,641.57
2/1/2021  1,575,000.00 87,500.00 14,131.25 101,631.25 97,282.59
8/1/2021  1,575,000.00 13,387.50 13,387.50 12,706.66
2/1/2022  1,487,500.00 87,500.00 13,387.50 100,887.50 94,949.66
8/1/2022  1,487,500.00 12,643.75 12,643.75 11,799.29
2/1/2023  1,400,000.00 87,500.00 12,643.75 100,143.75 92,667.63
8/1/2023  1,400,000.00 11,900.00 11,900.00 10,918.81
2/1/2024  1,312,500.00 87,500.00 11,900.00 99,400.00 90,435.47
8/1/2024  1,312,500.00 11,156.25 11,156.25 10,064.56
2/1/2025  1,225,000.00 87,500.00 11,156.25 98,656.25 88,252.13
8/1/2025  1,225,000.00 10,412.50 10,412.50 9,235.91
2/1/2026  1,137,500.00 87,500.00 10,412.50 97,912.50 86,116.62
8/1/2026  1,137,500.00 9,668.75 9,668.75 8,432.25
2/1/2027  1,050,000.00 87,500.00 9,668.75 97,168.75 84,027.92
8/1/2027  1,050,000.00 8,925.00 8,925.00 7,652.96
2/1/2028 962,500.00 87,500.00 8,925.00 96,425.00 81,985.08
8/1/2028 962,500.00 8,181.25 8,181.25 6,897.46
2/1/2029 875,000.00 87,500.00 8,181.25 95,681.25 79,987.15
8/1/2029 875,000.00 7,437.50 7,437.50 6,165.16
2/1/2030 787,500.00 87,500.00 7,437.50 94,937.50 78,033.19
8/1/2030 787,500.00 6,693.75 6,693.75 5,455.51
2/1/2031 700,000.00 87,500.00 6,693.75 94,193.75 76,122.29
8/1/2031 700,000.00 5,950.00 5,950.00 4,767.94
2/1/2032 612,500.00 87,500.00 5,950.00 93,450.00 74,253.56
8/1/2032 612,500.00 5,206.25 5,206.25 4,101.92
2/1/2033 525,000.00 87,500.00 5,206.25 92,706.25 72,426.11
8/1/2033 525,000.00 4,462.50 4,462.50 3,456.91
2/1/2034 437,500.00 87,500.00 4,462.50 91,962.50 70,639.10
8/1/2034 437,500.00 3,718.75 3,718.75 2,832.41
2/1/2035 350,000.00 87,500.00 3,718.75 91,218.75 68,891.67
8/1/2035 350,000.00 2,975.00 2,975.00 2,227.89
2/1/2036 262,500.00 87,500.00 2,975.00 90,475.00 67,182.99
8/1/2036 262,500.00 2,231.25 2,231.25 1,642.87
2/1/2037 175,000.00 87,500.00 2,231.25 89,731.25 65,512.27
8/1/2037 175,000.00 1,487.50 1,487.50 1,076.86
2/1/2038 87,500.00 87,500.00 1,487.50 88,987.50 63,878.71
8/1/2038 87,500.00 743.75 743.75 529.39
2/1/2039 - 87,500.00 743.75 88,243.75 62,281.53
Totals 1,750,000.00 297,500.00 2,047,500.00 1,718,199.50

210

390

570

750

930
1110
1290
1470
1650
1830
2010
2190
2370
2550
2730
2910
3090
3270
3450
3630
3810
3990
4170
4350
4530
4710
4890
5070
5250
5430
5610
5790
5970
6150
6330
6510
6690
6870
7050
7230
7410

Fiscal Year

Cash Flows

102,375.00
115,762.50
114,275.00
112,787.50
111,300.00
109,812.50
108,325.00
106,837.50
105,350.00
103,862.50
102,375.00
100,887.50
99,400.00
97,912.50
96,425.00
94,937.50
93,450.00
91,962.50
90,475.00

88,987.50

2,047,500.00
—_—

ATTACHMENT 1
LOAN ANALYSIS

18/19
19/20
20/21
21/22
22/23
23/24
24/25
25/26
26/27
27/28
28/29
29/30
30/31
31/32
32/33
33/34
34/35
35/36
36/37
37/38

38/39



Georgetown Divide PUD

Loan Financing

2018 Meter Replacement Project

July 1, 2018

State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB)

7/1/2018 Issue Date
1.70% Effective Interest Rate
1,750,000 Loan Amount

10 Term
Total Present
Date Principal Interest Principal & Int Value

7/1/2018 - -

2/1/2019 = - -

8/1/2019 1,750,000.00 = - -
2/1/2020 1,575,000.00 175,000.00 14,875.00 189,875.00 184,853.39
8/1/2020 1,575,000.00 13,387.50 13,387.50 12,923.59
2/1/2021 1,400,000.00 175,000.00 13,387.50 188,387.50 180,326.65
8/1/2021 1,400,000.00 11,900.00 11,900.00 11,294.81
2/1/2022 1,225,000.00 175,000.00 11,900.00 186,900.00 175,899.79
8/1/2022 1,225,000.00 10,412.50 10,412.50 9,717.07
2/1/2023 1,050,000.00 175,000.00 10,412.50 185,412.50 171,570.74
8/1/2023 1,050,000.00 8,925.00 8,925.00 8,189.11
2/1/2024 875,000.00 175,000.00 8,925.00 183,925.00 167,337.47
8/1/2024 875,000.00 7.437.50 7,437.50 6,709.71
2/1/2025 700,000.00 175,000.00 7,437.50 182,437.50 163,197.96
8/1/2025 700,000.00 5,950.00 5,950.00 5,277.66
2/1/2026 525,000.00 175,000.00 5,950.00 180,950.00 159,150.28
8/1/2026 525,000.00 4,462.50 4,462.50 3,891.81
2/1/2027 350,000.00 175,000.00 4,462.50 179,462.50 155,192.50
8/1/2027 350,000.00 2,975.00 2,975.00 2,550.99
2/1/2028 175,000.00 175,000.00 2,975.00 177,975.00 151,322.74
8/1/2028 175,000.00 1,487.50 1,487.50 1,254.08
2/1/2029 - 175,000.00 1,482.50 176,487.50 147,539.17
Totals 1,750,000.00 148,750.00 1,898,750.00 1,718,199.52

210

390

570

750

930
1110
1290
1470
1650
1830
2010
2190
2370
2550
2730
2910
3090
3270
3450
3630
3810

ATTACHMENT 1
LOAN ANALYSIS

Fiscal Year

Cash Flows

- 18/19
189,875.00 19/20
201,775.00 20/21
198,800.00 21/22
195,825.00 22/23
192,850.00 23/24
189,875.00 24/25
186,900.00 25/26
183,925.00 26/27
180,950.00 27/28

177,975.00 28/29

1,898,750.00
e — ———————°3



REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD MEETING OF JANUARY 9, 2018 _

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7D .

AGENDA SECTION: NEW BUSINESS

SUBJECT: PROVIDE DIRECTION ON POLICY FOR A LOW-INCOME RATE
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM FOR TREATED WATER RATES
WITH A SOURCE OF FUNDING OTHER THAN WATER RATES

PREPARED BY: Christina Cross, Management Analyst OQ/

APPROVED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Manage

BACKGROUND
During the December 13, 2017, Special Board Meeting a low-income rate assistance program
for treated water customers was presented. The staff report from that meeting is included as
Attachment 1, and the proposed low-income rate assistance program (LIRA) policy is included
as Attachment 2. The Board of Directors requested additional data from other water agencies
with similar programs, and for legal counsel to review the draft policy.

DISCUSSION

As suggested by the Board, Management Analyst Christina Cross contacted Paradise
Irrigation District regarding their customer assistance program. Paradise Irrigation District
currently has approximately 10,500 customers. Kevin Phillips (Interim District Manager) stated
their customer assistance program (CAP) was started in 2016 and since initiated has not raised
above a 6% participation rate. They currently provide PG&E Califomia Altemate Rates for
Energy Program (CARE) qualifying customers a flat $10 discount per monthly billing cycle.

Staff also searched to find agencies in Northern California with assistance programs, in addition
to those presented in previous staff reports. Alameda County Water District also offers an
assistance program to its customers at a $15 credit every two months on their water service.
Their program has been available for approximately 1 year and has a participation rate of 1%.
Income guidelines for this program mirror the San Francisco Public Utility Commission as
shown in the table below.

Number of Persons in Household Total Gross Annual Household Income*

1-2 $32,480 or less
3 $40,840 or less
4 $49,200 or less
5 $57,560 or less
Each additional person, add $8,360

Georgetown Divide Public Utlity District ¢ 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, CA 95634 4 (530) 333-4356 4 gd-pud.org



Direction on Policy for Low-income Assistance Program Page 2
Board Meeting of January 9, 2018
Agenda Item #7D

At this point in time, the Board needs to provide direction on the amount of the discount per
billing cycle and adopt the resolution approving the policy. Staffs recommendation is to set the
discount at 25% of the monthly base charge, which equates to $7.35 per month ($14.70 per
billing cycle) for the first year. Establishing a percentage discount would allow the discount to
keep pace with the newly adopted annual rate increases. In the fifth year, a 25% discount
would equate to $8.94 per month ($17.88 per billing cycle).

FISCAL IMPACT

Due to restrictions imposed by Proposition 218, LIRA Programs cannot be funded by water
rate revenues. They must be funded by other revenue sources such as property tax,
hydroelectric revenue, SMUD revenue, lease revenue, or voluntary contributions.

Fiscal Year 2017-2018 budget does not include any funding for a LIRA Program. At this point,
Board direction has been to set aside $35,000 for a LIRA program. The budget would need to
be amended to set aside an amount to fund the LIRA.

Additional staff time will be needed to administer this program including reviewing applications
and allocating discounts. The amount of staff time required to administer this program depends
on the number of applicants and participants, so the exact amount of time is difficult to quantify.
At this time, Staff estimates that 859 households could qualify for the program. In order to
make sure that the program is successful and adequate outreach is performed to encourage
participation, one Staff person should dedicate 25% of their time on an annual basis. The
District does not currently have adequate staffing to administer this program and an additional
part time staff person or consultant would be required to perform required outreach and
administration. The fully loaded cost for a staff person or consultant to administer the program
is estimated to be in the range of $15,000 per year.

CEQA ASSESSMENT
Not a CEQA project.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Staff recommends that the Board provide direction on the amount for the discount being offered
by the program and adopt the attached resolution (Attachment 3) adopting the LIRA policy.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Staff report from December 13, 2017 Special Meeting
2. Low Income Rate Assistance Program Policy

3. Resolution



GDPUD Board Meeting of 1/9/2018,
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7D, Attachment 1

REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS w

BOARD MEETING OF DECEMBER 13, 2017 _

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5B .

AGENDA SECTION: NEW BUSINESS

SUBJECT: PROVIDE DIRECTION ON POLICY FOR A LOW-INCOME RATE
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM FOR TREATED WATER RATES
WITH A SOURCE OF FUNDING OTHER THAN WATER RATES

PREPARED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager

APPROVED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager

BACKGROUND

At previous meetings, the Board has expressed interest in developing a program to provide
discounts to treated water customers that have difficulties in paying their water bills each month.
At the February 2017 meeting, the Board directed Staff to pursue partnering with a local non-
profit to establish a mechanism for District employees to make voluntary contributions to a local
non-profit fund dedicated to helping customers pay their water bills. The non-profit was to
administer and manage the program, with the District only committing to provide employees
with the option to make a voluntary contribution via payroll deduction. This program has not
yet been implemented.

The concept of low-income discounts and a low-income rate assistance program (LIRA) was
also raised during rate study presentations to the Finance Committee and the Board on April
25, 2017, and May 8, 2017, respectively. At these meetings, the Finance Committee and
Board both recommended that if the District developed a LIRA program that the District should
minimize the Staff time required to administer the program.

The General Manager requested direction from the Board regarding developing a policy for a
LIRA at the August 8, 2017 Board meeting. At that time, the General Manager presented a
discussion of other agencies that have a LIRA, and included an assessment of the number of
customers that might be able to qualify for the program. The direction received from the Board
at that time was to utilize voluntary donations for the program.

Since that time, new increased water rates have been proposed. At the October 24, 2017
Board meeting regarding rates, the Board directed Staff to assume that $35,000 of property
tax revenue would be budgeted for a future LIRA. The Board further directed the General
Manager to bring a LIRA policy for Board action at a future meeting.

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District ¢ 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, CA 95634 4 (530) 333-4356 4 gd-pud.org



Direction on Policy for Low-income Assistance Program Page 2
Board Meeting of December 13, 2017

Agenda Item #5B

One additional nuance to a District LIRA is that the State of California Water Resources Control
Board (State) is developing guidelines for a Statewide LIRA. This statewide program is
required by AB401, and is still being developed. The State has presented several scenarios
for public comment, and a final report is due to the legislature in early 2018. Implementation
would take additional time after that, and additional details are not clear. It is possible that the
District may be subject to the new State program in lieu of its’ own LIRA program.

DISCUSSION
Other LIRA Programs

The August 8, 2017 Staff Report provided a discussion and results from the General Manager's
survey of other local water agencies LIRA Programs. The results are summarized below.

Agency LIRA | Source Notes

California Water | Yes | Donations Accepts various recognized low-

Service income programs. Discount of 50% of
monthly base charge.

EID Yes | Donations One time catastrophic

NID No - -

PCWA No - -

City of Roseville No - -

City of Sacramento Yes | General Fund | SMUD EAP guidelines, Approx.

(Utility User Tax) | $300,000 per year
San Juan Water No -- -

The City of Sacramento and California Water Service LIRA Program income limits are the
same as the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) poverty
guidelines of 200% of poverty level. These income limits are also the same for the Pacific Gas
& Electric (PG&E) California Alternate Rates for Energy Program (CARE), which are shown in
the table below.

Number of Persons in Household | Total Gross Annual Household Income
1-2 $ 32,840
3 $ 40,840
4 $ 49,200
5 $ 57,560
6 $ 65,920
7 $ 74,280
8 $ 82,640
9 $ 91,000
10 $ 99,360
Each additional person $ 8,360




Direction on Policy for Low-income Assistance Program Page 3
Board Meeting of December 13, 2017
Agenda ltem #5B

Water Affordability and Poverty

According to estimates from the United States Census Bureau, the annual median household
income in El Dorado County in 2015 was $69,584, with 2.69 residents per household. The
same data source also indicates that 9.1% of El Dorado County residents are in poverty.

The District encompasses two Census Designated Places (CDP) with available data from the
2011-2015 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates. The CDPs are Aubum Lake Trails
and Georgetown. The data shows that Auburn Lake Trails CDP has a median household
income of $100,875 and 2.0% of residents below the poverty level, and Georgetown CDP has
a median household income of $44,241 and 13.5% of residents below the poverty level. A
review of the data indicates that roughly 544 households within these two CDPs are below the
annual income limit for a two (2) person household used by PG&E and the agencies surveyed
in this report. This equates to 24% of the households surveyed.

Water affordability is typically measured as a percentage of median household income. The
California Department of Health Services defines water affordability as 1.5% of annual median
household income and the United States Environmental Protection Agency considers the
threshold to be 2-2.5% for water. Households paying more than this amount are considered
to be paying an unaffordable amount for water service. Current District residential water rates
are $38.65 per month, or $77.30 for two months and 2,000 cubic feet of water. For a similar
sized meter, the first year of proposed new water rates for two months and 2,000 cubic feet of
water would be $139.98. The table below summarizes the current and proposed affordability
of 2,000 cubic feet of water.

Area Current Water Bill Proposed Year 1 Water Bill
Percentage of Median Percentage of Median
Household Income Household Income

El Dorado County 0.67% 1.21%
Auburn Lake Trails 0.46% 0.83%
CDP

Georgetown CDP 1.05% 1.90%
GDPUD (RCAC) 0.99% 1.80%

The California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) also publishes
guidelines for determining if a household is in poverty. Their guidelines for El Dorado County
are summarized below.

Persons in Household

Income 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Category
Extremely 16,000 | 18,300 | 20,600 | 24,600 | 28,780 | 32,960 | 37,140 | 41,320
Low
Very Low 26,650 | 30,450 | 34,250 | 38,050 | 41,100 | 44,150 | 47,200 | 50,250
Low 42650 | 48,750 | 54,850 | 60,900 | 65,800 | 70,650 | 75,550 | 80,400




Direction on Policy for Low-income Assistance Program Page 4
Board Meeting of December 13, 2017
Agenda Item #5B

Using the ACS data, the assumption can be made that up to 24% of households within the
District might qualify for assistance. Based on 3,486 active single family residential accounts
and 10 multi-family residential accounts (94 households) representing a total of 3,580
households, this equates to 859 households which could qualify for a LIRA program. The
annual fiscal impact of various levels of assistance is summarized below. These annual
amounts are based on the proposed fixed rate of $58.81 for two months.

Percent Bi-Monthly Annual Discount Total Annual
Discount Discount per per Household Discount
Household Program Budget
10% $ 5.88 $ 35.28 $ 30,306
20% $11.76 $ 70.56 $ 60,612
30% $17.64 $105.84 $ 90,926
40% $ 23.52 $141.12 $ 121,223
50% $29.41 $176.46 $ 151,580
Proposed Policy

At this point, Board direction has been to set aside $35,000 for a LIRA program. According
to the analysis in this report, this would fund an 11.5% discount for 859 households each
year. Based on research performed by the General Manager into other LIRA programs
run by the Cities of Sacramento and Long Beach, it is unlikely that all 859 households will
participate in the program and it is more likely that only half of the qualifying households
will participate. For that reason, a higher subsidy may be appropriate and the General
Manager recommends starting the LIRA with a discount of 25%. This discount amount
and the amount budgeted from property tax revenue will be evaluated by the Board
quarterly. The PG&E CARE rate program appears to have a much higher participation
rate than those reported by water agencies. The State’s Low-Income Oversight Board
(www.liob.org) reports that the 90% of eligible households are enrolled in the PG&E CARE
rate program, and that about 30% of PG&E customers participate.

A proposed LIRA policy is included as Attachment 3. The policy includes the following
elements:

e Must be a treated water customer.

e Customer must meet HCD or PG&E income guidelines for very low income, or
extremely low-income households in El Dorado County; whichever is higher.
Customer must live at the residence at which the discount applies.

Customer must be a residential customer.
Customers will receive a 25% discount off the base rate for water services, not
including the supplemental charge.

e The maximum property tax subsidy in Fiscal Year 2017/18 will be $35,000. Future
maximum annual amounts will be determined as part of the annual budget process.
Customers may apply at any time and must reapply annually each year.
Customers will be enrolled into the program on a first come, first served basis until
the annual budget amount is reached.

e Outreach will be conducted through bill inserts, brochures, website, email, social
media, community presentations, etc.



Direction on Policy for Low-income Assistance Program Page 5
Board Meeting of December 13, 2017
Agenda ltem #5B

Alternative to Proposed Policy
The key variable affecting the success of this program is the number of eligible customers that
participate. Since this is a new program for the District, we have very little data to help estimate
the number of participants, and it is difficult to establish an amount to budget for this program.
The percent discount rate is completely at the discretion of the Board and can be adjusted
based on the amount that the Board budgets to the program each year. As an altemative to
establishing the discount percentage, the District could allocate the amount budgeted each
year evenly among qualified applicants. The following elements of the proposed LIRA in
Attachment 3 would need to change:
» |Instead of accepting applicants year-round, applications would only be accepted
during a specific time of year, immediately after the annual budget is adopted.
e Any applications received after the deadline would be placed on a waitlist until the
next application period.
e A maximum percentage discount would need to be established.
e Instead of a percentage discount, customers would receive a defined discount
amount that is the annual amount budgeted for discount divided by the number of
qualified applicants.

FISCAL IMPACT

Due to restrictions imposed by Proposition 218, LIRA Programs cannot be funded by water
rate revenues. They must be funded by other revenue sources such as property tax,
hydroelectric revenue, SMUD revenue, lease revenue, or voluntary contributions.

Fiscal Year 2017-2018 budget does not include any funding for a LIRA Program. At this point,
Board direction has been to set aside $35,000 for a LIRA program. The budget would need to
be amended to set aside an amount to fund the LIRA.

CEQA ASSESSMENT
Not a CEA project.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
The General Manager recommends that the Board adopt the attached resolution adopting the
Low-Income Rate Assistance Program policy.

ATTACHMENTS

City of Sacramento LIRA

California Water Service LIRA

Low Income Rate Assistance Program Policy
Resolution

PON-



GDPUD Special Board Meeting of 1/09/18, AGENDA ITEM 7D Attachment 3

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District {2018

Policy Manual
POLICY TITLE: Low Income Rate Assistance Program
POLICY NUMBER:
I. PURPOSE:

The Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (District)
desires to offer financial assistance to low-income treated water customers.

iI. POLICY:

A. Eligibility
1. Must receive treated water service from the District.
Customer must live (primary residence) at the address receiving the discount.
Must be a residential customer.
Meet the income guidelines outlined in Section 3.
Customer must notify the District when no longer eligible.
Customer must submit for renewal each year Eligibility is renewed annually in
June.
7. Qualification is based on the total income of everyone living in the home or
participation in qualifying public assistance programs.

A

B. Income Verification
1. Qualification is based on the total gross income of everyone living in the
household.
2. Two methods of demonstrating:
i. Provide copy of PG&E bill showing CARE rate for treated water account
holder; or
ii. Submitincome documentation to the District for review and approval

a. Customer must account for all sources of qualifying household
income.

b. To ensure consistency with PG&E CARE Program income
requirements, the District will request the same income information
and back-up documents as the PG&E CARE program.

c. Customers must black out any account numbers or Social Security
numbers.

d. Customers must provide income information for all members of the
household. This information may include several of the documents
listed below:



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District | 2018

Policy Manual |

e

If you or someone in your household participates in

You should send in a copy of:

Public Assistance Programs

Medicaid/Medi-Cal, Supplemental Security Income
(SSI), CalFresh/SNAP (Food Stamps), LIHEAP,
WIC, Healthy Families A & B, Cal WORKSs (TANF),
National School Lunch Program (NSLP), Bureau of
Indian Affairs General Assistance, Head Start
Income Eligible (Tribal Only)

Award letter(s) OR letter of
participation in the program(s)

If you or someone in your household receives
income from:

You should send in a copy of:

Wages, Salaries, Tips, Commissions

Two most recent consecutive check
stubs, W2 or IRS 1040 Form

Pensions, Social Security, SSP, SSDI, Disability
Payments, Workers Compensation, Unemployment
Benefits, VA Benefits, Foster Care Payments

Award letter(s), two most recent
consecutive check stubs or the most
recent bank statement (to show direct
deposit)

School Grants, Scholarships, Other Aid

Award Letter(s) OR two most recent
consecutive check stubs

Insurance and/or Legal Settlements

Settlement Documents

Child and/or Spousal Support

Court documents OR two most
recent consecutive check stubs

Farm Income

First page of IRS 1040

Interest and/or Dividends from Savings, Stocks,
Bonds, Mutual Funds

IRS Form 1040 or IRS Form 1099(s)
or three consecutive bank statements

401K or IRA withdrawals or Annuities

Investment account statement(s),
IRS Form 1040 or IRS Form 1099

Capital Gains

Investment account statement(s),
IRS Form 1040 or IRS Form 1099

Rental and/or Royalty Income

IRS Form 1040 AND Schedule E for
Rental Income

Profit from Self-Employment

IRS Form 1040 and Schedule C

Gambling/Lottery Winnings

Determined on a case-by-case basis

Union Strike Fund Benefits

Two most recent consecutive benefit
check stubs

Cash Income (when you have not filed federal or
state taxes)

Signed letter detailing type of work,
estimated monthly amount of cash
payment, employer name and phone
number




Georgetown Divide Public Utility District | 2018

Policy Manual

If you or someone in your household receives
income from:

You should send in a copy of:

Monetary gifts, none of the examples apply or if you
do not receive any income

Signed letter explaining the current
source(s) of income used to support
your household.

C. Gross Income Limits

1. The District will use the most current income limit information from the PG&E
Care Program (Updated in May) and/or the CA Department of Housing and
Community Development Official State Income Limits for El Dorado County
(updated in December) for the extremely low and very low categories. The
highest income limit shall apply. As of February 14, 2017, the income limits

are:
Number of Persons in Total Gross Annual Household

Household Income

$32,480 or less

$40,840 or less

$49,200 or less

$57,560 or less

$65,920 or less

$74,280 or less

$82,640 or less

$91,000 or less

- —_
SR IR S

$99,360 or less

Each additional person, add

$8,360

*Before taxes based on current income sources. Valid through May 31, 2018

D. Discount Amount

1. Customers will receive a discount of 25% off the base rate of treated water.
2. This will be reviewed by staff annually on or before June 30, beginning in
2018 to determine suitability. Any changes require approval by the Board.

E. Eligibility Renewal

1. Renewal information must be received by the District before June 1 annually.
2. Participants will be notified by mail to resubmit their eligibility information.

F. Fund Limit and Wait List

1. The maximum property tax revenue that will be allocated to this program
(fund limit) will be $35,000 in FY 17/18. Future maximum amounts will be
determined as part of the annual budget process.




Georgetown Divide Public Utility District 12018
Policy Manual

A change to the fund limit can be authorized by action of the Board of

Directors.

Staff will provide information on projected discount expenses during the

quarterly financial reports to the Board.

If customer demand exceeds fund limit, a wait list will be created.

Customers on the wait list will be enrolled into the program on first come-first

served basis as funds become available.

i. If a customer has been on the wait list for more than 6 months, they must
re-submit income eligibility information.

G. Discount Distribution

1.

When the owner and the account holder are the same individual, a monthly
bill credit will be issued.
When the owner and the account holder are not the same individual or in the
case of a shared meter then a written agreement must be signed by the
District, owner, and account holder with the following terms:
i. District will give monthly bill credit to the account holder
ii. If the qualifying household is a tenant who is not the account holder, then
the account holder will pass the discount through to the tenant via a
reduced utility bill or rent reduction.
iii. All discounts must be given to the eligible tenant and not spread across all
tenants.
Definitions
i. Owner- is the legal property owner of a parcel.
ii. Account holder- is the name on a treated water account.
iii. Tenant- is a leaseholder of a house, apartment, condominium or similar
residential dwelling OR the owner of an individual mobile/manufactured
home in a mobile home park.

H. Program Acceptance

1.

Customers may apply at any time; however, they may be placed on a waitlist
based on funding availability.

District may require up to 60 days to provide determination of customers
income eligibility.

Discounts will be distributed as listed in Section 7.

For customers described in Section 7 (b), additional time may be required for
written agreements before discount can be applied.



R e T —— S Eeta e

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District | 2018
Policy Manual

l. Marketing and Outreach
1. The District will attempt to reach all eligible customers about the program
including:
i. Bill Inserts
ii. Email, website, email, and social media notification
iii. Press releases to local newspapers
iv. Creating partnerships to share information
v. Brochures at the post office, library, nonprofits and other gathering places
vi. Community Presentations

J. Policy Review
1. This policy should be reviewed prior to June 30, 2018 and annually thereafter
for consistency with applicable state laws, income levels and discount rates.
2. Staff will provide information on projected discount expenses during the
quarterly financial reports to the Board.



GDPUD Board Meeting of
1/9/2018

AGENDA ITEM 7D
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-04 Attachment 3

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A LOW-INCOME RATE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM FOR
TREATED WATER RATES WITH A SOURCE OF FUNDING OTHER THAN WATER
RATES

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (“District’)
desires to provide assistance to low-income customers who are having difficulty paying their treated water
bills; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to fund this program from sources other than water rate revenues;
and

WHEREAS, the Low-Income Rate Assistance Program Policy, dated January 9, 2018 was
presented to and reviewed by the Board on January 9, 2018.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the attached Low-Income Rate Assistance
Program for Treated Water Rates is approved, subject to the amount in each adopted annual budget and
as amended by the Board.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 9th day of January 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

Londres Uso, President
Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

ATTEST:

Steven Palmer, Clerk and Ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

CERTIFICATION

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution 2018-, duly and regularly
adopted by the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District, County of El Dorado,
State of California, on the 9" day of January 2018.

Steven Palmer, Clerk and Ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

GDPUD Resolution No. 2018-04 Page 1 of 1



REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD MEETING OF JANUARY 9, 2018 _

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7E .

AGENDA SECTION: NEW BUSINESS

SUBJECT: ADOPT A LEGISLATIVE POLICY
PREPARED BY: Christina Cross, Management Analyst O/Q/
APPROVED BY: Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager Z ﬁs

BACKGROUND

Throughout the year, various groups such as Mountain Counties Water Resources Association
(MCWRA), Association of Califomia Water Agencies (ACWA), or Califomia Special Districts
Association (CSDA) will send out a call to action on a specific bill or issue that significantly impacts
the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (District). Formally letting policymakers aware of the
District’s position on legislation is necessary to impact policy decisions made by the State.

Frequently, these calls to action request the District to sign or send in a letter when a bill is set to
be heard in the legislature; and there is very little time to submit the District’s position. Currently
when the District needs to take a position on a specific issue, the General Manager asks the Board
to officially adopt a position on a case by case basis. This has resulted in the District being unable
to formally take a position on issues due to the lead time required to hold a Board meeting and
the Board to take formal action.

At previous Board meetings, Directors have indicated a desire to review the current practice and
provide the General Manager with some ability to respond to calls to action without case by case
Board action.

DISCUSSION

At the Board meeting of November 14, 2017, Staff was directed to set policy principals for the
Board’s review authorizing the General Manager and a designated Board member to act on
legislation and other policy proposals on behalf of the Board based on these principals to allow
for timely response.

Attachment 1 is a draft legislative policy prepared based on direction from the previous Board
meeting. The policy establishes the following guiding principles:

¢ Preserve local control

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, CA 95634 4 (530) 333-4356 4 gd-pud.org



ADOPT A LEGISLATIVE POLICY Page 2
Regular Board Meeting of January 9, 2018
Agenda ltem #7E

e Promote fiscal stability
e Support funding opportunities

The policy establishes the following procedure for taking a formal position:

e Whenever possible, the full Board of Directors should be given the opportunity to
consider and adopt official positions formally before communication through letters
or other means are prepared.

¢ In cases where urgent action is required, or when a Board of Directors meeting will
not be held in time for the communication to be effective, communication on behalf
of the District may still be sent if the following criteria is met:
= Timing does not allow for full Board of Directors consideration.
= The position is consistent with the Guiding Principles adopted as a part of
this Policy.
= The position is consistent with that of organizations to which the District is a
member, such as ACWA.
» The position and correspondence sent are communicated to the Board of
Directors as soon as possible.
= The position and correspondence has been reviewed and approved by the
General Manager and the Board designated legislative liaison.

The policy requires that the Board designate one Director as the legislative liaison to review and
approve legislative positions with the General Manager.

The policy also states that the District will not participate in, directly or indirectly, or intervene in
any political campaign on behalf of, or in opposition to, any candidate for public office.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact to adopting a legislative policy. Adopting a policy that requires less
frequent formal Board action will require less staff effort to prepare staff reports and prepare
for Board meetings.

CEQA ASSESSMENT
This action is not a CEQA project.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff recommends the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
(GDPUD) adopt a resolution approving the Legislative Action Policy and by motion action
designate a Director as the legislative liaison.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Proposed Legislative Action Policy
2. Resolution



GDPUD Board Meeting of 1/9/2018, AGENDA ITEM NO. 7E, Attachment 1

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District ; 2018
Policy Manual |

POLICY TITLE: Guidelines for Developing Board Position on
Proposed Legislation

POLICY NUMBER: 3230

PURPOSE:

The purpose of the policy is to guide District officials and staff in considering legislative or regulatory
proposals and to allow for a timely response to legislative issues important to the District, including
letters from the President to the Legislature and/or Congress consistent with this policy.

Policy:

The Board of Directors recognizes the need to protect Georgetown Divide Public Utility’s interests and
local legislative authority and to identify various avenues to implement its strategic goals. It is the policy
of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District to proactively monitor and advocate for legislation as
directed by the Guiding Principles and by the specific direction of the Board of Directors.

This Policy includes Board of Directors Guiding Principles and procedures for adopting and
communicating official District positions on legislation, regulations, candidates for public office, or grant
applications by or to other government bodies and for maintaining positive intergovernmental relations.

Guiding Principles:

Preserve Local Control

Preserve and protect the District’s powers, duties and prerogatives to enact legislation and policy
direction concerning local affairs, and oppose legislation that preempts local authority. Local agencies
should preserve and enhance authority and accountability for revenues raised and services provided.

Promote Fiscal Stability

Support measures that promote fiscal stability, predictability, and financial independence. Support
measures that preserve the District’s revenue base and local control over local government budgeting,
recognizing that economic cost is a determinate in considering the merits and/or impacts of any proposed
legislation or regulation.

Oppose measures that make District’s more dependent on the County, State or Federal Governments for
financial stability, such as mandated costs with no guarantee of local reimbursement or offsetting benefits.
Oppose measures that shift local funds to the City, County, State or Federal Governments, without
offsetting benefits.

Support Funding Opportunities

Support opportunities that allow the District to compete for its fair share of regional, state and federal
funding, and that maintain funding streams. Opportunities may include competitive grant and funding
programs. Opportunities could also include dedicated funding streams at the regional, state and federal



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District 12018
Policy Manual |

levels that allow the District to maximize local revenues, offset and leverage capital expenditures, and
maintain District goals and standards.

Advocacy Process and Procedures:

It is the policy of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District to proactively monitor and advocate for
legislation as directed by the Guiding Principles and by the specific direction of the Board of Directors.

This process involves interaction with federal, state and local government entities both in regard to
specific items of legislation and to promote positive ongoing intergovernmental relationships. Such
ongoing positive relationships are fostered by ongoing participation and involvement by the Board of
Directors and District staff in national, state, and regional organizations and through ongoing
communications and cooperation with local legislators. Therefore, to the extent practical, involvement in
such organizations or efforts is encouraged and supported by the District.

Monitoring legislation is also a shared function of the Board of Directors and District staff. Board
Members can request consideration of legislative positions to be placed on the Board Meeting Agenda.
District staff is responsible to provide periodic updates on legislative proposals and recommendations for
official District positions. In providing the necessary information to the Board of Directors, staff shall
include the following:

* A basic summary of the legislation;
* How the legislation may impact the District, including potential fiscal impacts;

* Positions taken by other bodies including the California Special Districts Association (CSDA),
Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA), Mountain Counties Water Resources
Association (MCWRA), other districts or local agencies, and/or other relevant professional or non-
profit organizations; and

* Current status of the legislation.

Whenever possible, the full Board of Directors should be given the opportunity to consider and adopt
official positions formally before communication through letters or other means are prepared. The
President is authorized to sign letters on behalf of the Board of Directors once an official position is
taken. Such communication should be in the form of letters unless other forms have been requested by a
legislator or a body to which the District is a member such as the ACWA.

For legislation, positions will generally be communicated initially to the author, the representative(s) of
the District to the legislative body, and advocacy organizations to which the District belongs, such as the
ACWA. As legislation progresses, further correspondence may be sent to pertinent legislative committee
members, other legislators or to the Governor or President without additional action by the Board of
Directors. Staff is responsible to provide periodic updates relating to the item once a position has been
adopted by the Board of Directors.



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District | 2018
Policy Manual

In cases where urgent action is required, or when a Board of Directors meeting will not be held in time for
the communication to be effective, communication on behalf of the District may still be sent if the
following criteria is met:

» Timing does not allow for full Board of Directors consideration.
*  The position is consistent with the Guiding Principles adopted as a part of this Policy.

*  The position is consistent with that of organizations to which the District is a member, such as
ACWA.

* The position and correspondence sent are communicated to the Board of Directors as soon as
possible.

*  The position and correspondence has been reviewed and approved by the General Manager and
the Board designated legislative liaison.

In addition to official District positions on legislation, regulations or grant applications, individual District
Board Members, the General Manager, and members of the District’s Management Team (Department
Directors) may take a position on such items and communicate regarding those positions so long as they
clearly indicate that the letter reflects their individual position and is not the position of the Georgetown
Divide Public Utility District.

In no case shall a member of District staff, in the course of their professional role, take or communicate a
position which is contrary to an official position of the District. Copies of any communication from an
individual Board Member or District staff member shall be provided to the full Board of Directors for
information.

Candidates for Public Office

It is the policy of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District not to participate in, directly or indirectly,
or to intervene in (including by means of the publishing or distributing of statements) any political
campaign on behalf of, or in opposition to, any candidate for public office.

Notwithstanding these limitations, Georgetown Divide Public Utility District recognizes that individual
Board Members and staff may wish to participate in the political process. Therefore, individual Board
Members and staff may take a position on behalf of, or in opposition to, any candidate for public office
and communicate regarding those positions so long as they clearly indicate that the position reflects their
individual position and is not the position of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District.



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-06

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
ADOPTING A POLICY FOR DEVELOPING
THE BOARD’S POSITION ON PROPOSED LEGISLATION

WHEREAS, throughout the year, the Georgetown Public Utility District (“District”) receives a call to
action from various groups such as the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA), the California
Special Districts Association (CSDA), and Mountain Counties Water Resources Association (MCWRA) on
legislative and policy issues that could significantly impact the District;

WHEREAS, formally informing policymakers of the District’s position on legislation is important and
necessary to impact policy decisions made by the State; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to review the current practice and establish a policy for developing
the Board’s position on proposed legislation and policies to allow for timely and meaningful response to
these calls for action; and

WHEREAS, the Legislative Policy, dated January 9, 2018, was presented to and reviewed by the
Board on January 9, 2018.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Georgetown
Divide Public Utility District adopts Policy 3230, Action on Proposed Legislation, attached to this Resolution
as Exhibit A.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 9th day of January 2018, by the following vote:
AYES: Holpin, tousehidd 3o wj2 150 pJaclle

Londres Uso, President
Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

ATTEST:

7~

Steven Palier, Clerk and Ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

GDPUD Resolution No. 2018-06 Page 1 of 2



CERTIFICATION

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution 2018-06, duly and regularly
adopted by the Board of Directors of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District, County of E|l Dorado,
State of Califorfiia, on the 9" day of January 2018.

Steveh Palmer, Clerk and Ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

GDPUD Resolution No. 2018-06 Page 2 of 2





